
 
 

 

 
703 Weld County Road 37 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING  

February 20, 2024 
6:30 p.m.  

 
This meeting will be held in the Town Hall Board Room, 703 WCR 37 and via Zoom. Residents are welcome to join us in 

the Board Room to view or participate in the meeting, during Public Comment or Public Hearings.  
Public access to this meeting can be found on the website no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 

Michael Mahoney, Mayor 
Jamie Jeffery, Mayor Pro-Tem Dawn Coen, Trustee 

May Wescott, Trustee Jacklyn White, Trustee 
Kat Bristow, Trustee Peggy Tapey, Trustee 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

The Town Clerk will read into record any comments/questions that were received prior to the meeting.  
Actions will not be taken at this time. Any Board of Trustee or Staff responses will be provisional. The Board of 
Trustees may provide consensus direction to Staff, for follow-up, at conclusion of comments. 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 

Any item listed on the Consent Agenda can be removed upon request from any member of the Town Board. For the 
benefit of our audience, the mayor will read the items remaining on the Consent Agenda prior to the Board’s vote. 
a. Payment Approval Report ($221,958.77)              p. 3-10  
b. February 6, 2024 Minutes            p. 11-14 
c. February 12, 2024 Minutes          p. 15-18 
d. Resolution 2024-15 Authorizing The Town Administrator To Execute A Consent To The Partial Assignment And 

Assumption Agreement (Subdivision Improvement And Water Dedication Agreement – Blue Lake Filing No. 2) 
(Phase 2 And 3 Improvements).         P. 19-84 

 
 
 
 
       

         



 
 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
a. Public Hearing on whether South Weld Annexation No. 2 as more particularly described in Resolution No. 2024-06, 

approved January 12, 2024, meets applicable requirements of Section 30 of Article II of the Colorado Constitution 
and C.R.S. § 31-12-104 and C.R.S. § 31-12-105, and is eligible for annexation to the Town of Lochbuie.  
This public hearing to be opened and continued to March 5, 2024, at 6:30 pm at Town Hall, 703 Weld County 
Road 37 and by Zoom (instructions to be posted on the Town web site at least 24 hours in advance.) The 
proceedings related to this matter are being held in abeyance pursuant to CRS Section 31-12-114.  

b. Public Hearing on whether South Weld Annexation No. 3 as more particularly described in Resolution No 2024-07, 
approved January 12, 2024, meets applicable requirements of Section 30 of Article II of the Colorado Constitution 
and C.R.S. § 31-12-104 and C.R.S. § 31-12-105, and is eligible for annexation to the Town of Lochbuie.  
This public hearing to be opened and continued to March 5, 2024, at 6:30 pm at Town Hall, 703 Weld County 
Road 37 and by Zoom (instructions to be posted on the Town web site at least 24 hours in advance.) The 
proceedings related to this matter are being held in abeyance pursuant to CRS Section 31-12-114.  

c. Ordinance 2024-692 Repealing and Readopting Article III Of Chapter 4 Of The Lochbuie Municipal Code 
Governing Municipal Purchasing And Declaring An Emergency     p. 85-127 

d. Elevated Water Storage Tank: Staff recommendation that Board reject all bids and direct staff to re-bid project 
construction.            p. 128 

 
8. DISCUSSION 

a. Fireworks in the Town of Lochbuie         p. 129-139 
 

9. STAFF REPORTS 
A. Finance/Treasurer                                                                                                                         p. 140-214 
B. Police                                                                                                                                           p. 215-216 
C. Water/Wastewater                   p. 217-222 
D. Public Works                                                                                                                                p. 223-225 
E. Community Development                                                                                                            p. 226-230                                            
F. Town Clerk           p. 231  
G. Human Resources               p. 232 
H. Town Administrator               p. 233 
 

10. MAYOR AND TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
a. Executive Session Pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(b) with Town legal counsel to discuss ongoing litigation related 

to annexation. 
 

12. ADJOURN 
 

The Board may convene a lawfully called executive session at any time during a regular or special meeting of the Board. 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     1

Report dates: 2/1/2024-2/9/2024 Feb 09, 2024  08:55AM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 14L7-PT3M-KM Supplies 02/02/2024 3.60 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 14L7-PT3M-KM Supplies 02/02/2024 3.60 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 14L7-PT3M-KM Supplies 02/02/2024 3.59 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1F3Y-QR6N-W1 PW Supplies 02/04/2024 211.98 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1F3Y-QR6N-W1 PW Supplies 02/04/2024 270.98 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1F3Y-QR6N-W1 PW Supplies 02/04/2024 317.97 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1MLL-YLKR-GH Supplies - fire stick 02/06/2024 13.33 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1MLL-YLKR-GH Supplies - fire stick 02/06/2024 13.33 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1MLL-YLKR-GH Supplies - fire stick 02/06/2024 13.33 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1WVK-1RT6-V Supplies 02/08/2024 31.21 .00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1WVK-1RT6-V Supplies -trustee charger 02/08/2024 12.90 .00

          Total AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES: 895.82 .00

ARIES CHEMICAL INC

ARIES CHEMICAL INC 107739 WWTP CHEMICALS 01/26/2024 4,298.00 .00

          Total ARIES CHEMICAL INC: 4,298.00 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.6026.00-271 SABIN WA 02/01/2024 118.43 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.6012.00-283 SABIN WA 02/01/2024 123.54 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.6010.00-281 SABIN WA 02/01/2024 67.37 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.5977.00-25 SABIN WA 02/01/2024 184.35 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.5914.00-130 SABIN WA 02/01/2024 60.87 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.6033.00-234 JACOBS 02/01/2024 42.92 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.6004.00-172 JACOBS 02/01/2024 103.61 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.6002.00-293 JACOBS 02/01/2024 93.60 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.6001.00-184 JACOBS 02/01/2024 86.07 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.5994.00-107 JACOBS 02/01/2024 49.80 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.5993.00-162 JACOBS 02/01/2024 93.60 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.5975.00-103 JACOBS 02/01/2024 78.63 .00

ASPEN VIEW HOMES FEBRUARY RE Refund Overpayment-9.6022.00-278 CHIPETA 02/01/2024 117.65 .00

          Total ASPEN VIEW HOMES: 1,220.44 .00

AUSMUS LAW FIRM PC

AUSMUS LAW FIRM PC 8572 2/24-Prosecuting Attorney 02/01/2024 600.00 .00

          Total AUSMUS LAW FIRM PC: 600.00 .00

AXON ENTERPRISE INC

AXON ENTERPRISE INC INUS5224634 PD Equipment 02/01/2024 16,328.88 .00

          Total AXON ENTERPRISE INC: 16,328.88 .00

BENJAMIN & HANNAH WINEGAR

BENJAMIN & HANNAH WINEGA UTILITY REFU UTILITY REFUND - 386 VISTA BLVD 02/01/2024 70.90 .00

          Total BENJAMIN & HANNAH WINEGAR: 70.90 .00

3



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     2

Report dates: 2/1/2024-2/9/2024 Feb 09, 2024  08:55AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

CASELLE, INC.

CASELLE, INC. 130742 3/24-Contract Support & Maint. 02/01/2024 487.33 .00

CASELLE, INC. 130742 3/24-Contract Support & Maint. 02/01/2024 487.33 .00

CASELLE, INC. 130742 3/24-Contract Support & Maint. 02/01/2024 487.34 .00

          Total CASELLE, INC.: 1,462.00 .00

CINTAS

CINTAS 4182396412 2/24-Town Hall Mats/Towels 02/05/2024 26.20 .00

CINTAS 4182396412 2/24-Town Hall Mats/Towels 02/05/2024 26.19 .00

          Total CINTAS: 52.39 .00

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240130024 WATER-DRINKING 01/31/2024 62.10 .00

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240131107 WASTEWATER TESTING 02/07/2024 95.40 .00

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240206157 WATER-DRINKING 02/07/2024 82.80 .00

COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB 240207104 WWTP - Lab Fees 02/08/2024 24.30 .00

          Total COLORADO ANALYTICAL LAB: 264.60 .00

COLORADO INFORMATION SHARING CONSORTIUM

COLORADO INFORMATION SHA 1635 2024 Dues- Lexis Nexis / Membership Fees 02/06/2024 275.00 .00

          Total COLORADO INFORMATION SHARING CONSORTIUM: 275.00 .00

Comcast

Comcast 0297386-12424 2/24-Internet 01/24/2024 187.60 .00

Comcast 0297386-12424 2/24-Internet 01/24/2024 187.60 .00

Comcast 0297386-12424 2/24-Internet 01/24/2024 187.59 .00

          Total Comcast: 562.79 .00

CULLIGAN WATER COND

CULLIGAN WATER COND 153X03815705 2/24 - PW Water Equipment Rental 01/31/2024 22.00 .00

CULLIGAN WATER COND 153X03815705 2/24 - PW Water Equipment Rental 01/31/2024 22.00 .00

          Total CULLIGAN WATER COND: 44.00 .00

CUSHING TERRELL

CUSHING TERRELL 182833 2023 Comprehensive Plan Update - 1/24 01/31/2024 2,463.48 .00

CUSHING TERRELL 182833 2023 Comprehensive Plan Update - 1/24 01/31/2024 1,231.74 .00

CUSHING TERRELL 182833 2023 Comprehensive Plan Update - 1/24 01/31/2024 1,231.74 .00

          Total CUSHING TERRELL: 4,926.96 .00

DAN'S CUSTOM CONSTRUCTION, INC

DAN'S CUSTOM CONSTRUCTIO 2024-01 Meter Rental Refund Deposit 02/01/2024 4,655.00 .00

DAN'S CUSTOM CONSTRUCTIO 2024-01 Construction water usage 02/01/2024 614.78- .00

DAN'S CUSTOM CONSTRUCTIO 2024-01 Meter admin fee 02/01/2024 92.22- .00

DAN'S CUSTOM CONSTRUCTIO 2024-01 Meter Rental 02/01/2024 15.00- .00

          Total DAN'S CUSTOM CONSTRUCTION, INC: 3,933.00 .00

DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LLC

DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LL INV721333 1/22-1/26-Sludge Hauling 02/01/2024 3,925.54 .00

DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LL INV728642 1/30-2/2-Sludge Hauling 02/08/2024 3,073.33 .00

4



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     3

Report dates: 2/1/2024-2/9/2024 Feb 09, 2024  08:55AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

          Total DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LLC: 6,998.87 .00

DR HORTON

DR HORTON FEBRUARY RE REFUND UTILITY PAYMENT - 9.6640.00-724  02/01/2024 78.63 .00

DR HORTON FEBRUARY RE REFUND UTILITY PAYMENT - 9.6000.00-709  02/01/2024 78.96 .00

DR HORTON FEBRUARY RE REFUND UTILITY PAYMENT - 9.5998.00-722  02/01/2024 83.62 .00

DR HORTON FEBRUARY RE REFUND UTILITY PAYMENT - 9.5985.00-807  02/01/2024 78.63 .00

          Total DR HORTON: 319.84 .00

ELEVATED CLOUD SERVICES, LLC

ELEVATED CLOUD SERVICES,  ECS24-0011 1/24 - IT Consultant-Hosting/Endpoint 02/01/2024 50.04 .00

ELEVATED CLOUD SERVICES,  ECS24-0011 1/24 - IT Consultant-Hosting/Endpoint 02/01/2024 125.10 .00

ELEVATED CLOUD SERVICES,  ECS24-0011 1/24 - IT Consultant-Hosting/Endpoint 02/01/2024 25.02 .00

ELEVATED CLOUD SERVICES,  ECS24-0011 1/24 - IT Consultant-Hosting/Endpoint 02/01/2024 25.02 .00

ELEVATED CLOUD SERVICES,  ECS24-0011 1/24 - IT Consultant-Hosting/Endpoint 02/01/2024 25.02 .00

ELEVATED CLOUD SERVICES,  ECS24-0011 1/24 - IT Consultant-Hosting/Endpoint 02/01/2024 250.19 .00

ELEVATED CLOUD SERVICES,  ECS24-0011 1/24 - IT Consultant-Hosting/Endpoint 02/01/2024 250.19 .00

          Total ELEVATED CLOUD SERVICES, LLC: 750.58 .00

ENVIROTECH

ENVIROTECH CD202407708 Ice Slicer 01/23/2024 3,436.01 .00

          Total ENVIROTECH: 3,436.01 .00

GALLS, LLC

GALLS, LLC 25739652 PD-UNIFORMS 01/31/2024 238.13 .00

          Total GALLS, LLC: 238.13 .00

GLENN TRUITT & LORRAINE SEYMOUR

GLENN TRUITT & LORRAINE SE UTILITY OVER UTILITY REFUND - 1957 JADE AVE 02/01/2024 77.78 .00

          Total GLENN TRUITT & LORRAINE SEYMOUR: 77.78 .00

GRAINGER

GRAINGER 9002684968 WW - Supplies 01/30/2024 231.75 .00

          Total GRAINGER: 231.75 .00

HACH COMPANY

HACH COMPANY 13820000 Reagents 11/18/2023 3,134.00 .00

          Total HACH COMPANY: 3,134.00 .00

KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS S 291789856 1/24 Copier Lease 01/31/2024 34.57 .00

KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS S 291789856 1/24 Copier Lease 01/31/2024 34.57 .00

KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS S 291789856 1/24 Copier Lease 01/31/2024 34.56 .00

          Total KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS: 103.70 .00

KRAV MAGA WORLDWIDE INC

KRAV MAGA WORLDWIDE INC FTD8236 INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATION COURSE 02/01/2024 895.00 .00

5



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     4

Report dates: 2/1/2024-2/9/2024 Feb 09, 2024  08:55AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

          Total KRAV MAGA WORLDWIDE INC: 895.00 .00

LIFE STORIES

LIFE STORIES 11-831 4th Qtr Billing 2023 02/01/2024 156.00 .00

          Total LIFE STORIES: 156.00 .00

LINGO TELECOM

LINGO TELECOM 1197705877 1/24-Telephone Service 02/12/2024 75.95 .00

LINGO TELECOM 1197705877 1/24-Telephone Service 02/12/2024 75.95 .00

LINGO TELECOM 1197705877 1/24-Telephone Service 02/12/2024 75.95 .00

          Total LINGO TELECOM: 227.85 .00

LOUIS A. GRESH

LOUIS A. GRESH FEB 2024 2/24 Judicial Services 02/01/2024 600.00 .00

          Total LOUIS A. GRESH: 600.00 .00

LYONS GADDIS

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 WATER LAW 01/31/2024 433.00 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 GENERAL MATTERS 01/31/2024 1,221.00 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 - opp to united 01/31/2024 147.50 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 - opp to BRIGHTON 01/31/2024 3,759.50 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 Reimb- Litigation Deposit 01/31/2024 326.50 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 - opp to BRIGHTON 01/31/2024 128.00 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 BNSF 01/31/2024 73.00 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 Reimb - Fruition 01/31/2024 2,701.00 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 Starbucks 01/31/2024 1,131.50 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 Scotts Miracle-Gro 01/31/2024 1,642.50 .00

LYONS GADDIS 275 1/24 South Weld Holdings annexation 01/31/2024 3,212.00 .00

          Total LYONS GADDIS: 14,775.50 .00

MURRAY DAHL BEERY RENAUD LLP

MURRAY DAHL BEERY RENAU 18434 1/24 - Legal - Annexation 02/05/2024 5,654.35 .00

MURRAY DAHL BEERY RENAU 18434 1/24 - Legal - Annexation 02/05/2024 5,654.35 .00

MURRAY DAHL BEERY RENAU 18434 1/24 - Legal - Annexation 02/05/2024 5,654.35 .00

          Total MURRAY DAHL BEERY RENAUD LLP: 16,963.05 .00

OPEN DOOR PROPERTY TRUST

OPEN DOOR PROPERTY TRUS UTILITY REFU Utility Final - 342 SHENANDOAH WAY 02/01/2024 77.91 .00

          Total OPEN DOOR PROPERTY TRUST: 77.91 .00

ORKIN

ORKIN 255104142 2/24 - Pest Control - Town Hall 02/01/2024 171.99 .00

          Total ORKIN: 171.99 .00

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COM 27097 1/24 Wastewater Services 01/31/2024 2,766.18 .00

RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COM 27098 12/23 Water Services r&m 02/06/2024 6,075.47 .00

6



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     5

Report dates: 2/1/2024-2/9/2024 Feb 09, 2024  08:55AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

          Total RAMEY ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 8,841.65 .00

REPUBLIC SERVICES #535

REPUBLIC SERVICES #535 535-005885068 1/24-Trash-PW 01/31/2024 18.83 .00

REPUBLIC SERVICES #535 535-005885068 1/24-Trash-PW 01/31/2024 18.83 .00

REPUBLIC SERVICES #535 535-005885068 1/24-Trash-WWTP 01/31/2024 65.00 .00

REPUBLIC SERVICES #535 535-005885068 1/24-Trash Services 01/31/2024 42,399.30 .00

          Total REPUBLIC SERVICES #535: 42,501.96 .00

Rise Broadband

Rise Broadband 0069887-2/1/24 2/14-3/13/23-WW Broadband 02/01/2024 115.28 .00

          Total Rise Broadband: 115.28 .00

RIVER CITY PETROLEUM INC

RIVER CITY PETROLEUM INC 1231559 1/24 - Fuel - PW 01/31/2024 1,382.54 .00

RIVER CITY PETROLEUM INC 1231559 1/24 - Fuel - PD 01/31/2024 1,616.54 .00

          Total RIVER CITY PETROLEUM INC: 2,999.08 .00

S & B CONFLUENCE-CO, LLC

S & B CONFLUENCE-CO, LLC DEN02240083 2/24-Janitorial Service 02/01/2024 373.33 .00

S & B CONFLUENCE-CO, LLC DEN02240083 2/24-Janitorial Service 02/01/2024 373.33 .00

S & B CONFLUENCE-CO, LLC DEN02240083 2/24-Janitorial Service 02/01/2024 373.34 .00

          Total S & B CONFLUENCE-CO, LLC: 1,120.00 .00

SAFEBUILT LLC LOCKBOX 88135

SAFEBUILT LLC LOCKBOX 8813 212849 1/24-Plan Review Fees 01/31/2024 11,266.76 .00

          Total SAFEBUILT LLC LOCKBOX 88135: 11,266.76 .00

SAFETY AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY

SAFETY AND CONSTRUCTION 12939-IN PW - Paint 01/30/2024 46.13 .00

          Total SAFETY AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY: 46.13 .00

SETER, VANDER WALL & MIELKE, P.C.

SETER, VANDER WALL & MIELK 86682 1/24-Legal - Library 01/31/2024 13,000.00 .00

          Total SETER, VANDER WALL & MIELKE, P.C.: 13,000.00 .00

SIGNAL WASH CO.

SIGNAL WASH CO. 10950 1/24-PD Car Washes 01/31/2024 169.88 .00

          Total SIGNAL WASH CO.: 169.88 .00

SOUTHEAST WELD COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERC

SOUTHEAST WELD COUNTY C 1119 MEMBERSHIP DUES 2024 02/02/2024 500.00 .00

          Total SOUTHEAST WELD COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERC: 500.00 .00

STAPLES ADVANTAGE

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 1653626790 1/24 Supplies 01/25/2024 60.70 .00

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 1653626790 1/24 Supplies 01/25/2024 60.70 .00

7



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     6

Report dates: 2/1/2024-2/9/2024 Feb 09, 2024  08:55AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 1653626790 1/24 Supplies 01/25/2024 60.69 .00

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 1653626790 1/24 Supplies- CD 01/25/2024 13.99 .00

          Total STAPLES ADVANTAGE: 196.08 .00

SUMMIT DATA PROTECTION LLC

SUMMIT DATA PROTECTION LL SDP24-0006 1/24 - IT Consultant-Disaster Recover 02/01/2024 118.33 .00

SUMMIT DATA PROTECTION LL SDP24-0006 1/24 - IT Consultant-Disaster Recover 02/01/2024 295.83 .00

SUMMIT DATA PROTECTION LL SDP24-0006 1/24 - IT Consultant-Disaster Recover 02/01/2024 59.17 .00

SUMMIT DATA PROTECTION LL SDP24-0006 1/24 - IT Consultant-Disaster Recover 02/01/2024 59.17 .00

SUMMIT DATA PROTECTION LL SDP24-0006 1/24 - IT Consultant-Disaster Recover 02/01/2024 59.16 .00

SUMMIT DATA PROTECTION LL SDP24-0006 1/24 - IT Consultant-Disaster Recover 02/01/2024 591.67 .00

SUMMIT DATA PROTECTION LL SDP24-0006 1/24 - IT Consultant-Disaster Recover 02/01/2024 591.67 .00

          Total SUMMIT DATA PROTECTION LLC: 1,775.00 .00

TIMBERLAN

TIMBERLAN TLC24-0010 AV RECORDING 02/01/2024 500.00 .00

TIMBERLAN TLC24-0019 1/24 - Network Maint. 02/01/2024 188.87 .00

TIMBERLAN TLC24-0019 1/24 - Network Maint. 02/01/2024 472.17 .00

TIMBERLAN TLC24-0019 1/24 - Network Maint. 02/01/2024 94.44 .00

TIMBERLAN TLC24-0019 1/24 - Network Maint. 02/01/2024 94.43 .00

TIMBERLAN TLC24-0019 1/24 - Network Maint. 02/01/2024 94.43 .00

TIMBERLAN TLC24-0019 1/24 - Network Maint. 02/01/2024 944.33 .00

TIMBERLAN TLC24-0019 1/24 - Network Maint. 02/01/2024 944.33 .00

          Total TIMBERLAN: 3,333.00 .00

UNITED POWER

UNITED POWER 12644301-0205 1/24 Booster Pump 02/05/2024 20.00 .00

UNITED POWER 14673300-0205 1/24 Greenbelt Park 02/05/2024 21.15 .00

UNITED POWER 1494105-02052 1/24 PW 02/05/2024 378.23 .00

UNITED POWER 1494105-02052 1/24 PW 02/05/2024 378.23 .00

UNITED POWER 1494201-02052 1/24 Water Plant 02/05/2024 6,018.34 .00

UNITED POWER 1499202-02052 1/24 Water Well 02/05/2024 2,036.73 .00

UNITED POWER 15304700-0205 1/24 Pump Station 02/05/2024 276.96 .00

UNITED POWER 1617801-02052 1/24 Lift Station 02/05/2024 43.48 .00

UNITED POWER 16490000-0205 1/24 Warning Siren 02/05/2024 34.27 .00

UNITED POWER 18613000-0205 1/24 Town Hall 02/05/2024 417.82 .00

UNITED POWER 18613000-0205 1/24 Town Hall 02/05/2024 417.82 .00

UNITED POWER 18613000-0205 1/24 Town Hall 02/05/2024 417.82 .00

UNITED POWER 18613000-0205 1/24 Town Hall 02/05/2024 417.82 .00

UNITED POWER 19545200-0205 1/24 Booster Station 02/05/2024 856.98 .00

UNITED POWER 21534900-0205 1/24 Roundabout 02/05/2024 58.82 .00

UNITED POWER 7988801-02052 1/24 198 Bonanza Blvd 02/05/2024 22.00 .00

UNITED POWER 8210001-02052 1/24 797 Prairie Ave 02/05/2024 20.00 .00

UNITED POWER 9093300-02052 1/24 WWTP 02/05/2024 14,548.30 .00

UNITED POWER 9106602-02052 1/24 1 Wagon Trail Ave 02/05/2024 21.72 .00

          Total UNITED POWER: 26,406.49 .00

UNITED WATER & SANITATION DIST

UNITED WATER & SANITATION  LOCHBUIE DE 11/1-11/30/23-Water Storage-United Power-#3  01/30/2024 4,504.65 .00

          Total UNITED WATER & SANITATION DIST: 4,504.65 .00

8



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     7

Report dates: 2/1/2024-2/9/2024 Feb 09, 2024  08:55AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

USA BLUE BOOK

USA BLUE BOOK INV00248352 1/24 Water Lab Supplies 01/17/2024 977.79 .00

          Total USA BLUE BOOK: 977.79 .00

UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER CO

UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTE 224010769 1/24 Line Locates 01/31/2024 67.72 .00

UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTE 224010769 1/24 Line Locates 01/31/2024 67.73 .00

          Total UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER CO: 135.45 .00

VERIZON WIRELESS

VERIZON WIRELESS 9955134314 1/24-Cell Service-PD, PW, Planner 02/01/2024 40.68 .00

VERIZON WIRELESS 9955134314 1/24-Cell Service-PD, PW, Planner 02/01/2024 142.38 .00

VERIZON WIRELESS 9955134314 1/24-Cell Service-PD, PW, Planner 02/01/2024 142.38 .00

VERIZON WIRELESS 9955134314 1/24-Cell Service-PD, PW, Planner 02/01/2024 1,169.91 .00

          Total VERIZON WIRELESS: 1,495.35 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1813 1/24-Admin 01/31/2024 3,991.24 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1813 1/24-Admin 01/31/2024 3,991.25 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1813 1/24-Admin 01/31/2024 487.50 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1813 1/24-Admin 01/31/2024 1,111.50 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1813 1/24-Admin 01/31/2024 4,000.99 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1813 1/24-Admin 01/31/2024 3,451.50 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1814 1/24-Reimbursable - BLUE LAKE 01/31/2024 157.50 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1815 1/24-Reimbursable - QUIKTRIP 01/31/2024 607.50 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1816 1/24-Legal WATER 01/31/2024 663.00 .00

WIDNER JURAN LLP 7.1817 1/24- 7-11 01/31/2024 19.50 .00

          Total WIDNER JURAN LLP: 18,481.48 .00

          Grand Totals:  221,958.77 .00

 Dated:       __________________________________________

 Mayor:       __________________________________________

    Town Trustees:  __________________________________________

       __________________________________________

       __________________________________________

       __________________________________________

       __________________________________________

       __________________________________________

  Town Clerk:          __________________________________________

  Town Treasurer:   __________________________________________

9



Town of Lochbuie Payment Approval Report - Board Page:     8

Report dates: 2/1/2024-2/9/2024 Feb 09, 2024  08:55AM

Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid

Invoice Amount

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

10



703 Weld County Road 37 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING  

February 6, 2024 
6:30 p.m.  

This meeting will be held in the Town Hall Board Room, 703 WCR 37 and via Zoom. Residents are welcome to join us in 
the Board Room to view or participate in the meeting, during Public Comment or Public Hearings.  

Public access to this meeting can be found on the website no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

Minutes 
CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery called the meeting to order at 6:31 PM. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 

Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery 
Trustee Coen 
Trustee White 
Trustee Bristow 
Trustee Tapey 

Absent:  Mayor Mahoney 
Trustee Wescott 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery stated that action item 8b would be removed from tonight’s agenda and brought back at a later time. 

Motion made by Trustee White seconded by Trustee Bristow to approve the agenda as presented, with removal of action item 8b. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Lance Ingalls, an attorney on the front range, stated that he is here this evening to speak on item 8b, and his client is here from 
North Carolina. His client bid on the elevated storage tank project, and was the lowest bidder. The bid tabulation showed that his 
company met all the requirements and was the lowest bidder. They heard last Friday that they would not be getting the project as 
they were not the most responsive and qualified bidder. In your bid regulations, it showed the formal bidding process. The 
requirement is that the lowest bidder will win the bid. Mr. Ingalls requested the board to please ask their staff to look into this 
issue, as he believes Phoenix Fabricators and Erectors was the lowest responsive bid. What he would like is for Phoenix to be 
reconsidered. Town staff is to bring the board a recommendation, but whether those recommendations follow the bid regulations 
is up to the board to ensure. He asked that the board follow the regulations as written.  

11



   

Michael Oglesby, Director of Sales Engineering at Phoenix Fabricators and Erectors, shared that his company has built over 
5,000 elevated storage tanks in over 35 years since the company began. On December 21, 2023, he learned that his company was 
the lowest bidder on the tank project. After calling and emailing multiple times, he learned late last week that a higher bidder 
would be recommended to build the storage tank. The reasons given did not make much sense, and Phoenix was not asked for an 
explanation prior to this recommendation. He stated that Phoenix and had difficulty communicating with town representatives 
during and after this bidding process. Mr. Oglesby shared instances where Phoenix reached out to get information or direction 
during the bidding process and did not get a response. There was an omission from the bidder recommended by JVA; they did 
not include a sketch of their foundation layout, which is a requirement. Last week, the third company that submitted a bid 
reached out to Phoenix to express their disdain for the bidding process and trouble with communication. He kindly asks the 
board to consider all these things as you contemplate moving forward on this project.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery stated that Gave Evans would be providing the legislative update later in the agenda.  
 
Larry Strock, 840 Lonewolf Circle, inquired why these people were not at the public hearing. It is obvious that JVA, Phoenix, 
and the other company should get together. Why did they wait until tonight? 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Any item listed on the Consent Agenda can be removed upon request from any member of the Town Board. For the 
benefit of our audience, the mayor will read the items remaining on the Consent Agenda prior to the Board’s vote. 
a. Payment Approval Report ($438,212.73)         
b. January 12, 2024 Special Meeting Minutes         
c. January 16, 2024 Minutes           
d. Resolution 2024-10 Approving The Form Of The State & Municipal Lease/Purchase Agreement With Clayton 

Holdings, LLC, St. Louis, Missouri And Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Thereof   
e. Resolution 2024-11 Approving An Engagement Agreement For Legal Services With Brownstein Hyatt Farber 

Schreck, LLP            
f. Resolution 2024-12 Approving A Proposal From Galloway For Professional Services    
g. Resolution 2024-13 Approving The Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1 Final Plat And The Subdivision 

Improvement Agreement Between The Town And QuikTrip Corporation     
 
Motion made by Trustee White seconded by Trustee Coen to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 5-0.  
 
ACTION ITEMS 

a. Public hearing and Resolution 2024-14 Approving A Conditional Use Application For The Operation Of A Motor 
Vehicle Fueling/Gasoline Station At 17731 County Road 2 On Lot 1, Highplains Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1 
Near The Northeast Corner Of 168th Avenue And Bonanza Boulevard  

 
Christopher Kennedy, Community Development Director, stated that the developers have completed the majority of the 
entitlement work, so the next step is this conditional use permit for the convenience store.  
 
Sonya Thornton, Planner I, shared that the design of the convenience store and of the subdivision do meet the requirements of 
the conditional use permit. She shared an overview of the project and how the lot will be developed. The purpose of the 
conditional use permit is to ensure that the impacts, such as traffic, aesthetics, odors, light, and noise are addressed. Staff 
recommends approval.  
 
Mike Talcott, Real Estate Manager for QuikTrip Corporation, shared the history of QuikTrip and presented employment 
statistics, and how the finished convenience store will look.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery opened the public hearing at 7:03 PM.     
   
Larry Strock, 840 Lonewolf Circle, shared that this is not what he would like to see in the gateway to Lochbuie, but it is 
happening. Where will the vents for the underground tanks be located? Will this store allow overnight parking or parking for 
semis? What is the store capacity? The prints show that they will have 55 parking spots. The company should think about 
installing some electric car charging stations. There will always be air pollution from cars, and the station could end up polluting 
the groundwater.  
 

12



   

Lex Martin, 762 Prairie Avenue, stated that they are opposed to a gas station being built at 17731 County Road 2. Lochbuie does 
not need a third gas station as the area is busy enough. The intersection of 168th Avenue and I-76 sets the tone for the Town; do 
we stand for industrialization, or do we stand for maintaining a community feel? This lot is currently a prairie dog field. Prairie 
dogs are not a nuisance to the neighborhood and add value to the small-town charm of Lochbuie. I am strongly advocating for 
the protection of the prairie dogs and hope that if/when this land is developed, they are protected and relocated.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery closed the public hearing at 7:10 PM. 
 
Motion made by Trustee White seconded by Trustee Tapey to approve and Resolution 2024-14 Approving A Conditional Use 
Application For The Operation Of A Motor Vehicle Fueling/Gasoline Station At 17731 County Road 2 On Lot 1, Highplains 
Filing No. 1, Amendment No. 1 Near The Northeast Corner Of 168th Avenue And Bonanza Boulevard. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

b. Resolution 2024-16 Approving Three Agreements With Resource Central For 2024 For (A) Garden In A Box 
Program, (B) Slow The Flow Irrigation Audit Program, And (C) Waterwise Yard Seminars Program 

 
Heather Bowen, Town Clerk, shared that the Town is looking to offer the Garden in a Box, Slow the Flow Irrigation Audit, and 
Waterwise Yard Seminar programs to the Lochbuie residents this year. Staff will increase marketing to ensure residents know of 
this partnership. 
 
Motion made by Trustee Bristow seconded by Trustee White to approve Resolution 2024-16 Approving Three Agreements With 
Resource Central For 2024 For (A) Garden In A Box Program, (B) Slow The Flow Irrigation Audit Program, And (C) 
Waterwise Yard Seminars Program. Motion carried 5-0.  
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 
 
Gabe Evans, State Representative for House District 48, provided an update on the happenings in the legislature, and wanted to 
ensure the board knows they can reach out to him anytime with questions.  
 
Trustee Coen inquired about Mr. Evans’ stance regarding the bill on safe injection sites.  
 
Gabe Evans stated that of course he wants to help with substance abuse, but his position opposes the safe injection sites and the 
Bill as it stands now.  
 
STAFF AND ATTORNEY UPDATES 
 
AJ Euckert, Town Administrator, stated that the work session that was scheduled for tonight is postponed. There is a special 
board meeting on Monday, February 12 at 5:30 PM. The open house for the comprehensive plan is set for Thursday, February 
22 from 6:00 – 8:00 PM. The Southeast Weld County Chamber of Commerce Annual Banquet is on February 24th. Please email 
if you would like to attend, the Town has purchased a table.  
 
MAYOR AND TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
 
Trustee Coen shared that she attended a CML policy committee meeting a few weeks ago and voted on behalf of the trustees and 
the Town. AJ Euckert has her voting results if anyone is interested. Her results are a summary of what bills were discussed and 
voted on, how CML recommended voting, and how she voted on each topic.  

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

a. Executive Session pursuant to CRS Section 24-6-402(4)(b) with Special counsel to receive legal advice regarding 
the public library.  

 
Motion made by Trustee Coen seconded by Trustee White to move to Executive session pursuant to CRS Section 24-6-402(4)(b) 
with Special counsel to receive legal advice regarding the public library. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery called a recess at 7:25 PM.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery called the executive session to order at 7:27 PM.  

13



   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery adjourned the executive session at 8:00 PM.  
 
ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by Trustee White seconded by Trustee Bristow to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery adjourned the meeting at 8:01 PM. 

 
The Board may convene a lawfully called executive session at any time during a regular or special meeting of the Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   ________                        
Heather Bowen       Michael Mahoney 
Town Clerk        Mayor  

 

14



 
 

 
 

 
703 Weld County Road 37 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
AND NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING  

February 12, 2024 
5:30 p.m.  

 
This special meeting will be held via Zoom and in the Town Hall Board Room, 703 WCR 37, Lochbuie, Colorado. The 

public is welcome to join us in the Board Room or view by accessing the meeting through the following Zoom link:  
 

Minutes 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery 
  Trustee Bristow 
  Trustee Coen 
  Trustee White 
  Trustee Tapey 
  Trustee Wescott – arrived in the meeting at 5:36 PM 
 
Absent:  Mayor Mahoney 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
   
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Trustee Coen seconded by Trustee Bristow to approve the agenda. Motion carried 5-0. 
    
ACTION ITEMS 

a. Public Hearing on whether South Weld Annexation No. 2 as more particularly described in Resolution No 2024-06, 
approved January 12, 2024, meets the applicable requirements of Section 30 of Article II of the Colorado 
Constitution and C.R.S. § 31-12-104 and C.R.S. § 31-12-105, and is eligible for annexation to the Town of 
Lochbuie. 
This public hearing to be opened and continued to February 20, 2024, at 6:30 pm at Town Hall, 703 Weld 
County Road 37 and by Zoom (instructions to be posted on the Town web site at least 24 hours in advance.) 
The proceedings related to this matter are being held in abeyance pursuant to CRS Section 31-12-114.  

 
Motion made by Trustee Bristow seconded by Trustee Tapey to open the public hearing for South Weld Annexation No. 2, 
Resolution 2024-06, and continue the hearing to February 20, 2024, at 6:30 PM at Town Hall and by zoom. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

15



 
 

 
b. Public Hearing on whether South Weld Annexation No. 3 as more particularly described in Resolution No 2024-07, 

approved January 12, 2024 meets the applicable requirements of Section 30 of Article II of the Colorado 
Constitution and C.R.S. § 31-12-104 and C.R.S. § 31-12-105, and is eligible for annexation to the Town of 
Lochbuie.  
This public hearing to be opened and continued to February 20, 2024, at 6:30 pm at Town Hall, 703 Weld 
County Road 37 and by Zoom (instructions to be posted on the Town web site at least 24 hours in advance.) 
The proceedings related to this matter are being held in abeyance pursuant to CRS Section 31-12-114.  

 
Motion made by Trustee Tapey seconded by Trustee Bristow to open the public hearing for South Weld Annexation No. 3, 
Resolution 2024-07, and continue the hearing to February 20, 2024, at 6:30 PM at Town Hall and by zoom. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

c. Public Hearing and, to follow, consideration of Ordinance 2024-691, annexing certain territory to the Town known 
as the South Weld Annexation No. 1 and approving an agreement.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery opened the public hearing at 5:34 PM.  
 
Christopher Kennedy, Community Development Director, stated that the property is about 194 acres and is located at the 
northeast corner of County Road 4 and I-76. This annexation includes about 4,200 feet of County Road 4 right-of-way. The 
landowner submitted their annexation petition in accordance with state requirements. He explained the required findings for 
annexation that the board must review before advancing with the annexation. The next step in this process is that the state 
requires the Town to assign zoning and create an annexation agreement to be brought back to the board for consideration. Staff 
believes this annexation request complies with annexation criteria in state statute and could benefit the Town by extending 
utilities east of I-76.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery stated that Trustee Wescott arrived to the meeting at 5:36 PM. 
 
Maureen Juran, Town Attorney, stated that all the materials that were in the board packet will be part of the record for this public 
hearing.  
 
Josh Shipman, South Weld Holdings, LLC, thanked town staff for their work in getting this assembled tonight. South Weld 
Holdings is also the owner of 500 acres of land to the south and adjacent to the parcel in consideration tonight. Their 
longstanding plan for this area was residential buildout, but that has changed based on Burlington Northern Santa Fe’s recent 
activity in the area. BNSF anticipates 3000 acres of industrial development immediately to the north of the South Weld Parcel 
that we are reviewing tonight. The current plan for buildout is that the northern third of the land will be industrial, the middle 
third will be a combination of industrial and residential, and the remaining property will be residential.  
 
Connie Worth, 20079 County Road 4, asked for clarification between light industrial and industrial zoning districts. She 
received a letter from Weld County that they are going to be closing from County Road 6 to County Road 4. It seems like 
Hudson, Lochbuie, and Weld County are not communicating. She has lived in the area for thirty years and thinks you all should 
be talking to each other.  
 
Christopher Kennedy stated that the Lochbuie Municipal Code does not differentiate between light industrial and industrial 
zoning.  
 
Josh Shipman shared that South Weld Holdings is anticipating industrial storage along the northern third of this property.  
 
AJ Euckert, Town Administrator, replied that the Town is aware of Weld County vacating a portion of the road. This is not an 
action the Town is taking.  
 
Karen Grillos, 21512 County Road 4, inquired if there would be gigantic warehouses built? She heard that BNSF has plans for 
warehouses in this area, and that could be noisy. She inquired about the zoning on a parcel of land at the corner of County Road 
45 and County Road 4. In the letter she received from the Town of Lochbuie, it stated that residents have a right to request that 
their property be annexed. Do residents have the right to ask that their property not be annexed?  
 

16



 
 

Christopher Kennedy stated that it is hard to speculate at this time how the land would be developed, as there is not a 
development plan yet. Warehousing is something that could occur there. The Town does not know the scope of the BNSF 
development yet, and South Weld Holdings is not affiliated with BNSF. The parcel of land mentioned, at the southwest corner of 
County Road 45 and County Road 4, is a Town of Hudson annexation, so Lochbuie does not have details. Lochbuie is not 
proposing to annex other properties, so the only way a resident would be annexed is if they requested it.  
 
Joe Brnak, 20220 County Road 4, stated he was curious if Lochbuie does annex this portion of County Road 4, how many pieces 
of equipment do you have for snow removal, upkeep, or bridge work in the future? Currently, how many miles of road does the 
Town take care of? He inquired what the plan is for the parcel south of County Road 4 and what the exact location of the Weld 
County road closure is.  
 
Chris Larmon, Public Works Director, stated that right now the public works department maintains 71 miles of road. The Town 
has equipment ordered and plans to hire additional staff that would help with winter maintenance, so the department is taking 
steps to prepare for these additional obligations.  
 
Christopher Kennedy stated there is no development plan yet for how the land will be used, only the annexation is under 
consideration today.  
 
Kimberly Wagner, 19369 County Road 4, purchased her property last year and is surrounded by this annexation. Will there be a 
four-lane road? For the light industrial and housing that could be added, will there be access off County Road 41, or will it be off 
County Road 4? She stated that she would like to be in contact with South Weld Holdings as this project progresses and would 
like to know their plans to help maintain the quality of life in the area, and to help with dust and noise mitigation.  
 
Christopher Kennedy stated that a traffic study has not been completed, so the road could be widened in the future, but there is 
nothing to dictate that change right now. There are provisions in the Lochbuie Municipal Code for dust mitigation, landscape, 
and berms when there is an intense use up against a less intense land use.  
 
Josh Shipman stated that South Weld Holdings is happy to speak with residents.  
 
Karen Grillos, 21512 County Road 4, shared that there is only one owner who would like to develop this property. They can 
have the taxpayers help, and Lochbuie will bring water and utilities. There may be monetary interest for the Town.  
 
Christopher Kennedy stated that developers are required to pay their own way. They must pay for infrastructure, roads, pipes, 
and water treatment.  
 
Larry Strock, 840 Lonewolf Circle, stated that the maps that were shown are somewhat confusing and it is hard to tell what the 
development is. He understands why people are not super crazy about the annexation because they do not know what is going to 
happen.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem closed the public hearing at 6:00 PM.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery shared that all the findings that staff set forth in the staff report were also her findings when she 
reviewed the material for this project.  
 
Motion made by Trustee Bristow seconded by Trustee White to adopt Ordinance 2024-691 annexing certain territory to the 
Town known as the South Weld Annexation No. 1. Motion carried 6-0. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

a. Executive Session Pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(b) with Town legal counsel to discuss ongoing 
litigation related to annexation.  

 
Motion made by Trustee Wescott seconded by Trustee Coen to move to Executive session pursuant to CRS Section 24-6-
402(4)(b) with Town legal counsel to discuss ongoing litigation related to annexation. Motion carried 6-0. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery called the executive session to order at 6:07 PM.  

17



 
 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery adjourned the executive session at 6:28 PM.  
 
ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by Trustee Wescott seconded by Trustee Bristow to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeffery adjourned the meeting at 6:29 PM. 
 
 
 
 

The Board may convene a lawfully called executive session at any time during a regular or special meeting of the Board. 
Michael Mahoney, Mayor of Lochbuie, has authorized issuance of this Notice of Special Meeting in accordance with the 

requirements of Section 2-2-60 of the Lochbuie Municipal Code. 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

   ________                        
Heather Bowen       Michael Mahoney 
Town Clerk        Mayor 

18



 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 2024-15 Authorizing The Town Administrator To 

Execute A Consent To The Partial Assignment And Assumption 
Agreement (Subdivision Improvement And Water Dedication 
Agreement – Blue Lake Filing No. 2) (Phase 2 And 3 
Improvements).  

 
PRESENTED BY: Maureen Juran, Town Attorney 
 
SUMMARY / BACKGROUND 

 
The Town and Lochbuie Land I, LLC (“Lochbuie Land”) entered into a Subdivision 
Improvement and Water Dedication Agreement dated March 6, 2018 (“Agreement”), 
and, as contemplated and allowed under the Agreement, Lochbuie Land has sold off/ is 
selling some (194) of the lots in Filing 2 and desires to transfer and assign all of its right, 
title and interest in and to the SIA to Century Land Holding, LLC (“Assignee”).  The SIA 
provides that the SIA may not be assigned by Lochbuie Land without the written 
consent of the Town by resolution of the Board of Trustees and further provides that 
Town consent to assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed so long as 
the Assignee is financially capable of complying with the requirements for security for 
construction of the public improvements.  Included in your packet is a letter from the 
Assignee addressing its financial capability of complying with the requirements for 
security for construction of the improvements. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve Resolution 2024-15 consenting to the 
requested assignment of the SIA to Assignee as to the 194 lots,  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ACTION REQUIRED 
Staff recommends the following motion: 
 

“I move to approve Resolution 2024-15 Consenting To The Partial Assignment And 
Assumption Agreement (Subdivision Improvement And Water Dedication Agreement 
– Blue Lake Filing No. 2) (Phase 2 And 3 Improvements) ” 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Resolution 2024-15 
• Letter from Century Holdings  

19



 

 

• Partial Assignment And Assumption Agreement (Subdivision Improvement And Water 
Dedication Agreement – Blue Lake Filing No. 2) (Phase 2 And 3 Improvements) 

 
 

20



1 
 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 
COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS 

STATE OF COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 
LOCHBUIE, COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 
TO EXECUTE A CONSENT TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT AND 
ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT (SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AND WATER 
DEDICATION AGREEMENT – BLUE LAKE FILING NO. 2) (PHASE 2 AND 3 
IMPROVEMENTS).  
 
WHEREAS, the Town and Lochbuie Land I, LLC (“Lochbuie Land”) entered into a 

Subdivision Improvement and Water Dedication Agreement - Blue Lake Filing No. 2 (Owner 
Improvements) dated March 6, 2018, as amended by the First Amendment to Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Water Dedication Agreement- Blue Lake Filing No. 2 (Owner 
Improvements) dated December 5, 2023 (as so amended, the "SIA") for the purpose of 
completion of certain subdivision improvements relating to the final plat of Blue Lake 
Subdivision Filing No. 2 as referenced on Exhibit A of the SIA; and 

WHEREAS, Lochbuie Land desires to transfer and assign all of its right, title and interest 
in and to the SIA but only as to 194 lots and appurtenant tracts to be acquired by Century Land 
Holding, LLC (“Assignee”) as identified in that certain Partial Assignment and Assumption 
Agreement entered into or to be entered into between Lochbuie Land and Century Land Holdings 
(“Partial Assignment”) ; and 

 
WHEREAS, in Section 5.6, the SIA provides that the SIA may not be assigned or 

delegated by Lochbuie Land without the written consent of the Town by resolution of the Board of 
Trustees; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 5.5 of the SIA further provides that Town consent to assignment 

shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed so long as the assignee is financially capable of 
complying with the requirements for security for construction of Improvements (as such term is 
defined in the SIA), as set forth in Section 1.4 of the SIA; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Assignee has represented to the Town that it has the financial capability to 

comply with the requirements for security for construction of Improvements (as such term is 
defined in the SIA), as set forth in Section 1.4 of the SIA; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Board of Trustees hereby consents to the Partial Assignment and 

authorizes the Town Administrator to execute the Town consent to such partial assignment in the form 
required by the SIA and the Partial Assignment.  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town 
of Lochbuie, Colorado, the following: 

21



2 
 

 Section 1. The Town Board of Trustees (a) incorporates the above recitations as 
findings of the Board, (b) authorizes the Town Administrator to execute the Town consent in 
the form attached to the Partial Assignment with any such minor modifications as required and 
approved by the Town Attorney. 
  

Section 2. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its approval by the 
Board of Trustees. 

 
ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024. 

 
       
TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 

 
 
 
      

ATTEST:     Michael Mahoney, Mayor  
 
By:       
 Heather Bowen, Town Clerk  

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



Agenda Item Summary (AIS) 

MEETING DATE: 
SUBJECT:  

PRESENTED BY: 

February 20, 2024 
Ordinance 2024-692 repealing and readopting Article III of Chapter 4 governing 
municipal purchasing and declaring an emergency 
Maureen Juran, Town Attorney 

SUMMARY 

This is a request for the Board of Trustees to approve Ordinance 2024-692, which will revise the 
provisions of the Municipal Code that govern the purchase of goods and services.  The Code has language 
outlining the requirements and process for such purchasing that is not identical to the language in the 
Town’s Purchasing Policy, which has been more recently legislatively adopted by the Town.  Thus, 
Ordinance 692 will revise the Code to refer to the Purchasing Policy, which is also legislatively adopted 
and may be amended from time to time as needed in the future.  

The Ordinance is drafted as an emergency ordinance to become immediately effective to avoid 
conflict or the potential for conflict or confusion in Town purchasing.  As purchasing is an ongoing and 
immediate need for the Town to continue to function, immediate effectiveness is suggested as necessary 
to protect public health, safety and welfare. 

 FINANCIAL IMPACTS 

Adoption of Ordinance 2024-692 will have no financial impacts for the Town. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Town staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 2024-692. Staff recommends the following motion:  “I 
move to approve Ordinance 2024-692, An Ordinance Repealing and Readopting Article III of Chapter 4 Of 
The Town Of Lochbuie Municipal Code Governing Municipal Purchasing and Declaring An Emergency.” 

ATTACHMENTS 

• Ordinance 2024-692
• Current Town Purchasing Policy

85



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE 
COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS 

STATE OF COLORADO 
ORDINANCE  NO. 2024-692 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 
REPEALING AND READOPTING ARTICLE III OF CHAPTER 4 OF 

THE LOCHBUIE MUNICIPAL CODE GOVERNING MUNICIPAL 
PURCHASING AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS,  the Town of Lochbuie is statutory town with the authority to manage its 
financial affairs pursuant to part 3 of article 15, title 31, C.R.S.; and 

WHEREAS, Article III of Chapter 4 of the Lochbuie Municipal Code (“Code”) addresses 
municipal contracts and Town purchasing processes; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the Town adopting Article III of Chapter 4 of the Code, the 
Town Board of Trustees legislatively adopted a Purchasing Policy to set forth the Town purchasing 
processes; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to repeal and readopt Article III of Chapter 4 of 
the Code as set forth herein to avoid conflict with the legislatively approved purchasing policy of 
the Town; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees finds that an emergency exists in that its adopted 

purchasing policy and the current provisions of Article III of Chapter 4 of the Code conflict or 
have the potential to be in conflict or cause confusion such that the immediate effectiveness of this 
ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare as set forth herein. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, WELD AND ADAMS COUNTIES, COLORADO: 

Section 1. Recitals Incorporated.  The recitals contained above are incorporated herein 
by reference and are adopted as findings and determinations of the Board of Trustees. 

Section 2. Repeal and readoption of Article III of Chapter 4 of the Code.  

Article III of Chapter 4 of the Lochbuie Municipal Code is hereby repealed and readopted 
to read as follows in its entirety: 

ARTICLE III - Municipal Purchasing 

Sec. 4-3-10. – Adoption of Purchasing Policy.  The Town Board shall adopt a policy to 
govern the procurement or purchase of goods and services by the Town, which policy may be 
amended by the Board of Trustees from time to time.  In the event of a purchase of goods or 
services with funding from federal, state or other third party sources of restricted grant funds 
requiring different procurement processes, the  requirements for the grant or use of such funding 
shall prevail. 

86



Town of Lochbuie 
Ordinance 2024-692 
Page 2 
 

 
 
 
 
Section 3. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance, or the application of such 

provision to any person or circumstance, is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall 
not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
severable.  The Board of Trustees hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and 
each provision thereof, even though any one of the provisions might be declared unconstitutional 
or invalid.  As used in this Section, the term “provision” means and includes any part, division, 
subdivision, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase; the term “application” means and 
includes an application of an ordinance or any part thereof, whether considered or construed alone 
or together with another ordinance or ordinances, or part thereof, of the Town. 
 

Section 4. Safety Clause.  The Board of Trustees hereby finds, determines and 
declares that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the Town of 
Lochbuie, that it is promulgated for the health, safety and welfare of the public, and that this 
Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public 
convenience and welfare.  The Board of Trustees further determines that the Ordinance bears a 
rational relationship to the proper legislative object sought to be obtained.  

Section 5. Repeal.  Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; 
provided, however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive 
any other section or part of any ordinance or code heretofore repealed or superseded and this repeal 
shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or 
committed in violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the effective date of this 
Ordinance. 

 
Section 6.  Emergency Declared; Effective Date The Board adopts the findings of the 

recitals above and legislatively declares that the immediate preservation of the public health and 
safety requires the immediate effectiveness of this Ordinance. The provisions of the Code repealed 
and readopted hereunder as currently codified conflict or have potential to conflict or cause 
confusion with the legislatively approved purchasing policy of the Town and such conflict should 
be immediately resolved to assure continued consistency and integrity in the Town’s management 
of its purchasing and thus its finances.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption as provided by C.R.S. § 31-16-105. 
 
 
  

87



Town of Lochbuie 
Ordinance 2024-692 
Page 3 

ADOPTED by a vote of ¾ of the members of the Board of Trustees with __ in favor, __ against 
and __ abstaining, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED by title only following public hearing, this 
20th day of February, 2024. 

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO 

________________________________ 
Michael Mahoney, Mayor 

I hereby certify that the above Ordinance was adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Town of 
Lochbuie at its meeting of ________________, 2024, and ordered published by title only one time 
by The Brighton Blade newspaper on _________________, 2024. 

[SEAL] 

_____________________________________ 
Heather Bowen, Town Clerk 

I hereby certify that the above Ordinance was adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Town of 
Lochbuie at its meeting of ________________, 2024, and ordered published by title only one time 
by The Brighton Blade newspaper on _________________, 2024. 

______________________________________ 
Heather Bowen, Town Clerk 

88



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Town of Lochbuie 
Procurement Policies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Effective – January 18, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

89



 

2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................... 4 
GENERAL .................................................................................................................................................................................... 4    
DECENTRALIZED PURCHASING .............................................................................................................................................. 4 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES .............................................................................................................................................................. 4 
 PROCUREMENT CONTRARY TO THIS MANUAL ..................................................................................................................... 4 

GENERAL RESTRICTIONS & GUIDELINES ...................................................................... 5 

GENERAL .................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 
GENERAL PROVISIONS/RESTRICTIONS ................................................................................................................................. 5 

PURCHASING PROCESSES .............................................................................................. 6 

PROCUREMENT CLASSIFICATIONS ................................................................................................................................. 6 

PROCUREMENT USING FEDERAL / STATE OR GRANT FUNDS ............................................................................................ 6 

PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES BY CLASSIFICATION ......................................................................................................... 6 
NONRESPONSIVE BIDS/PROPOSALS .............................................................................................................................. 9 

SOLICITATION IRREGULARITIES ................................................................................................................................... 10 

REJECTION OF BIDS/PROPOSALS ................................................................................................................................ 10 

CONFIDENTIALITY ....................................................................................................................................................... 10 

EXEMPTIONS TO FORMAL PROCUREMENT .................................................................................................................... 11 

VALUING PROCUREMENT FOR PURPOSE OF PROPER CLASSIFICATION & PERMISSIBLE RENEWALS/EXTENSIONS .............. 14 

AUTHORIZATION REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................ 16 

GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................................... 16  
RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLIANCE ............................................................................................................................. 16 

PROCEDURES ............................................................................................................................................................ 16 

CONTRACT AUTHORITY .................................................................................................. 17 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT CONTRACTS ......................................................................... 18 

GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................................... 18  
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE & PAYMENT BONDS ........................................................................................................... 18 

INSURANCE ............................................................................................................................................................... 18 

RETAINAGE ................................................................................................................................................................ 19  
DAMAGE OR DELAY .................................................................................................................................................... 19  
REVIEW ..................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

FINAL PAYMENT ......................................................................................................................................................... 19 

DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION ...................................................................................... 20 

GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................................... 20  
GUIDELINES ............................................................................................................................................................... 20 

TOWN ISSUED CREDIT CARDS / PURCHASE CARDS .................................................. 21 

GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................................... 21  
ISSUANCE .................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

CARD USE.................................................................................................................................................................. 21  
PRIOR AUTHORIZATION OF EXPENDITURES .................................................................................................................. 21 

UNACCEPTABLE USES ................................................................................................................................................ 22  

90



 

3 

 

LOST RECEIPTS .......................................................................................................................................................... 22 

DISPUTING TRANSACTIONS ......................................................................................................................................... 22  
CHANGE IN EMPLOYMENT STATUS ............................................................................................................................... 22 

IF CARD IS LOST OR STOLEN ....................................................................................................................................... 22  
MONTHLY STATEMENTS .............................................................................................................................................. 22 

PETTY CASH ..................................................................................................................... 23 

GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................................... 23  
INTERNAL CONTROLS ................................................................................................................................................. 23 

PROCEDURES ............................................................................................................................................................ 23  
REPLENISHMENT ........................................................................................................................................................ 24 

RECEIVING PROCEDURES & CHECK PREPARATION .................................................. 25 

RECEIVING PROCEDURES ........................................................................................................................................... 25  
CHECK PREPARATION ................................................................................................................................................. 25 

REFUNDS .......................................................................................................................... 26 

GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................................... 26  
PROCEDURES ............................................................................................................................................................ 26 

 MISCELLANEOUS PURCHASING ................................................................................... 27 

GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................................... 27  

DEFINITIONS ..................................................................................................................... 28 

 
 
 

APPENDIX A ................................................................................................................. 32-39 

Procurement Policies and Procedures for Federally Funded Programs 
 

Reference 2 CFR 200.318-326 
 

 
 
 

 

  

91



 

4 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

I. General 
 
These Procurement Policies (collectively, the “Policy”) are intended to ensure adequate and uniform control 
of the Town of Lochbuie’s purchasing and payment activities.  Principles and policies incorporated into this 
Policy are in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and applicable State of 
Colorado Law. 
 

All parties involved in the negotiation, performance, or administration of procurement and/or contracts for the 
Town shall act in good faith.  All procurements should be made for the purpose of meeting the Town’s current 
budget goals. 
 

Information in this Policy will be reviewed and updated by the Finance Department as necessary so that the 
maximum use and benefit may be derived in accordance with its intended purpose. Questions on any 
purchasing or payments should be directed to the Finance Director. 
 

II. Decentralized Purchasing 
 

This is a system of purchasing in which limited purchasing authority, responsibility and control is given to the 
Department Heads.  Department Heads are responsible for ensuring personnel in their department are 
knowledgeable of and trained in the purchasing procedures established by this Policy and the Finance 
Department.  By following the requirements established within this Policy, Department Heads shall be able 
to properly plan purchases, to allow sufficient time to obtain proposals, quotations, or bids (with an allowable 
lead time for delivery).  Departments shall not only be able to realize savings through competition between 
vendors but shall also increase efficiency.  Departments may establish procedures specific to their 
Department with approval by the Finance Department. 
 

III. Goals and Objectives 
 
The objective of this Policy is to give employees guidelines that set a standard when purchasing goods or 
services on behalf of the Town, provide for the most efficient use of taxpayer's dollars, and provide for timely 
purchases by being easy to interpret, with the best overall cost, quality, and quantity. In selecting products 
and service providers, the Town considers and weighs all the following criteria: 
 
 1. Pricing:  Ensure the Town receives the required product or services at the lowest possible 
  cost and highest value.  
 2. Competition:  Provides vendors equal opportunity to sell to the Town. 
 3. Quality/Experience:  Using the purchasing and bidding parameters, acquire the   
  highest quality product and service for the Town. 
 4. Customer Service:  Vendor is consistent, reliable, and timely throughout the procurement  
  process. 
 
IV. Procurement Contrary to this Manual 
 
Except as may be otherwise provided by law, it shall be unlawful for any Town officer or employee to order 
or purchase goods and/or services contrary to the policy and rules set forth herein. 

92



 

5 

 

GENERAL RESTRICTIONS AND GUIDELINES 
 
I. General 
 
All purchases shall be made in accordance with the policies prescribed in this Policy.  Any procurement or 
agreement made contrary to these policies shall not be binding to the Town.  
 
II. General Provisions/Restrictions 
 

A. No personal purchases may be made using Town funds.  Purchasing guidelines provided 
within this Policy may be utilized only in the interest of the Town. 

 

B. Only Town employees, with valid Town identification and department head’s authorization, 
may purchase utilizing Town funds. 

 

C. Purchases must be charged to the proper account, regardless of budget availability in that 
line item. 

 
D. Alcohol may not be purchased with Town funds, except for Town sponsored events. 
 
E. Sales tax is not to be charged on purchases.  The Town’s tax-exempt number should be 

given to the vendor before the sale is completed.  The Town’s tax-exempt certificate is 
available from the Finance Department. 

 
F. All Town personnel, including employees, elected officials, and volunteers, are obligated to 

establish and maintain ethical relationships with all vendors or suppliers of Town goods and 
services.  Acceptance or solicitation of entertainment, loans, gifts, or special consideration 
from vendors or suppliers for personal benefit by Town personnel is limited per state law.  
No employee or official of the Town shall participate in a transaction, contract, activity, or 
service of the Town which has a direct or predictable effect on the employee’s/official’s 
financial interest or the financial interests of an employee’s/official’s immediate family 
member or is otherwise prohibited by law. 

 
G. No multi-year financing obligations (i.e., space rentals, copier leases, etc.) may be entered 

into without the review and concurrence of the Finance Director, the Town Administrator, 
and the Board of Trustees unless the total amount to be paid on such obligation is within the 
amount that the Town Administrator is authorized to approve hereunder. 

 
H. All purchases by the Town require that funds for the purchase have been budgeted and 

appropriated.  Requests that are not budgeted must be approved by the Town Board.  In the 
case of emergency purchases, the Town Administrator must approve the expenditure and 
seek a budget amendment and appropriation, if necessary, at the next Board of Trustees 
meeting.     

 
 
 

93



 

6 

 

PURCHASING PROCESSES 
 
I. Procurement Classifications 
 
The following procurement classifications shall determine the procurement method and approvals required 
as set forth in this Policy. 
 

Procurement 
Classifications 

Procurement Value /  
Dollar Limit 

Type of Purchase Approvals 

1 < $5,000 Informal Purchase Department Head 
or designee 

2 $5,001 - $25,000 Semiformal 
Purchase 

Department Head 
Town Administrator 

3 > $25,000 Formal Purchase Department Head  
Town Administrator 
Board of Trustees 

 

II. Procurement for Purchases of Goods or Services Using Federal, State or Grant Funds 
 

When any procurement involves the expenditure of federal or state funds or restricted grant funds, the 
procurement shall be conducted in accordance with any mandatory applicable federal and/or state laws, 
regulations, or grant requirements. The procurement requirements for any procurement involving the 
expenditure of federal funds shall, at a minimum, comply with the requirements of Appendix A, incorporated 
herein.  In the event of a conflict between such federal fund procurement requirements and the requirements 
of the Town as otherwise set forth herein, the stricter requirements shall apply. 

 
III. Procurement Procedures By Classification 
 

PROCUREMENT CLASSIFICATION 1: Informal Purchase.  Informal purchase procurement is 
utilized for the purchase of goods and services under $5,000 and such purchases require only that 
the Town staff member making the purchase ensures that a reasonable and adequate number of 
price checks or quotes is made by email, personal inspection, or discussions with vendors to ensure 
a quality product or service is obtained and best value is determined.   
 
PROCUREMENT CLASSIFICATION 2: Semiformal Purchase.  Semiformal purchase procurement 
is utilized for the purchase of goods and services of $5,000 up to $25,000.  A reasonable and 
adequate number of price checks or quotes of no less than three (3) should be solicited by email, 
personal inspection, or discussions with vendors to ensure a quality product or service is obtained 
and best value is determined.  Prior to commencing any purchase classified as Semiformal 
Procurement, the proposed purchase and process shall be reviewed by the Finance Director. 
 
PROCUREMENT CLASSIFICATION 3:  Formal Purchase.  Formal purchase procurement is utilized 
for the purchase of goods and services greater than $25,000 and requires a competitive sealed 
process such as an Invitation for Bid (IFB), Reverse Auction, or Request for Proposal (RFP) process.  
Prior to commencing any purchase classified as Formal Procurement, the proposed purchase and 
process shall be reviewed by the Finance Director.  One of the following procedures may be utilized 

94



 

7 

 

to fulfill Formal Procurement requirements at the direction of the Department Head in consultation 
with the Finance Director:  

A. Invitation for Bid (IFB).  Unless otherwise provided in a specific IFB, the following shall 
control: 

i. Generally.  The IFB is a method of source selection in which the award is made to 
the responsive and responsible bidder submitting the lowest cost bid that complies 
with the detailed specifications and/or scope of work contained in the IFB.  An IFB 
shall include specifications and all contractual terms and conditions applicable to 
the procurement, as well as the bid opening place, time and date.  Bids are sealed 
and opened in public at the time and place as set forth in the IFB, unless all bidders 
have been notified by the Town of a change in the time or place by written addendum 
to the IFB.  A tabulation of all received and opened bids shall be formulated and 
made available for public inspection.  

ii. Bid Submission and Bid Evaluation.  Bids shall be unconditional and submitted 
without alteration or correction except as authorized in this subsection.  Bids shall 
be evaluated based on the requirements set forth in the IFB, which may include 
criteria to determine acceptability, such as inspection, testing, quality, workmanship, 
delivery and suitability for a particular purpose.  Those criteria that shall affect the 
price and be considered in evaluation for award shall be objectively measurable, 
such as discounts, allowances, transportation costs and total or life cycle costs.   

iii. Specifications.  Specifications shall be made available to all interested parties as 
stated in the IFB.  If for any reason whatsoever it is necessary to change the 
specifications or any other of the formal data and there is adequate time as 
determined by the Department Head prior to the date of bid opening, an addendum 
shall be issued setting forth the changes.  It shall be the obligation of bidders to 
ensure they have received all addenda.  

iv. Bid Submission.  Bids must be received prior to the specified time as established in 
the IFB.  Bids may be received earlier and shall be kept sealed and confidential until 
the bid opening.  Bids received after the specified deadline may be immediately 
returned to the nonresponsive submitter unopened. 

v. Bid Opening.  The opening of sealed bids shall be conducted in a manner to protect 
confidentiality and to ensure fairness.   

vi. Correction or Withdrawal of Bids.  Correction or withdrawal of inadvertently 
erroneous bids before and after a bid opening may be permitted in accordance with 
the IFB.  

vii. Award.  Generally, an award shall be made by written notice to the lowest 
responsible and responsive bidder whose bid meets the requirements and criteria 
set forth in the IFB including, without limitation, consideration of performance on 
similar projects or contracts, letters of reference and prior performance with the 
Town.  The Town retains the right to reject or modify any bids, awards always being 
subject to negotiation and execution of a mutually acceptable agreement.  The Town 

95



 

8 

 

reserves the right to review and award bids at its discretion to responsive and 
responsible companies which may or may not be the low bidder. 

B. Request for Proposal (RFP).  Unless otherwise provided in a specific RFP, the following 
shall control: 

i. Competitive Sealed Proposal/Competitive Negotiation Process.  Proposals shall be 
solicited through a RFP process when, for example: (1) the Department Head or 
his/her designee determines that the complex nature or technical details of a 
particular procurement make the use of competitive sealed bidding either not 
practical or not advantageous to the Town; (2) specifications cannot fairly or 
objectively be prepared as to permit sufficient competition; (3) high technology and 
electronic equipment is available from a limited number of sources; or (4) 
specifications cannot practically be prepared except by reference to specifications 
of the equipment of a single source of supply. 

ii. Receipt of Proposals.  Sealed proposals shall be submitted at the time and place as 
set forth in the RFP.  Only the names of the proposer will be read in public at the 
time proposals are due.  No proposals shall be opened until the time designated in 
the proposal document or addenda.  

iii. Evaluation Factors.  Proposal evaluation criteria shall be as set forth in the RFP.  
Final consideration for awarding of contract shall not be based solely on price.  A 
combination of qualifications, experience, demonstrated successes, references, 
fees and costs, capacity to fulfill all requirements of the contract and other qualifying 
considerations may be considered for evaluation purposes. 

iv. Discussion with Responsible Proposers and Revisions to Proposals.  As provided 
in the RFP, discussions may be conducted with responsible proposers who submit 
proposals determined to have a reasonable likelihood of being selected for award.  

v. Award.  Award shall be made to the responsible proposer whose proposal is 
determined to be the most advantageous to the Town, taking into consideration 
price and evaluation factors.  This process may include discussions and negotiation 
between the Town and proposer.  The Town retains the right to reject or modify any 
proposals, awards always being subject to negotiation and execution of a mutually 
acceptable agreement.   

 

C. Request for Qualifications (RFQ).   

i. Pre-Qualifying Submitters or Multi-Step Sealed Bidding.  When it is considered 
impractical to initially prepare a purchase description to support an award based on 
price, prior to the issuance of a Soliciting Document, the Town may determine to 
issue a Request for Qualification, RFQ, requesting the submission of un-priced 
offers to be followed by a Soliciting Document limited to those bidders whose offers 
have been determined to be technically acceptable under the criteria set forth in the 
first solicitation. Only the providers of products or services that meet the 
specifications or experience will be permitted to submit bids or cost proposals.  In 
addition, the RFQ process is used when the desired services are not as well defined 

96



 

9 

 

and depend on the submitter’s ability to appropriately identify and address the 
problem(s) or issue(s).  This process is most often used for selection of professional 
services.  The submitters submit statements of qualifications, and the Town then 
issues a Soliciting Document limited to those submitters whose response to the RFQ 
have indicated ability and satisfied other criteria such that the Town desires to seek 
a proposal from such Submitter. 

ii. In determining whether to issue an initial Soliciting Document only to Pre-Qualified 
Submitters, the Department Head shall consider the best interests of the Town and 
may consider whether a project or contract:  

a. requires complex or unusual expertise or techniques; 

b. involves a particularly tight time frame;  

c. involves experience in a very specific field; or 

d. has a projected budget of $500,000 or more. 

iii. The method of submitting pre-qualification information and the information required 
in order to be pre-qualified shall be determined by the Department Head. 

 

IV. Nonresponsive Bids/Proposals 

A. Defined.  A responsive bid/proposal is one that is in substantial conformance with the 
requirements of the Soliciting Document.   

B. Determination of Nonresponsiveness.  The following are examples of nonresponsive submittals: 

i. A Submitter who fails to deliver a bid/proposal prior to the specified place, time and date 
as shown on the Soliciting Document is considered late and the bid/proposal shall not 
be opened. 

ii. A Submitter who fails in the bid/proposal to conform to required delivery schedules as 
set forth in the Soliciting Documents or in the permissible alternatives. 

iii. A Submitter who qualifies prices in such a manner that the firm’s bid/proposal price 
cannot be determined (such as “price in effect at time of delivery”). 

iv. A Submitter who fails to offer goods or services that comply with the specifications of 
the Soliciting Document. 

v. A Submitter who makes the Town the responsible party for determining that the bidder’s 
alternative products or services conform to the specifications. 

vi. A Submitter who fails to furnish bid surety when required. 

vii. A Submitter who limits the rights of the Town under any contract clause unless 
information on such limitations are invited. 

97



 

10 

 

V. Solicitation Irregularities   

The Department Head has authority to waive irregularities if: (a) the item being waived is only a matter of 
form or is an immaterial variation from the exact requirements set forth in the Soliciting Document; (b) the 
item being waived has trivial or no effect on price, quality, quantity, delivery or performance; and (c) such a 
waiver would not affect the relative standing of bidders or proposers or be otherwise prejudicial to them.  
Examples of minor irregularities that may be waived are: 

A. Failure to furnish with the bid certain required information regarding the vendor’s qualifications 
to perform the contract. 

B. Failure to submit required descriptive information on the products offered. 

C. Failure to return the proper number of executed bids or attachments, including certifications and 
affidavits. 

D. Failure to return a bid addendum or amendment if on the face of such bid the bidder 
acknowledges receipt of addendum or amendment or if the addendum or amendment does not 
have material effect on the bidder’s liability under the terms of the contract. 

E. Failure to sign a bid, when evidence is submitted with the bid that clearly shows that the bid was 
the one intended by the bidder and that failure to sign was strictly an oversight. 

When such minor irregularities are discovered, the Submitter is requested to remedy the problem within a 
reasonable timeframe by later submitting omitted data or by providing a written statement of intent. 

VI. Rejection of Bids/Proposals  

Unless otherwise specified in the Soliciting Document, bids/proposals may be rejected when one or more of 
the following occur: 

A. Bids/proposals exceed the budgeted amount; 

B. There are no responsible Submitters; 

C. There are no responsive Submitters; 

D. The project is abandoned;  

E. The specifications, scope and/or terms and conditions are revised; or 

F. Irregularities exist in the procurement process as determined by the Department Head and/or 
the Town Administrator. 

V. Confidentiality 

To the extent permitted by the Colorado Open Records Act and consistent with any language in the Soliciting 
Document, after solicitations are opened, they become confidential documents until the Town awards the 
contract or the solicitation project is cancelled.  Staff, contractors and Town officials shall not discuss 
solicitations with competing vendors.  Vendor questions must be referred to the Department Head.  Unless 

98



 

11 

 

directed to do so by the Town Administrator, Staff shall not discuss with any vendor the recommended award 
or the reasons for awarding or not awarding. 
 
VI. Exemptions to Formal Procurement 

 
A. Procurement Classification 1 and 2 purchases do not require formal procurement processes. 
 
B. Regardless of dollar amount, the following purchases are exempted from the requirement to 

engage in formal procurement processes: 
 

i. Cooperative Purchases.  Purchases made cooperatively with other units of government 
such as the State of Colorado and government cooperative groups utilizing extended 
awards from other governmental agencies. 

ii. Piggybacked Purchases.  Purchases made by piggybacking on prices, bids and offers 
made to other units of government such as the State of Colorado or other counties, 
municipalities or special districts when agreeable by the vendor and the Town 
determines such approach is in the best interests of the Town.  

iii. Government Contracts.  Purchases/contracts with federal, state and local government 
and political subdivisions of the state. 

iv. Published Materials.  Purchases of magazines, books, publications and periodicals. 
 
v. Purchases of water or real property rights. All such purchases require approval of the 

Town Board. 

vi. Hardship.  Purchases in the presence of hardship, which exemption requires satisfaction 
of the following criteria and approval procedure:  

 
a. Exemption shall be granted when formal procurement is deemed not to be in the 

best interest of the Town because, due to circumstances beyond the reasonable 
control of the person or department requesting the waiver: 

1. the process may cause unavoidable time delay or unavoidable hardship for 
a department of the Town; or 

2. the process may cause undue expense for the Town. 

 
b. In order for an exemption to be granted:  

1. the Department Head requesting the exemption must complete an 
Exemption Request Form as provided by the Finance Director; 

2. the completed Exemption Request Form must be submitted to the Finance 
Director for a recommendation and signature; and 

3. the Exemption Request Form with the Finance Director’s recommendation 
must be submitted to the Town Administrator for final authorization of the 
exemption. 

99



 

12 

 

vii. Sole Source.  Purchases of supplies, products or services indispensable to the Town for 
which there is only one source practicably or reasonably available, which exemption 
requires satisfaction of the following criteria and approval procedure: 

a. $5,001 to $25,000. To take advantage of the sole source exemption for purchases 
between $5,001 and $25,000, Department Heads are responsible for selection and 
contract administration.  Semiformal procurement processes are not required; 
however, Department Heads are responsible for selection based on applicable and 
appropriate qualifications, experience, referenced successes and cost factors.  The 
Finance Director must approve reliance on this exemption in writing in advance. 

b. Over $25,000.  To take advantage of the sole source exemption for purchases with 
a total cost of over $25,000, Department Heads are responsible for selection and 
contract administration.  Formal procurement processes are not required; however, 
Department Heads are responsible for providing the written justification for the 
exemption and obtaining written approval before engaging any such exempted 
services or procuring exempted goods.  Approval must be obtained in accordance 
with the following procedure.   

1. the Department Head requesting the exemption must complete the 
Exemption Approval Form as provided by the Finance Director; 

2. the completed Exemption Approval Form must be submitted to the Finance 
Director for a recommendation and signature; and 

3. the Exemption Approval Form with the Finance Director’s recommendation 
must be submitted to the Town Administrator for final authorization of the 
exemption. 

viii. Professional Services.  Contracts for professional services from certain professional, 
technical and expert service providers which exemption requires satisfaction of the 
following criteria and approval procedure: 

 
a. Criteria.  To take advantage of the exemption, the following criteria must be met: 

1. the service provider has such required specialized knowledge, skill, 
reputation and/or experience to satisfy the specialized needs of the 
department or Town; and 

2. the service provider provides services recognized as professional in nature 
by licensure, certification or other specialized training such as accountants, 
actuaries, appraisers, architects, attorneys, business consultants, business 
development managers, specialized engineers, public relations 
professionals, public finance professionals, recruiters, researchers, real 
estate brokers, or translators; and 

3. the service provider proposes a reasonable approach to achieve the project 
or service objectives in an acceptable timeframe; 

4. the service provider has a satisfactory record of performance in developing 
and implementing similar projects or providing similar services in other 
jurisdictions; and 

100



 

13 

 

5. the service provider will perform the project or services at a reasonable cost 
compared with the level of effort expended. 

b. $5,001 and to $25,000.  To take advantage of the professional services exemption 
for purchases between $5,001 and $25,000, Department Heads are responsible for 
selection and contract administration.  Semiformal procurement processes are not 
required; however, Department Heads are responsible for selection based on 
applicable and appropriate qualifications, experience, referenced successes and 
cost factors.  The Finance Director must approve reliance on this exemption in 
writing in advance. 

c. Over $25,000.  To take advantage of the professional services exemption for 
purchases with a total cost of over $25,000, Department Heads are responsible for 
selection and contract administration.  Formal procurement processes are not 
required; however, Department Heads are responsible for providing the written 
justification for the exemption and obtaining written approval before engaging any 
such exempted services or procuring exempted goods.  Approval must be obtained 
in accordance with the following procedure.   

1. the Department Head requesting the exemption must complete the 
Exemption Approval Form as provided by the Finance Director; 

2. the completed Exemption Approval Form must be submitted to the Finance 
Director for a recommendation and signature; and 

3. the Exemption Approval Form with the Finance Director’s recommendation 
must be submitted to the Town Administrator for final authorization of the 
exemption.  

ix. Emergency Purchases.  Emergency purchases which exemption requires satisfaction 
of the following criteria and approval procedures: 

a. Criteria.  To take advantage of the exemption, the following criteria must be met: 

1. dangerous condition, potentially dangerous condition, or immediate need 
for supplies, equipment or services exists requiring the purchase to protect 
the public safety, health or welfare of citizens when in imminent jeopardy; 

2. immediate repair is necessary to prevent further damage to public property, 
machinery or equipment;   

3. the functioning and operation of a Town department would be seriously 
hampered or delayed through use of the normal purchasing process; or 

4. equipment breakdown or act of God threatens to terminate essential 
services. 

b. Process. 

1. To take advantage of the emergency purchase exemption, the appropriate 
Department Head must contact the Town Administrator and provide the 
following information: 

a. The nature of the emergency; 

101



 

14 

 

b. The estimated cost of the services/goods required; and 

c. The vendor recommended to receive/fulfill the order. 

2. The Town Administrator may authorize the procurement of such emergency 
needs by informal procedures, as expeditiously as possible, at not more 
than commercially reasonable prices.  When expenditures exceed the then-
effective Town Administrator approval authority, a full report of the 
circumstances necessitating the emergency action shall be timely reported 
to the Board of Trustees by the Town Administrator. 

x. Fine Art.  The material qualifies as an object of fine art. 

xi. Materials Conformity.  A particular material is required to match materials currently in 
use by the Town.  

xii. OEM Parts.  Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) repair parts purchased from the 
source vendor.  

xiii. Original Provider Maintenance and Support.  Annual maintenance and service 
agreements when the terms of the original purchase specify that the original provider 
performs ongoing maintenance.  

xiv. Additional Materials or Services. Procurement resulting from a formal procurement 
process may be used as the basis for the negotiated purchase of additional quantities 
of the same materials or services at any time; provided, however, that subsequent 
procurements are expressly limited to the specific terms, conditions and pricing 
established by the original procurement.   

 

VII. Valuing Procurement for Purpose of Proper Classification and Permissible 
Renewals/Extensions 

a. Purchases shall not be artificially divided to circumvent the procurement classification and 
associated procurement process above.  

b.  If numerous items are being purchased from one vendor on a single order, the aggregate price 
is the determining factor regarding procurement classification. 

c. In determining procurement value when purchasing services by contract or purchase order, the 
following guidelines shall be used: 

i. If services are provided on a lump sum basis, the lump sum amount shall determine the 
value of the procurement.  If lump sum services are compensated on an annual basis 
(instead of on a one-time basis) the procurement value shall be determined by multiplying 
the annual lump sum amount by the number of years in the term (not to include optional as 
opposed to automatic) renewal terms contemplated by the contract.   

ii. If services are provided on a time and materials basis, the value of the procurement shall be 
determined by multiplying the annual maximum or not-to-exceed compensation by the 
number of years in the term (not to include optional as opposed to automatic renewal terms 
contemplated by the contract). 

102



 

15 

 

iii. If a contract is for fees to be retained by a vendor (such as banking agreements) and not 
actual expenditures of the Town (no additional checks or payments are issued to the 
vendor), an estimate of the cost to the Town (retained fees) shall provide the basis for 
procurement value determination.  If the estimate is erroneous, actual cost shall be used for 
determining value at renewal time or when resoliciting for such services. 

iv. A clause which permits termination of the contract or other form of purchase agreement 
before the end of its stated term, to include for non-appropriation, shall not be considered in 
determining procurement value. 

v. The Finance Department shall have the ultimate authority to determine final procurement 
value for any contract or other form of purchase agreement.  

d. Contracts may be extended, renewed or amended to extend or renew without further 
procurement action or additional approvals only if: 

i. The Soliciting Document contemplated amendment or optional renewal terms; and 

ii. the contract specifically recognized that renewal or amendment was an option; and 

iii. approval of the contract as set forth in the table above was at the level that would be required 
for the contract adding in the additional compensation payable due to the extension, renewal 
or amendment; and 

iv. any additional services or service scope change are reasonably related to the services 
contracted for in the original contract; and 

v. the aggregate dollar value of the compensation payable under the term and the renewal or 
extension term(s) (with or without additional compensation for reasonably related additional 
services) does not equal a value greater than a threshold amount for an elevated 
procurement classification level (ex. 2 year contract for $6,000/year can be renewed for 
additional one year term as the value of the term ($12,000) plus the renewal ($6,000) equals 
$18,000 and does not reach the Classification 3 threshold). 

 

Additional Considerations: 
 

 Electronically transmitted bids are acceptable for informal written bids, provided the bid is a firm 
written price or quote for specific goods or services valid for no less than 30 days.  

 Contracts for service shall include a Town Attorney- approved Professional Services Agreement.  
 If the recommended bid is not the lowest, a detailed explanation must accompany the bid’s 

submission.  
 Resolutions are required for all service contracts and bids presented to the Board of Trustees for 

approval.   
 If less than the required number of informal or formal bids are received, the Town may consider 

seeking additional bids if time allows. If less than the number of required bids is received, the Town 
may award to a bidder if the Town finds that the price is fair and reasonable, and that other 
prospective bidders had a reasonable opportunity to respond. 

103



 

16 

 

AUTHORIZATION REQUIREMENTS 
 
I. General 
 
Signature authority is granted on an individual basis and must be consistent with Section I above.  All 
departments shall keep current a list of designated staff authorized to approve Town expenditures.  The list 
shall include the full signatures and initials of each authorized individual and the amount of signature 
authorization granted to the individual.   
 
II. Responsibility for Compliance 

 
Ultimate responsibility for expenditures within each department is placed on the relevant department head. 
 
III. Procedures 
 

A. A Signature Authorization Summary must be submitted to the Finance Department on an 
annual basis (January 1).  

 
B. The Finance Department shall be responsible for deleting signature authority for terminated 

employees.  Should authority need to be revoked prior to termination, the applicable 
department shall be responsible for notifying the Finance Department. 

 
C. All changes and additions to the Signature Authorization Summary must be submitted in 

writing and must include the following information: 
 

Name of employee 
Title 
Authorization amount 
Effective date 
Employee signature and initials 
Signature of employee delegating authorization 

 
D. Unless signature authorization has been formally delegated, no employee shall sign on 

behalf of another otherwise authorized employee.  Written notification of delegation must be 
sent to the Finance Department. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

104



 

17 

 

CONTRACT AUTHORITY 
 
I. The Town Administrator shall have the power and duty to approve and execute, by signature, all 

contracts or agreements of, or on behalf of, the Town or its enterprises, subject to the following 
limitations: 

 
 A. The Town Attorney must review and approve contracts as to form. 
 
 B. No contract or agreement shall exceed $25,000.  Contracts or agreement exceeding 

$25,000 shall require Town Board approval. 
 
C. No contract or agreement shall involve conveyances of interest in land, water, bonds, 

indentures, evidence of indebtedness, or proclamations, unless the authority to approve and 
execute such documents shall be granted by the Town Board. 

 
D. Such contract or agreement does not constitute an “intergovernmental agreement” under 

Colorado law. 
 
E. It shall be the Town Administrator’s duty to ensure that all Town contracts and agreements 

are procured in compliance with the requirements of the Lochbuie Municipal Code and any 
applicable rules and regulations. 

 
F. The Town Administrator may delegate the Town Administrator’s signatory authority for the 

approval and execution of contracts and agreements to Department Heads where the 
contractual matters fall within their area of responsibility.  With the Town Administrator’s prior 
approval, Department Heads may further delegate signatory authority for limited purposes.  

  
G. No Town contract shall be approved or executed unless funds for the payment of obligations 

under the contract or agreement are in the Budget approved by the Town Board and the 
funds have been appropriated by the Town Board.  This section shall not prohibit approval 
and execution of multi-year contracts or agreements where such agreements are legally 
permissible. 

  

105



 

18 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT CONTRACTS 
 
I. General 
 
The Capital Improvement Contracts Policy applies to any capital improvement contract that the Town enters 
into.  A Town Project Manager (or Town contact person) MUST be designated for each capital improvement 
project and specified within the contract.  This individual will be accountable for all aspects of proper contract 
administration surrounding the construction in progress. Refer also to Procurement Procedures By 
Classification for information on the bidding process. Each department and its personnel are responsible 
for the effective planning for its capital improvement projects. 
 
II. Contract Performance and Payment Bonds 
 

A. When a capital improvement contract is awarded, unless the Town Administrator or 
designee deems otherwise, the following bonds or security shall be delivered to the Town 
and shall become binding on the parties upon the execution of the contract: 

 
1. Bid security in an amount equal to five (5) percent of the total amount of bid may be 

required for all competitive sealed bidding for capital improvement contracts.  Bid 
security shall be a bond provided by a surety company authorized to do business in 
this state, or the equivalent in certified funds, or otherwise supplied in a form 
satisfactory to the Town.   

 
When the invitation for bid requires security, noncompliance requires that the bid be 
rejected. 

 
2. A performance bond, satisfactory to the Town, executed by a surety company 

authorized to do business in this state, or otherwise secured in a manner satisfactory 
to the Town, in an amount equal to one hundred (100) percent of the price specified 
in the contract; and 

 
3. A payment bond, satisfactory to the Town, executed by a surety company 

authorized to do business in this state, or otherwise secured in a manner satisfactory 
to the Town for the protection of all persons supplying labor and material to the 
contractor or its subcontractors for the performance of the work provided for in the 
contract, in an amount equal to one hundred (100) percent of the price specified in 
the contract. 

 
B. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit the authority of the Town to require a bond 

or other security in addition to the bonding requirements as stated above. 
 
III. Insurance 
 

Contract documents must require the contractor to procure and maintain minimum insurance coverage at the 
direction of or as prescribed by standard contract forms by the Town Attorney. 
 

106



 

19 

 

IV. Retainage 
 

The contract shall include provisions for retainage of contract sums as prescribed by state law and may 
include provisions for retainage in contracts not covered by state law. 
 
V. Damage or Delay 

 
The Town may, by contract, require the contractor to waive, release, or extinguish its rights to recover costs 
or damages, or obtain an equitable adjustment, for delays in performing such contract if such delay is caused, 
in whole or in part, by the acts or omissions of the Town or its agents, if the contract provides that an extension 
of time for completion of the work is the contractor’s remedy for such delay.  Such clause is valid and 
enforceable, any provision of state law to the contrary notwithstanding. 

 
VI. Review 

 
Contracts are to be reviewed by the Town Attorney. Generally, all contracts/agreements should use the 
Town’s standard form. Exceptions can only be approved by the Town Attorney or Town Administrator. 

 
VII. Final Payment 
 
The last payment on a capital improvement contract, in an amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or more, 
will not be made until at least ten (10) days after notice of intention to pay is published at least twice in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the Town and after the Town has received a release of statements of 
claim or liens. Proof of publication should be submitted to the Finance Department.  Claims against the 
contract shall be filed as prescribed by state law.   
  

107



 

20 

 

DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION 
 
I. General 
 
The Town Administrator is authorized to debar or suspend a vendor or contractor for just cause.  
 
II. Guidelines 
 

A. No vendor or contractor shall be debarred or suspended until an opinion regarding the same 
has been obtained from the Town Attorney and until procedures recommended by the Town 
Attorney have been followed. 

 
B. The period for debarment shall be determined by the Town Administrator on a case-by-case 

basis. 
 

C. Reasons for debarment or suspension include the following: 
 
1. Commission of fraud or a criminal offense as an incident to obtaining or attempting 

to obtain a public or private contract or subcontract or in the performance of such a 
contract or subcontract. 

 
2. Conviction or indictment under a state or federal statute of embezzlement, theft, 

forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of records, or receiving stolen property. 
 

3. Conviction or indictment under a state or federal antitrust statute. 
 

4. Failure or default without good cause to perform in accordance with the terms of 
any contract or unsatisfactory performance of any contract. 

 
5. Debarment, disqualification, or suspension by another government entity for any 

reason. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

108



 

21 

 

TOWN ISSUED CREDIT CARDS / PURCHASE CARDS 

 
I. General 
 

The purpose of this Policy is to maintain the financial integrity of the Town’s funds.   This Policy applies to all 
items procured using a Town-issued purchase or credit card. The use of a Town issued card is a privilege 
and should be treated as such.  

 

II. Issuance 
 
Town cards may be issued to Department Heads or other personnel as authorized by the Town Administrator 
and Finance Director. 
 

III. Card Use 
 
Card purchases are limited to those transactions completed upon purchase. Purchaser shall verify the 
availability of the item being charged when placing a telephone or fax order.  Back orders should not be 
charged until time of shipment.  Purchaser shall verify that the combined price and freight charge being 
charged is under the purchaser's signature authority dollar limit.  Purchaser shall also verify that sales tax is 
not being charged. A copy of the tax-exempt certificate is available from the Finance Department. 
 
When placing an order by FAX, phone, or mail, purchaser shall request that the receiver’s name and “credit 
card purchase” be put on the shipping label or packing list to expedite delivery and request that a receipt 
be sent with the purchase.  All charges will require a receipt be attached. 
 
The Internet may be used to place orders only when the receiving website is secure.  To determine whether 
a website is secure, look for a closed padlock in the search bar by the site’s name.  If the padlock is open or 
non-existent, the website is not secure and should not be used for placing orders. 
 
If merchandise is to be returned, verify that the vendor will credit the purchasing card account, request a copy 
of the credit issued, and submit it with the monthly credit card statement. 
 
If an attempt to make a purchasing card transaction is denied, contact the Finance Department as soon as 
possible to resolve the problem.  If there is concern that a transaction may be denied, contact the Finance 
Department in advance to authorize the vendor, or ask the vendor to run a pre-authorization on the 
purchasing card to make sure the transaction will go through. 

 
IV. Prior Authorization of Expenditures 
 

Proper approvals must be obtained for the purchase of goods and services prior to ordering as with any other 
Town purchase.   

 

  

109



 

22 

 

 

V. Unacceptable Uses 
 

 Purchases over the holder’s signature authority limit.  Dividing an order to satisfy this limit is not 
allowed. 

 Cash advances, traveler’s checks, or the use of ATM machines. 

 Fuel for personal vehicles.  Reimbursement for mileage must be made on the Expense 
Reimbursement Form at the current IRS reimbursement rate. 

 Personal or non-business uses. If personal or non-business-related items are accidentally charged 
on the card, immediately notify the Finance Department, and reimburse the Town via cash, credit, or 
a personal check payable to the Town of Lochbuie, with a note attached showing the account to be 
credited.  Reimbursement must be completed at or before the time of statement reconciliation.  
Repeated occurrences of personal or non-business-related items being charged to the card and/or 
intentional misuse of the card may result in charging privileges being revoked and disciplinary action 
taken. 

 
VI. Lost Receipts 
 
If a receipt is lost, or was never provided by the vendor, a “Missing Purchasing Card Receipt Form” (available 
on the Town server) shall be completed and attached to the monthly credit card statement. 
 
VII. Disputing Transactions 
 
If there is a dispute about a transaction, the cardholder should first try to resolve it with the merchant.  If an 
item has been charged but has not been received, contact the merchant to verify shipment date.  If the item 
has been or will be shipped soon, it is recommended that the charge be paid at the time of the statement.  If 
charges are paid but not received by the next statement, contact the Finance Department for assistance in 
resolving the problem. 
 
VIII. Change in Employment Status 
 
The cardholder will surrender possession of his/her card upon termination of employment.  The cardholder 
may be asked to surrender the card at any time deemed necessary by the Department Head, the Finance 
Director, or the Town Administrator. 
 
IX. If Card is Lost or Stolen 
 
Keep the card in a safe place at all times.  Contact the Finance Department immediately if the card is lost or 
stolen.  If this contact cannot be made, call the card issuer immediately and then notify Finance as soon as 
possible. 
 
X. Monthly Statements 

 
It will be the responsibility of the Department Head to reconcile the monthly credit card statement to receipts.  
Reconciled statements must be forwarded to the Finance Department within one (1) week of statement 
receipt. 

110



 

23 

 

 

PETTY CASH  
 
I. General 
 
Petty cash is available to cover small purchases (not to exceed $25), may be disbursed as an advance or 
reimbursement, and must be approved by the employee’s Department Head or designee. 
 
II. Internal Controls 
 

A. Petty cash funds may only be established, or the amount of the petty cash on deposit 
increased or decreased, by the Finance Director or designee. 

 
B. Petty cash must be kept in a locked box in a secured location.   

 
C. The Finance Department is responsible for ensuring that the cash in the box plus the total 

of all petty cash slips exactly equals the total amount assigned to petty cash funds.  
 
III. Procedures 
 

Cash Advance/Reimbursement 
 

A. To obtain a cash advance for a petty cash purchase, a petty cash slip must be filled out by 
the employee indicating the following: 

 
1. Amount of advance 
2. Vendor 
3. Account number 
4. Description of purchase 
5. Date 
6. Employee’s signature 
7. Approval signature  

 
The slip is kept in the petty cash box until the employee returns with the cash receipt.  The 
actual amount of the purchase should be recorded and circled on the petty cash slip, the 
cash receipt stapled to the petty cash slip, and the change from the advance returned to the 
petty cash box.  Cash advances may not be held by the employees for more than two (2) 
business days. 

 
B. To obtain reimbursement for a purchase made, a petty cash slip must be filled out by the 

employee indicating the same as in III. A. above. 
 

Attach the cash receipt to the petty cash slip.  The slip is then exchanged for a cash 
reimbursement. 

 

111



 

24 

 

C. The $25 limit shall not be circumvented by making two separate purchases of related 
 items and submitting two receipts, when the total exceeds the $25 limit. 

  
IV. Replenishment 

 
A. To obtain a funding/reimbursement check to reimburse the fund, all petty cash slips and 

remaining cash should be turned into the Finance Department to ensure that the balance is 
properly accounted for and create a funding check.  Petty cash slips must be accompanied 
by the appropriate receipt or acceptable notation of why a receipt was not available to be 
funded. 

 
B. Petty cash funds are subject to internal audits by the Finance Director or designee and are 

also subject to audit any time the fund is reimbursed.  Such audits shall be conducted in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) and will evaluate the 
effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes. 

 

112



 

25 

 

RECEIVING PROCEDURES AND CHECK PREPARATION 
 

I. Receiving Procedures  
 

A. It shall be the responsibility of the receiving department to ensure that goods are received 
as ordered and in good condition.  Immediately upon receipt of merchandise, check quantity, 
quality, and any specifications such as model number, etc. to ensure that the goods have 
been received as indicated on the packing slip. 

 
B. If the goods are faulty or damaged, notify the vendor and Finance Director or designee 

immediately.  If damage is concealed or not noticed at time of delivery, leave all boxes and 
packing lists intact and notify vendor immediately. 

 
C. It shall be the responsibility of the receiving department to inform the Finance Director or 

designee of the delivery and acceptance of an order by submitting the receiving documents 
with the check request for payment. 

 
D. It shall be the responsibility of the receiving department to inform the Finance Director or 

designee when full or partial payments are authorized. 
 
E. All invoices shall be mailed by the vendor directly to the accounts payable department. 

 
II. Check Preparation 
 
Checks are prepared based on the following: 
 

A. Checks are cut in accordance with the Finance Department schedule on a biweekly basis 
B. Original invoices must be attached 
C. All invoices must be approved by the Department Head 
D. All invoices must be properly coded 
E. Receiving documents, if available, must be attached and signed off 
F. Checks over $2,500 will require at least one manual signature of any authorized signer. 

 
 

  
 

 

  

113



 

26 

 

REFUNDS 
 
I. General 
 
Refunds of money paid to the Town are to be initiated by the department responsible for the revenue 
collection.  All refunds must be run through the Finance Department.  Exceptions may be made on a case-
by-case basis. 
 
II. Procedures 
 

A. A Refund Request, or other department specific refund form, must be completed, approved 
and submitted to the Finance Department. 

 
B. Refunds for overpayment of on-going receipts (i.e., Sales Tax, Utilities) may be given in the 

form of a credit on a future billing. 
  

114



 

27 

 

MISCELLANEOUS PURCHASING 

 
I. General 
 
Miscellaneous purchasing refers to purchasing outside of the aforementioned items. 
 
 A. Professional Dues and Licenses:  Professional dues, licenses, and memberships to 

 associations and organizations that benefit the Town will be paid from Town funds but shall 
 be the responsibility of the employee to obtain and maintain.  Examples include, but are not 
 limited to:  CDL and regular driver’s licenses, professional engineering license, 
 water/wastewater treatment operator’s licenses, etc. 

 
 B. Magazine and Newspaper Subscriptions:  Any necessary subscriptions, approved by the 

 Department Head or Town Administrator, shall be delivered to the Town address. 
 
 C. Purchase of Food/Meals:  Food/meals for employees shall be paid for via a Town issued 

 credit card, purchasing card, or check or reimbursed at a reasonable level, for justified 
 expenses.  Examples include, but are not limited to, the items listed below.  Exceptions 
 require written approval of the Department Head or other appropriate Town official.  Consult 
 the Travel Policy for meals relating to employee travel and training per diem. 

 
  ● Board/Commission/Committee business meetings 
  ● Town Administrator staff and/or business meetings 
  ● Department Head meetings when required outside normal working hours 
  ● Development related activities/meetings 
  ● Meetings or events hosted and/or sponsored by the Town 
  ● Meals purchased for employees required to work beyond normal meal breaks 
  ● Special events approved in advance by the Town Administrator. 
   
 D. Purchase of Flowers/Plants:  Department Heads/Town Administrator can authorize the 

 purchase of flowers/plants for employees/elected officials that are hospitalized or in the 
 event of the death of an employee/elected official or immediate family member.  A maximum 
 amount of $100 including delivery is authorized.  Donations, not to exceed $100, may be 
 made in lieu of flowers/plants in the event of a death or serious illness.   

 

  

115



 

28 

 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Bid Package 
 Documentation prepared and distributed by the Town in the solicitation of bids. 
 

Business 
Any corporation, partnership, individual, sole proprietorship, joint stock company, joint venture or any 
other private legal entity. 
 

Capital Improvement 
A fixed public improvement, including, but not limited to: streets, alleys, sidewalks, water or 
wastewater facilities, flood control facilities, traffic control devices, street lighting, parks, public 
structures, and landscaping. 

 

Change Order 
A written order signed by the Town Administrator or designee, directing the contractor to make 
changes, or changing non-contractual information on the Town’s purchasing system (i.e., account 
number, budgeted amount, etc.) 

 

Town 
The Town of Lochbuie, Colorado, a municipal corporation with a primary business location of 703 
CR 37, Lochbuie, CO 80603. 

 

Town Board 
The legislative and governing body of the Town. 

 

Town Administrator 
The chief administrative officer of the Town. 

 

Confidential Information 
Any information which is available to an employee only because of the employee’s status as an 
employee of the Town and is not a matter of public knowledge or available to the public on request. 

 

Construction 
The process of building, altering, repairing, improving, or demolishing any public structure or building, 
or other public improvements of any kind to any public real property. 

 

Consulting Services 
Services provided by individuals possessing specialized educational qualifications, practical 
expertise or professional certification, including without limitation to architects, engineers, legal 
counsel, planners, accountants, and actuaries, where the final product is predominantly oral or 
written advice or information. 

 
Contract 

All types of Town agreements, regardless of what they may be called, for the procurement or disposal 
of supplies, services, or construction.  The term shall not include intergovernmental agreements or 
any interest in real property by the Town or another governmental body. 

 

116



 

29 

 

Contract Modification 
Any written alteration in specifications, delivery point, rate of delivery, period of performance, price, 
quantity, or other provisions of any contract accomplished by mutual action of the parties to the 
contract. 

 
Cooperative Purchasing 

Procurement conducted by, or on behalf of, more than one (1) governmental body. 
 
Department Head 

Department Heads include Public Works Operations Manager, Finance Director, Town Clerk, Police 
Chief, Human Resources Director, and any other head of a department as designated by the Town 
Administrator. 

 
Designee 

A duly authorized representative of a person holding a superior position. 
 
Governmental Body 

Any department, division, commission, Board, board, bureau, committee, institution, legislative body, 
agency, government, corporation, or other establishment of this Town. 

 
Invitation for Bids (IFB) 

All documents, whether attached or incorporated by reference, utilized for soliciting bids. 
 
Managerial Contingency 

The difference between total project budget and award of bid as approved by Town Board.  
Managerial Contingency must be approved by Board at the time the bid is awarded. Adequate funds 
must be available and are to be encumbered as managerial contingency on the Purchase Order. 

 
Non-Capital Purchases 
 Services, supplies and non-tangible property. 
 
Person 

Any business, individual, union, committee, club, other organization, or group of individuals. 
 

Procurement 
The process through which the Town acquires goods and services for its own use.   

 
Professional Services 

Services of a specialized nature, including, but not limited to: architecture, engineering, legal, 
accounting, hiring screening process (drug testing, psych testing, etc.), equipment repair and 
maintenance, etc.   

 
Purchase Description 

The words used in a solicitation to describe the supplies, services, or construction to be purchased, 
and includes specification attached to, or made part of the solicitation. 

 
 

117



 

30 

 

Purchase Order 
A request to purchase goods or services, typically provided to the vendor as a confirmation of the 
Town’s commitment to purchase. 

 
Purchasing Agent 

Any person duly authorized to enter into and administer contracts and make written determinations 
with respect thereto.  The term also includes an authorized representative acting within the limits of 
authority. 

 
Purchasing 

The process through which solicitations are issued, advertisements run, vendors selected, and 
goods or services received. 

 
Regulation 

A governmental body’s statement, having general or particular applicability and future effect, 
designed to implement, interpret, or prescribe law or policy, or describing organization, procedure, 
or practice requirements. 

 
Request for Proposals (RFP) 

A process used to acquire supplies and services that involves the review of written proposals and 
the use of negotiations with the most qualified bidder(s).  This process may also include the use of 
a Request for Information (RFI) as a preliminary step to the RFP process in an attempt to gather 
information and pre-qualify prospective bidders. 

 
Services 

The furnishing of labor, time, or effort by a contractor not involving the delivery of specific end product 
other than reports which are merely incidental to the required performance, or repairs to an existing 
product. 

 
Soliciting Document 

The Town-issued document (most often IFB or RFP) detailing the scope, qualifications, 
specifications and/or scope of work and terms and conditions of the proposed contract or acquisition, 
including, if applicable, in the Town’s discretion, any bonds or security required to secure any bid or 
performance.   

 
Specification 

Any description of the physical or functional characteristics, or the nature of a supply, service, or 
construction item.  It may include a description of any requirement for inspection, testing, or preparing 
a supply, service, or construction item for delivery. 

 
Supplier 

Any person having or soliciting a contract, professional service agreement, purchase order 
arrangement or any other agreement to provide goods or services with a governmental body.  
Interchangeable with “contractor.” 
 
 
 

118



 

31 

 

Supplies 
Tangible property that is typically used or consumed within a year.  Examples include: pens, paper, 
staples, fertilizer, chemicals, repair parts, etc. 

 
Tangible Property 

Personal property and materials, including without limitation supplies, equipment, parts, printing and 
consumable supplies, but not including insurance, real property leases, securities, or water rights. 

  

119



 

32 

 

APPENDIX A 
Procurement Policies and Procedures for Federally Funded Programs 

 
Reference 2 CFR 200.318-326 

 
 

1. Purpose of procurement standards. These standards establish procedures for Town of Lochbuie 
(“Town”) procurement of supplies and other expendable property, equipment, and services utilizing federal 
funds.  All departments and operations of the Town expending federal grant monies shall adhere to these 
standards, as follows, as they may be amended or supplemented over time.   In the event the federal 
government regulations that govern procurement policies and procedures for federally funded programs or 
for procurements made with federal funds, these standards and procedures will be deemed automatically 
amended to conform to such requirements. 
 
2. Code of conduct. No employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award, or 
administration of a contract or purchase order if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved. Such 
a conflict would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his 
or her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, 
has a financial or other interest in the entity selected for an award. The officers, employees, and agents of 
the Town shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors, or 
parties to sub agreements except for where the financial interest is not substantial, or the gift is an unsolicited 
item of nominal value. Members of the Town Board of Trustees shall comply with all relevant fiduciary duties, 
including those governing conflicts of interest, when they vote upon matters related to procurement contracts 
in which they have a direct or indirect financial or personal interest. Officers, employees, directors, and agents 
of the Town shall be subject to disciplinary actions for violations of these standards. This code of conduct 
supplements any other applicable Code of Ethics. 
 
3. Competition.  
Procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner to provide, to the maximum extent practical, open 
and free competition. The Town shall be alert to organizational conflicts of interest as well as noncompetitive 
practices among contractors that may restrict or eliminate competition or otherwise restrain trade. To ensure 
objective contractor performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, contractors that develop or 
draft specifications, requirements, statements of work, invitations for bids and/or requests for proposals shall 
be excluded from competing for such procurements. Awards shall be made to the bidder or offeror whose bid 
or offer is responsive to the solicitation and is most advantageous to the Town, price, quality and other factors 
considered. Solicitations shall clearly set forth all requirements that the bidder or offeror shall fulfill in order 
for the bid or offer to be evaluated by the Town. All bids or offers may be rejected when it is in the Town's 
interest to do so. In all procurement, the Town shall avoid practices that are restrictive of competition. These 
include but are not limited to: 
 

a. Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business 
b. Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding; 
c. Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated companies;  
d. Noncompetitive awards to consultants that are on retainer contracts; 
e. Organizational conflicts of interest; 
f. Specifying only a brand name product instead of allowing an equal product to be offered 

and describing the performance of other relevant requirements of the procurement; and 
g. Any arbitrary action in the procurement process. 

 

120



 

33 

 

4. Methods of Procurement to be followed. 
 

a. Procurement by Micro-purchases. Micro-purchase is the acquisition of supplies or services 
under $3,500. To the extent practicable, the Town must distribute micro-purchases 
equitably among qualified suppliers. Micro-purchases may be awarded without soliciting 
competitive quotations if the Town considers the price to be reasonable. 

 

b. Procurement by Small Purchase Procedures.  Small purchase procedures are those 
relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing services, supplies, or other 
property that do not cost more than $150,000 (OMB memo dated June 20, 2018 M-18-18). 
If small purchase procedures are used, price or rate quotations must be obtained from an 
adequate number of qualified sources. 

 

c. Procurement by Sealed Bids (formal advertising). Bids are publicly solicited, and a firm fixed 
price contract (lump sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, 
conforming with all the material terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest 
in price. The sealed bid method is the preferred method for procuring construction, if the 
conditions in paragraph (c)(1) of this section apply. 

 

(1) In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions should be present: 
 

i. A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is 
available; 

ii. Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for 
the business; and 

iii. The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of 
the successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price. 

 

(2)  If sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply: 
 

i. Bids must be solicited from an adequate number of known suppliers, providing 
them sufficient response time prior to the date set for opening the bids, for state, 
local and tribal governments, the invitation for bids must be publicly advertised; 

 
ii. The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and pertinent 

attachments, must define the items or services in order for the bidder to 
properly respond; 

 
iii. All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids, 

and for local and tribal governments, the bids must be opened publicly; 
 
iv. A firm fixed price contract award will be made in writing to the lowest responsive 

and responsible bidder.  Where specified in bidding documents, factors such 
as discounts, transportation cost, and life cycle costs must be considered in 
determining which bid is lowest. Payment discounts will only be used to 
determine the low bid when prior experience indicates that such discounts are 
usually taken advantage of; and 

 
v. Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented reason. 

121



 

34 

 

d.  Procurement by Competitive Proposals. Competitive proposals are normally conducted with 
more than one source submitting an offer, and either a fixed price or cost- reimbursement 
type contract is awarded. It is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for the 
use of sealed bids. If this method is used, the following requirements apply: 

 
(1) Requests for proposals must be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and their 

relative importance.  Any response to publicized requests for proposals must   be 
considered to the maximum extent practical. 

 
(2) Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources; 
 
(3) The Town agency must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of 

the proposals received and for selecting recipients; 
 
(4) Contracts must be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is most 

advantageous to the program, with price and other factors considered; and 
 
(5) The Town must use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based 

procurement of    architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services whereby 
competitors’ qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected, 
subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation. The method, where price 
is not used as a selection factor, can only be used in procurement of A/E professional 
services. It cannot be used to purchase other types of services though A/E firms are a 
potential source to perform the proposed effort. 

 
e. Procurement by Noncompetitive Proposals.  Procurement by non-competitive proposals is 

procurement through solicitation of a proposal from only one source and may be used only 
when one or more of the following circumstances apply: 

 
(1) The item is available only from a single source; 
 
(2) The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting 

from competitive solicitation; 
 
(3) The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes 

noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the Town; or 
 
(4) After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate. 

 
5. Procurement procedures. 
 

a. All procurement by the Town shall comply, at a minimum, with the requirements of 
subsections (i), (ii), and (iii) below: 
 
(1)  the Town avoids purchasing unnecessary items. 
 
(2) Where appropriate, an analysis is made of lease versus purchase alternatives to 

determine which would be the most economical and practical procurement. 

122



 

35 

 

 
(3) Solicitations for goods and services provide for all of the following. 

 
i. A clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material, 

product or service to be procured.  In competitive procurements, such a 
description shall not contain features which unduly restrict competition. 

 
ii. Requirements which must be fulfilled and all other factors to be used in evaluating 

proposal submitted in response to solicitations. 
 

iii. A description, whenever practicable, of technical requirements in terms of 
functions to be performed or performance required, including the range of 
acceptable characteristics or minimum acceptable standards. 

 
iv. When relevant, the specific features of "brand name or equal" descriptions that 

are to be included in responses submitted to solicitation. 
 
v. The acceptance, to the extent practicable and economically feasible, of products 

and services dimensioned in the metric system of measurement. 
 
vi. Preference, to the extent practicable and economically feasible, for products and 

services that conserve natural resources and protect the environment and are 
energy efficient. 

 
b. All necessary affirmative steps shall be made by the Town to utilize small businesses, 

minority-owned firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms, 
whenever possible. The Town shall take all of the following steps to further this goal. 

 
(1)  Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women’s business enterprises 

on solicitation lists; 
 
(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women’s business enterprises are 

solicited whenever they are potential sources; 
 
(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or any 

quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and 
women’s business enterprises. 

 
(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, which encourage 

participation by small and minority businesses, and women’s business enterprises; 
 
(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small 

Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and 
 
(6) Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps 

listed in paragraphs (i) through (v) of this section. 
 

123



 

36 

 

c. The type of procuring instruments used (e.g., fixed price contracts, cost reimbursable 
contracts, purchase orders, and incentive contracts) shall be determined by the Town but 
shall be appropriate for the particular procurement and for promoting the best interest of the 
program or project involved. The "cost-plus-a-percentage-of- cost" or "percentage of 
construction cost" methods of contracting shall not be used. 

 
d. Contracts shall be made only with responsible contractors who possess the potential ability 

to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed procurement. 
Consideration shall be given to such matters as contractor integrity, record of past 
performance, financial and technical resources or accessibility to other necessary 
resources. 

 
e. Debarment and Suspension - No contract shall be made to parties listed on the General 

Services Administration's List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or 
Nonprocurement Programs in accordance with E.O.s 12549 and 12689, "Debarment and 
Suspension." Contractors with awards that exceed the small purchase threshold shall 
provide the required certification regarding its exclusion status and that of its principal 
employees. 

 
f. Contracts shall be made only with responsible contractors who possess the potential ability 

to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed procurement. 
Consideration shall be given to such matters as contractor integrity, record of past 
performance, financial and technical resources or accessibility to other necessary 
resources. 

 
g. Debarment and Suspension - No contract shall be made to parties listed on the General 

Services Administration's List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or 
Nonprocurement Programs in accordance with E.O.s 12549 and 12689, "Debarment and 
Suspension." Contractors with awards that exceed the small purchase threshold shall 
provide the required certification regarding its exclusion status and that of its principal 
employees. Contractors with multiple year contracts will be checked against the GSA list at 
each renewal time. 

 
h. To foster greater economy and efficiency, and in accordance with efforts to promote cost- 

effective use of shared services across the Federal Government, the Town is encouraged 
to enter into state and local intergovernmental agreements or inter-entity agreements where 
appropriate for procurement or use of common or shared goods and services. 

 
i. The Town is encouraged to use Federal excess and surplus property in lieu of purchasing 

new equipment and property whenever such use is feasible and reduces project costs. 
 

j. The Town is encouraged to use value engineering clauses in contracts for construction 
projects of sufficient size to offer reasonable opportunities for cost reductions.  Value 
engineering is a systematic and creative analysis of each contract item or task to ensure 
that its essential function is provided at the overall lower cost. 

 
k. The Town must ensure that all prequalified lists of persons, firms, or products which are 

used in acquiring goods and services are current and include enough qualified sources to 

124



 

37 

 

ensure maximum open and free competition. Also, the Town must not preclude potential 
bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period. 

 
6. Procurement of Facilities or Land Special Requirements. There are no proposals expected for 
this activity. If such an activity is proposed in the future this section will be updated prior to any such 
procurement. 
 
7. Cost and price analysis. Some form of cost or price analysis shall be made and documented in 
the procurement files in connection with every procurement action in excess of the Semiformal Acquisition 
Threshold (48 CFR Subpart 2.1) as Adjusted and currently at $150,000.  Price analysis may be accomplished 
in various ways, including the comparison of price quotations submitted, market prices and similar indicia, 
together with discounts. Cost analysis is the review and evaluation of each element of cost to determine 
reasonableness, allocability and allowability. 
 
8. Procurement records. Procurement records and files for purchases in excess of the Micro 
purchase threshold as fixed at 48 CFR Subpart 2.1 (currently $3,500) shall include the following at a 
minimum: (a) basis for contractor selection, (b) justification for lack of competition when competitive bids or 
offers are not obtained, and (c) basis for award cost or price. 
 
9.  Contract administration.  A system for contract administration shall be maintained to ensure 
contractor conformance with the terms, conditions and specifications of the contract and to ensure adequate 
and timely follow up of all purchases. The Town shall evaluate contractor performance and document, as 
appropriate, whether contractors have met the terms, conditions and specifications of the contract. 
 
10. Contract provisions. The Town shall include, in addition to provisions to define a sound and 
complete agreement, the following provisions in all contracts. The following provisions shall also be applied 
to subcontracts. 
 

a. Contracts more than the Semiformal Acquisition Threshold shall contain contractual 
provisions or conditions that allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in 
instances in which a contractor violates or breaches the contract terms and provide for such 
remedial actions as may be appropriate. 

 
b. All contracts in excess of the Semiformal Acquisition Threshold shall contain suitable 

provisions for termination by the Town, including the manner by which termination shall be 
affected and the basis for settlement. In addition, such contracts shall describe conditions 
under which the contract may be terminated for default as well as conditions where the 
contract may be terminated because of circumstances beyond the control of the contractor. 

 
c. For contracts dealing with construction or facility improvements the Town shall comply with 

all requirements imposed by its funding sources (and the government regulations applicable 
to those funding sources) with regard to construction bid guarantees, performance bonds, 
and payment bonds. 

 
d. All negotiated contracts (except those for less than the Semiformal Acquisition Threshold) 

awarded by the Town shall include a provision to the effect that the Town shall have access 
to any books, documents, papers and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent 
to a specific program for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts and 
transcriptions. 

 

125



 

38 

 

e. All contracts, including small purchases, awarded by the Town and their contractors where 
the source of the funds, directly or indirectly, is the federal government, shall contain the 
following procurement provisions as applicable. 
 
(1) Equal Employment Opportunity - All contracts, when funded in whole or part by 

monies derived from the Federal government (either directly or indirectly), shall 
contain a provision requiring compliance with E.O.  11246, “Equal Employment 
Opportunity," as amended by E.O. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 
Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and as supplemented by regulations at 
41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor." 

 
(2) Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874 and 40 U.S.C. 276c) - All contracts in 

excess of $2000 for construction or repair, when funded in whole or part by monies 
derived from  the Federal government (either directly or indirectly) shall include a  
provision for compliance  with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874), as 
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 3, "Contractors and 
Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by 
Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or 
sub recipient shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed 
in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The recipient shall report all 
suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. 

 
(3) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7) - When required by 

Federal program legislation, all construction contracts awarded by the recipients 
and sub recipients of more than $2000 shall include a provision for compliance with 
the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7) and as supplemented by Department 
of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to 
Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). Under this 
Act, contractors shall be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate 
not less than the minimum wages specified in a wage determination made by the 
Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors shall be required to pay wages not less 
than once a week. The recipient shall place a copy of the current prevailing wage 
determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation and the award 
of a contract shall be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. 
The recipient shall report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal 
awarding agency. 

 
(4) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-333) - All contracts 

in excess of $2000  for  construction contracts  and  in  excess  of  $2500  for  other  
contracts  that  involve the employment of mechanics or laborers, when funded in 
whole or part by monies  derived from the Federal government (either directly or  
indirectly), shall include a provision  for compliance with Sections 102 and 107 of 
the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-333), as 
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part  5). 

 
(5) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement - Contracts or 

agreements for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work, 

126



 

39 

 

when funded in whole  or  part  by monies derived from the  Federal government 
(either directly or  indirectly), shall  provide for the rights of the Federal Government 
and the recipient in any resulting invention in  accordance with 37 CFR part 401, 
"Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms 
Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and  any 
implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 

 
(6) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act 

(33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.), as amended - Contracts and sub grants of amounts in 
excess of $100,000, when funded in whole or part by monies derived from the 
Federal government (either directly or indirectly), shall contain a provision that 
requires the recipient to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or 
regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.) and the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.). 
Violations shall be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office 
of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 

 
(7) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) - Contacts for an amount above 

$100,000, when funded in whole or part by monies derived from the Federal 
government (either directly or indirectly), shall include a certification by the 
contracting parties that they have not and will  not  use  Federal  appropriated  funds  
to  pay  any  person  or  organization  for  influencing  or attempting  to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of  
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining 
any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352, and to 
further require disclosure of any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in 
connection with obtaining any Federal award. 

 
(8) Third party contracting requirements (FTA Circular 4220.1F) - This circular sets forth 

the requirements a grantee must adhere to in the solicitation, award and 
administration of its third-party contracts. Provisions of this circular will be added to 
all operating contracts utilizing formula funds for operating assistance. 

 

127



 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:  Elevated Water Storage Tank:  Staff recommendation that Board 

reject all bids and direct staff to re-bid project construction 
 
PRESENTED BY: Chris Larmon, Public Works Director 
   Maureen Juran, Town Attorney 
 
SUMMARY / BACKGROUND 
 
On November 28, 2023, JVA Consulting Engineers (JVA) issued a Request for Bids 
(RFB) for the elevated water storage tank project on behalf of the Town. Three bids 
were received before 3 pm on December 28, 2023. Since this time, concerns have been 
raised surrounding the bidding process from bidders on the project.  
 
Staff does not make any findings on any irregularities in the bidding process.  
Nonetheless, Staff recommends that, as to this current bidding cycle, the Board of 
Trustees not award this project and reject all bids.  
 
Staff also recommends that the Board direct Staff to rebid this project as soon as 
responsibly possible. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ACTION REQUIRED 
 
Staff recommends the following motion: 
 

“I move to not award the elevated water storage tank construction project to any 
bidder in the current bid process with bids received by December 28, 2023, and 
further move to direct staff to issue a new the invitation for bid for the elevated water 
storage tank” 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 

128



 
Agenda Item Summary 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:  Fireworks Discussion 
 
PRESENTED BY: Tracey McCoy, Chief of Police 
 
PREPARED BY: Tracey McCoy, Chief of Police 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Discussion relating to the Towns current and very restrictive ordinance relating to Fireworks.    
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The current Fireworks ordinance in Lochbuie has existed for many years. It is very restrictive 
in only allowing things like sparklers, smoke bombs, worms, snappers, etc. 
 
Currently it is a violation when families use fountains, ground spinners, wheels, etc that are 
legal in the State of Colorado and are sold at Fireworks stands across the country.  
 
I have attached the Lochbuie Muni Code, Colorado CRS, Brighton Muni Code, and Fort Lupton 
Ordinance dealing with Fireworks. I have highlighted the definitions of in the laws relating to 
what is or is not allowed in each community.  
  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ACTION REQUIRED 
 
Staff is recommending direction from the Town Board of Trustees to leave the existing 
Municipal Code in place or creating a new ordinance with changes at the pleasure of the Board. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Lochbuie Fireworks Code 
State of Colorado Fireworks Law 
City of Brighton Fireworks Code 
City of Fort Lupton Fireworks Ordinance 
 

129



CHAPTER 10 - General Offenses 
ARTICLE XII Fireworks 

 

 

 

Lochbuie, Colorado, Municipal Code    Created: 2023-03-29 13:36:49 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 14) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

ARTICLE XII Fireworks 

Sec. 10-12-10. Definitions. 

As used in this Article, unless the context otherwise requires:  

Fireworks means any article, device or substance prepared for the primary purpose of producing a visual or 
auditory sensation by combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation, including, without limitation, the 
following articles and devices commonly known and used as fireworks: toy cannons or toy canes in which 
explosives are used, blank cartridges, the type of balloon which requires fire underneath to propel the same, 
firecrackers, torpedoes, skyrockets, rockets, Roman candles, Day-Glo bombs and torches, or other fireworks of like 
construction and any fireworks containing any explosive or flammable compound, or any tablets or other device 
containing any explosive substance. Fireworks does not include:  

a. Toy caps which do not contain more than twenty-five hundredths (0.25) of a grain of explosive 
compound per cap;  

b. Sparklers, trick matches, cigarette loads, trick noisemakers, toy smoke devices and novelty auto 
alarms;  

c. Highway flares, railway fuses, shop distress signals, smoke candles and other emergency signal 
devices.  

Manufacturer includes any wholesaler and any person who manufactures, makes, constructs or 
produces any fireworks article or device.  

Person includes an individual, partnership, firm, company, association or corporation.  

Retailer includes any person who sells, delivers, consigns or furnishes fireworks to another person not 
for resale.  

Wholesaler includes any person who sells, delivers, consigns, gives or in any way furnishes fireworks to 
a retailer for resale.  

Sec. 10-12-20. Unlawful use, possession; penalty. 

Except as provided herein, it is unlawful for any person to possess, store, to offer for sale, expose for sale, 
sell at retail or use or explode any fireworks within the Town limits. Any person convicted of violating this Section 
shall be subject to the penalties set forth in Subsection 10-1-70(d).  

Sec. 10-12-30. Permits for display. 

(a) The Board of Trustees has the power to grant permits, within the area under its jurisdiction, for supervised 
public displays of fireworks by municipalities, fair associations, amusement parks and other organizations 
and groups, and to adopt reasonable rules and regulations for the granting of such permits.  

(b) Application for a permit as provided for herein shall be filed with the Town Clerk, together with a license fee 
in an amount as set by the Board of Trustees by resolution as may be amended from time to time and an 
inspection fee in an amount as set by the Board of Trustees by resolution as may be amended from time to 
time. The application shall contain at least the following information:  

(1) Name and address of applicant;  

130

TMcCoy
Highlight

TMcCoy
Underline



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-03-29 13:36:49 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 14) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

(2) Location where the applicant will sell fireworks;  

(3) Name and address of any wholesaler or distributor from whom the retailer proposes to purchase 
lawful fireworks for resale;  

(4) Manner, method and times when and how the applicant proposes to sell lawful fireworks; and  

(5) Such additional information as may be required by the Board of Trustees.  

Such application shall be made in writing at least thirty (30) days in advance of the date of display. Every display 
shall be handled by a competent operator and shall be of such character and so located, discharged and fired as 
not to be hazardous to property or endanger any person. Before a permit is granted, the operator and the location 
and handling of the display shall be approved, after investigation, by the Fire Chief or the Chief of Police, or their 
authorized agents.  

(c) No person displaying fireworks under this Section shall fail to dispose of any fireworks that remain unfired 
after the display is concluded in a safe manner.  

(d) No permit shall be transferable or assignable. No permit shall be required for such public display of fireworks 
at any county or district fair duly organized under state law and the ordinances of the Town.  

(Ord. 333 §1, 2000; Ord. 574 §4, 2011) 

Sec. 10-12-40. Insurance. 

The Board of Trustees shall require a certificate of insurance to protect persons and property from death or 
injury as a result of any fireworks display for which a permit is issued, in an amount not less than one hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($150,000.00) per person injured and four hundred thousand dollars ($400,000.00) per incident. 
The insurance shall cover any liability of the Town or any employee or agent thereof arising out of or connected 
with the permit and the fireworks display permitted thereunder.  

Sec. 10-12-50. Bond. 

Any permittee shall be required to obtain a performance bond in a sum not less than one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) conditioned on compliance with the provisions of this Article; except that the Town shall not be 
required to file such bond.  

Sec. 10-12-60. Interpretation. 

This Article shall not be construed to prohibit:  

(1) Any person, including a manufacturer, who has first obtained a license to sell display fireworks, from 
offering for sale, exposing for sale, selling or having in his or her possession with intent to offer for sale, 
or sell, fireworks to any municipality, fair association, amusement park or other organization or group 
holding a display permit issued as provided in this Article, or to any county or district fair duly 
organized under the laws of the State;  

(2) Any person from using or exploding fireworks in accordance with the provisions of any display permit 
issued as provided in this Article or as part of a supervised public display at any county or district fair 
duly organized under the laws of the State;  

(3) Any resident manufacturer from manufacturing and selling, or any resident wholesaler, dealer or 
jobber from selling at wholesale, such fireworks as are not prohibited under this Article, the sale of any 
kind of fireworks, provided that the same are to be shipped directly out of state in accordance with 
regulations of the United States Interstate Commerce Commission covering the transportation of 

131



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-03-29 13:36:49 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 14) 

 
Page 3 of 3 

explosives and other dangerous articles by motor, rail and water, the use of fireworks by railroads or 
other transportation agencies for signal purposes or illumination, the sale or use of blank cartridges for 
a show or theater, signal or ceremonial purposes in athletics or sports, or use by military organizations, 
or the use of fireworks for agricultural purposes under conditions approved by the Board of Trustees;  

(4) Any person from offering for sale, exposing for sale, selling, having in his or her possession with intent 
to offer for sale or sell, or using or firing toy pistols, toy guns, sparklers or other devices in which caps 
manufactured in accordance with this Article are used; or  

(5) The importation, purchase, sale or possession of fireworks which are used or to be used solely to 
prevent damage to crops by animals or birds, by the Board of Trustees with the assistance of other 
appropriate state departments and in accordance with Article 4 of Title 24, C.R.S.  

Sec. 10-12-70. Licensing; sale of display fireworks; manufacture and wholesale. 

(a) No person shall sell or offer to sell at retail any fireworks which are to be used for display purposes within 
the Town unless he or she first obtains a license to do so from the Secretary of State and from the Board of 
Trustees.  

(b) No person shall manufacture or wholesale fireworks until he or she shall first obtain a license from the 
Secretary of State, pursuant to Sections 12-28-106(c) and (d), C.R.S., and the Secretary of State shall be the 
sole licensing authority for manufacturers' and wholesalers' licenses.  

(Ord. 333 §1, 2000) 

Sec. 10-12-80. Seizure of fireworks. 

The police authorities of the Town or their authorized agents shall seize, take and remove, at the expense of 
the owner, all stocks of fireworks or combustibles offered or exposed for sale, stored or held in violation of this 
Article.  

Sec. 10-12-90. Toy propellant devices used for model or educational rockets. 

Nothing in this Article shall prevent or regulate the manufacture, sale, use or possession of educational 
rockets and toy propellant device type engines used in such rockets when such rockets are of nonmetallic 
construction and utilize replaceable engines or model cartridges containing less than two (2) ounces of propellant 
when such engine or model cartridge is designed to be ignited by electrical means.  

 

132



Current through 2023 Regular and 1st Extraordinary Session 

Section 24-33.5-2001 - Definitions 

 

As used in this part 20, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(1) "Articles pyrotechnic" means pyrotechnic special effects materials and pyrotechnic devices for 

professional use that are similar to consumer fireworks in chemical composition and construction but 

are intended for theatrical performances and not intended for consumer use. "Articles pyrotechnic" shall 

also include pyrotechnic devices meeting the weight limits for consumer fireworks but are not labeled as 

such and are classified as UN0431 or UN0432 pursuant to 49 CFR 172.101, as amended. 

(2) "Display fireworks" means large fireworks designed primarily to produce visible or audible effects by 

combustion, deflagration, or detonation and includes, but is not limited to, salutes containing more than 

one hundred thirty milligrams of explosive material, aerial shells containing more than forty grams of 

pyrotechnic compositions, and other display pieces that exceed the limits of explosive materials for 

classification as consumer fireworks as defined in 16 CFR 1500.1 to 1500.272 and 16 CFR 1507.1 to 

1507.12 and are classified as fireworks UN0333, UN0334, or UN0335 pursuant to 49 CFR 172.101, as 

amended, and including fused set pieces containing components that exceed fifty milligrams of salute 

powder. 

(3) "Display retailer" means a person, including a manufacturer, who is licensed as a display retailer 

under the provisions of section 24-33.5-2004 and who sells, delivers, consigns, gives, or otherwise 

furnishes display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic to a person authorized by section 24-33.5-2003 to 

discharge fireworks in Colorado. 

(4) "Exporter" means any person, including a manufacturer, licensed as an exporter under the provisions 

of section 24-33.5-2004 and who sells, delivers, consigns, gives, or otherwise furnishes fireworks for 

export outside of the state of Colorado. 

(5) 

(a) "Fireworks" means any composition or device designed to produce a visible or audible effect by 

combustion, deflagration, or detonation, and that meets the definition of articles pyrotechnic, 

permissible fireworks, or display fireworks. 

(b) "Fireworks" does not include: 

(I) Toy caps, party poppers, and items similar to toy caps and party poppers that do not contain more 

than sixteen milligrams of pyrotechnic composition per item and snappers that do not contain more than 

one milligram of explosive composition per item; 

(II) Highway flares, railroad fusees, ship distress signals, smoke candles, and other emergency signal 

devices; 

(III) Educational rockets and toy propellant device type engines used in such rockets when such rockets 

are of nonmetallic construction and utilize replaceable engines or model cartridges containing less than 

133



two ounces of propellant and when such engines or model cartridges are designed to be ignited by 

electrical means; 

(IV) Fireworks that are used in testing or research by a licensed explosives laboratory. 

(6) "Fireworks display operator" includes an individual who, by experience and training, has 

demonstrated the required skill and ability to safely set up and discharge display fireworks. 

(7) "Fund" means the fireworks licensing cash fund created in section 24-33.5-2004 (6)(b). 

(8) "Governing body" means: 

(a) The city council, town council, board of trustees, or other governing body of any city or town, as to 

the area within the corporate limits of the city or town; 

(b) The board of directors of any fire protection district organized pursuant to part 1 of article 1 of title 

32, as to the area within the boundaries of the fire protection district; and 

(c) The board of county commissioners as to the area within a county outside the corporate limits of any 

city or town or the boundaries of any fire protection district. 

(9) "Local authority" means the duly authorized fire department, police department, or sheriff's 

department of a local jurisdiction. 

(10) "Manufacturer" means any person who manufactures, makes, constructs, or produces fireworks. 

(11) 

(a) "Permissible fireworks" means the following small fireworks devices designed to produce audible or 

visual effects by combustion, complying with the requirements of the United States consumer product 

safety commission as set forth in 16 CFR 1500.1 to 1500.272 and 1507.1 to 1507.12, and classified as 

consumer fireworks UN0336 and UN0337 pursuant to 49 CFR 172.101: 

(I) Cylindrical fountains, total pyrotechnic composition not to exceed seventy-five grams each for a single 

tube or, when more than one tube is mounted on a common base, a total pyrotechnic composition of no 

more than two hundred grams; 

(II) Cone fountains, total pyrotechnic composition not to exceed fifty grams each for a single cone or, 

when more than one cone is mounted on a common base, a total pyrotechnic composition of no more 

than two hundred grams; 

(III) Wheels, total pyrotechnic composition not to exceed sixty grams for each driver unit or two hundred 

grams for each complete wheel; 

(IV) Ground spinner, a small device containing not more than twenty grams of pyrotechnic composition 

venting out of an orifice usually in the side of the tube, similar in operation to a wheel, but intended to 

be placed flat on the ground; 

(V) Illuminating torches and colored fire in any form, total pyrotechnic composition not to exceed two 

hundred grams each; 

134



(VI) Dipped sticks and sparklers, the total pyrotechnic composition of which does not exceed one 

hundred grams, of which the composition of any chlorate or perchlorate shall not exceed five grams; 

(VII) Any of the following that do not contain more than fifty milligrams of explosive composition: 

(A) Explosive auto alarms; 

(B) Toy propellant devices; 

(C) Cigarette loads; 

(D) Strike-on-box matches; or 

(E) Other trick noise makers; 

(VIII) Snake or glow worm pressed pellets of not more than two grams of pyrotechnic composition and 

packaged in retail packages of not more than twenty-five units; 

(IX) Fireworks that are used exclusively for testing or research by a licensed explosives laboratory; 

(X) Multiple tube devices with: 

(A) Each tube individually attached to a wood or plastic base; 

(B) The tubes separated from each other on the base by a distance of at least one-half of one inch; 

(C) The effect limited to a shower of sparks to a height of no more than fifteen feet above the ground; 

(D) Only one external fuse that causes all of the tubes to function in sequence; and 

(E) A total pyrotechnic composition of no more than five hundred grams. 

(b) "Permissible fireworks" do not include aerial devices or audible ground devices, including, but not 

limited to, firecrackers. 

(12) "Person" includes an individual, partnership, firm, company, association, corporation, or 

governmental entity. 

(13) "Pyrotechnic operator" includes an individual who, by experience and training, has demonstrated 

the required skill and ability to safely set up and discharge articles of pyrotechnics. 

(14) "Retailer" means any person who sells, delivers, consigns, or furnishes permissible fireworks to 

another person not for resale. 

(15) "Storage" means the possession of fireworks for safe custody, where the safekeeping is the principal 

object of deposit, and not the consumption or sale. 

(16) "Wholesaler" means any person, including a manufacturer, who is licensed as a wholesaler under 

section 24-33.5-2004 and who sells, delivers, consigns, gives, or otherwise furnishes permissible 

fireworks to a retailer for resale in Colorado. 

 

C.R.S. § 24-33.5-2001 

135



Renumbered from C.R.S. § 12-28-101 and amended by 2017 Ch. 245, § 1, eff. 8/9/2017. 

L. 2017: Entire part added with relocations, (SB 17-222), ch. 245, p. 1018, § 1, effective August 9. 

 

This section is similar to former § 12-28-101 as it existed prior to 2017. 

136



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-12-19 12:24:45 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 22) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

City of Brighton 

Sec. 8-28-20. Definitions. 

The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and enforcement of this Article:  

Fireworks are those items designed and prepared primarily to produce visual or audible effects by 
combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation. Fireworks does not include toy caps which do not contain 
more than twenty-five hundredths (.25) of a grain of explosive compound per cap.  

Nonprofit applicants are those applicants that meet the following criteria: a) exempt under Section 
501(C)(3), Internal Revenue Code; b) provide charitable, educational, religious, veterans, civic, health or 
human services within the City; and c) nonprofit.  

Permissible fireworks means the following items designed primarily to produce visual or audible effects by 
combustion, including certain devices designed to produce audible or visual effects; except that no device or 
component shall, upon functioning, project or disburse any metal, glass or brittle plastic fragments.  

a. Cylindrical fountains.  

b. Cone fountains.  

c. Wheels.  

d. Ground spinners.  

e. Illuminating torches and colored fire in any form.  

f. Dipped sticks and sparklers.  

g. Toy propellant devices and toy smoke devices.  

h. Snake or glow worm.  

i. Fireworks which are used exclusively for testing or research by a licensed explosives laboratory.  

j. Highway flares, railroad fuses, smoke candles and other emergency signal devices.  

k. Educational rockets and toy propellant device type engines used in such rockets when such 
rockets are of nonmetallic construction and utilize replaceable engines or model cartridges 
containing less than two (2) ounces of propellant and when such engines or model cartridges are 
designed to ignited by electrical means.  

Nonprofit applicants are those applicants that meet the following criteria: a) exempt under Section 
501(C)(3), Internal Revenue Code; b) provide charitable, educational, religious, veterans, civic, health or 
human services within the City; and c) nonprofit.  

Temporary stands also referred to herein as stands are those structures permitted by these regulations 
for the sale or dispensing of fireworks.  

 

137



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1079 

INTRODUCED BY: MICHAEL SANCHEZ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FORT LUPTON, COLORADO, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE XII MISCELLANEOUS OFFENSE, SECTION 10-264 
FIREWORKS PROHIBITED OF THE FORT LUPTON MUNICIPAL CODE 

WHEREAS, City Council deems it necessary to revise the specific provisions of the Fort Lupton 
Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, The International Fire Code and the Colorado Revised Statues allows for the use of 
fireworks; and 

WHEREAS, City Council finds that it is the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens that the provisions set forth herein be enacted. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FORT 
LUPTON, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS : 

Section 1: Chapter 10, Article XII, of the Fort Lupton Municipal Code is hereby amended as 
follows: 
Sec. 10-264. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to use or possess fireworks in violation of the International 
Fire Code as adopted by reference by this Code and the Colorado Revised Statues §24-33.5-2001 , 
et seq. (part 20), as amended 
(Prior code 9-526-3-1 ; Ord. 645 §1 , 1993 ; Ord. 2005-850, Part 1) 

INTRODUCED, READ, AND PASSED ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED 
PUBLISHED this 1gr1-1 day of February 2020. 

PUBLISHED in the Fort Lupton Press the 26 1 h day of February 2020. 

FINALLY READ BY TITLE ONLY, PASSED AND ORDERED FINALLY PUBLISHED by 
title only this 17th day of March 2020. 

PUBLISHED in the Fort Lupton Press the 25th day of March 2020. 

EFFECTIVE (after publication) the 24th day of April 2020. 

138



Approved as to form: 

139



 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:  4th Quarter 2023 Update  
 
PRESENTED BY: Denise Rademacher, Finance Director 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Attached are December 2023 unaudited and January 2024 financial statements.  This update will 
focus on 2023 actual vs. forecast results. 
   
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS/ACTIONS REQUIRED 
 

None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

2023 Unaudited Financial Report 
December Unaudited 2023 Financial Statements 
January 2024 Financial Statements 
Assessment Rate Chart  
Sample JP Morgan Chase Investment Securities Report 
January 2024 A/R Aging Report 
 

140



2023 Unaudited Annual 
Finance Report

February 20, 2024

TOWN OF LOCHBUIE
141



 

 

1 

Town of Lochbuie |2023 Unaudited Finance Report                                                                           
    

The U.S. economy surpassed expectations throughout 2023. 
The nation avoided a downturn, largely due to real consumer 
spending growth that endured even when challenged with 
high inflation. The labor market has cooled in response to 
monetary policy intervention, but unemployment remains low 
and wages continue to rise at a robust pace. Forecasters 
anticipate slower growth in 2024 but expect that the Federal 
Reserve has negotiated a soft landing with reduced risk of a 
near-term recession.  
 
U.S. real gross domestic product (GDP), an inflation adjusted 
measure reflecting the value of goods and services produced 
in an economy, increased at an annual rate of 3.3% in 4Q 
2023, down from 4.9% in 3Q.  2023 real GDP increased 3.1% 
compared to 1.9% in 2022. Despite higher borrowing costs 
and prices, consumers have continued to spend at a strong 
pace. The Congressional Budget Office forecasts national 
GDP to slow to 1.5% in 2024 because of weak growth in 
spending by consumers and governments and in investment 
by businesses. Colorado’s 3Q GDP at 5.8% outpaced the 
national rate.    
 
The Federal Reserve raised interest rates 7 times in 2022 and 
4 times in 2023 in an effort to decrease consumer spending 
which accounts for 70% of economic activity. The Fed paused 
rate hikes following the July 2023 increase. Recent data also 
shows the Fed’s actions are working and inflationary pressures 
are easing.   While inflation remains above the target rate of 
2.0%, the rate of inflation has fallen from the peak inflation of 
9.1% in June 2022. See Table 1. The Colorado Legislative 
Council Staff estimates Colorado’s CPI will exceed the national 
rate most notably due to housing costs, especially for renters, 
which continue to rise more quickly in Colorado than around 
the country. Colorado’s CPI should dip slightly in 2025.   
 
Colorado’s labor market cooled slightly, but unemployment 
remains low with plentiful job openings, and rising wages. 
National unemployment ended the year at 3.7% while 
Colorado’s statewide unemployment inched up to 3.4%.  
 
Personal income increased 4.8% in Colorado through 3Q 
outpacing inflation. However, surging consumer prices 
diminished household savings rates, and debt is on the rise. 
The primary risk to the economic expansion will be the 
lingering effects of the Federal Reserve’s aggressive steps to 
rein in inflation by raising interest rates and reducing the 
money supply. The intent of this monetary policy “tightening” 
is to suppress economy-wide demand, dampening prices and 
slowing inflation. The hope in 2024 is that the Fed will begin 
cutting rates.  When rate cutting will begin and to what extent 
will depend on continued positive economic data including 
inflation nearing the Fed’s target rate of 2%. 
 
Source: U.S. and Colorado Economic Data at: 
https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/images/dec2023
forecastforposting.pdf                
 

  

Economic Outlook 
 
 
 
 
  
   
    
  

 
 

     
  
 
 
 
   
 

 
  

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July 

6.4% 6.0% 5.0% 4.9% 4.0% 3.0% 3.2% 

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 
Year over 

Year  
3.7% 3.7% 3.2% 3.1% 3.4% 3.9%  

Table 1 

142



 

 

2 

Town of Lochbuie |2023 Unaudited Finance Report                                                                           
    

Revenues (General Fund Sources of Funds) 
 

Sales Tax – Sales tax is the main source of tax revenue for Lochbuie. As a Statutory Town, the Department of 
Revenue collects and remits sales tax collected on behalf of the Town. Vendors remit the prior month’s sales tax to 
the Department of Revenue by the 20th of the month.  The State then remits the funds to the locality usually within 
the first week of the following month.   
 
2023 4Q collections exceeded 2022 by 8.8% ($514,494 vs. $472,913, respectively). December remittances were 
higher than normal, reflecting a strong retail holiday season.   
 
Forecast vs. Actual – 2023 full year (FY) actual exceeded forecast by $43K ($1.972M forecast vs. $2.015M actual) 
with actual monthly collections averaging $168K.  2023 marks the first year State collected sales tax has exceeded 
$2M.  See graph below. 
 

 
 

Motor Vehicle Use Tax (MV) – Auto sales are subject to sales tax when sold within town limits. Lochbuie 
has no auto dealers within Town limits hence, motor vehicles, trailers, and semi-trailers purchased outside the town 
by Lochbuie residents are subject to the payment of use tax at the time of registration.  Motor Vehicle Use Tax is 
collected by the Counties and remitted to the Town monthly. MV use tax is the Town's 2nd largest tax source. 
 
The Town collects only 2% on Motor Vehicle sales, not the full 4% sales tax.  Staff recommends a ballot question 
this November asking voters to raise the Motor Vehicle use tax 2% to match the current sales tax rate of 4%.  
 
Forecast vs. Actual- 2023 FY actual missed forecast by $3K ($557K forecast vs. $554K actual). According to the 3Q 
Colorado Automotive Dealers Association report, auto sales are facing a mixed forecast.  In their 3Q report, they 
cite ongoing pent-up demand, higher wages, low unemployment, and improved technology as key factors supporting 
new vehicle sales.  On the downside, high vehicle prices due to inflation and supply issues, higher interest rates, 
economic uncertainty, resumption of student loan payments, and the depletion of pandemic savings as factors 
weighing on sales. Colorado new vehicle registrations are expected to increase 7.8% in 2023 and 5.1% in 2024. 
(209K vs. 220K, respectively). 
 
Colorado 3Q YTD new vehicle registrations increased 5.5% vs. 2022 compared to the nationwide increase of 7.0%. 
However, State electric vehicle sales showed continued strength with market share increasing from 10.2% in 2Q to 
13.0% in 3Q. 3Q new retail light vehicle registrations grew more in Northern Colorado (7.8% increase vs. 2022) than 
other markets. Ford and Toyota were the top selling brands in Northern Colorado.    
 
In light of this pending growth, perhaps the Town should invest in / promote the availability of charging stations 
along the I-76 corridor and within the Town itself. 

Jan Feb March April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec
2021 $97,947 $93,659 $142,883 $117,544 $105,073 $117,138 $123,636 $129,905 $111,872 $118,186 $132,407 $143,539
2022 $112,832 $138,998 $123,306 $99,877 $248,466 $137,248 $142,691 $150,213 $126,231 $140,449 $159,561 $172,902
2023 $166,687 $115,654 $152,138 $184,545 $167,913 $225,393 $163,174 $165,570 $160,287 $151,130 $167,664 $195,700

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

State Collected Sales Tax

143



 

 

3 

Town of Lochbuie |2023 Unaudited Finance Report                                                                           
    

 
 

 

Property Tax – All property was reappraised in 2023 using market information from January 1, 2021, through 
June 30, 2022.  Reappraisals occur every two years in Colorado. Current assessment rates are attached.  Source:  
Weld County Assessor’s Office.  
  

As the chart indicates, the 2023 residential assessment rate declined to 6.7% for taxes due in 2024.  Beginning with 
tax year 2023 (payable in 2024), the State is set to backfill any reductions in property tax as a result of the temporary 
decrease in residential assessment rates.  However, based on early indications from CML, there is a strong possibility 
that there may not be much, if any, backfill money left after the state backfills priority special districts such as fire 
protection districts. More information should be available after March 1, which is when assessors submit their 
revenue reduction reports showing SB22-238 and SB23B-001’s impacts. 
 

Lochbuie continues to have the lowest General Operating mill levy in Weld County.  For budget year 2024, the 
Town's General Operating mill levy is 2.802 mills, and its Bond Redemption levy is 3.477 mills for a total mill levy of 
6.279.  The General Operating levy pays for general operating expenses and results in just over $257K in annual revenue.   
 
 

 
 
 

Building Use Tax / Building Permit Fees – 2023 Budget included 125 single-family dwellings (SFD) 
amongst various developments. FY 2023, the Town issued 157 SFD permits compared to 123 in 2022.  See tables 
below.   

Jan Feb March April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec
2021 $37,867 $31,819 $30,012 $36,334 $35,589 $47,288 $60,760 $63,694 $50,993 $39,167 $26,566 $57,243
2022 $35,820 $41,287 $43,067 $40,928 $65,290 $47,524 $34,777 $72,802 $52,681 $59,352 $41,069 $43,432
2023 $40,481 $41,969 $47,463 $47,414 $52,304 $43,449 $42,289 $63,359 $46,695 $49,975 $41,394 $36,910

 $-
 $10,000
 $20,000
 $30,000
 $40,000
 $50,000
 $60,000
 $70,000

County Collected Motor Vehicle Sales Tax

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

2024 Budget Year 
General Operating Mill Levies

144



 

 

4 

Town of Lochbuie |2023 Unaudited Finance Report                                                                           
    

    
 

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec FY Total 
2022 4 2 18 15 31 21 17 7 0 3 0 5 123 
2023 2 15 16 9 15 19 17 6 23 17 6 12 157 

 
Development 2023 

Budget 
 

2023 FY  
Lots Remaining 

12/31/23 
Lots Budgeted 

2024 
Lochbuie Station (Aspen View Homes) 40 68 46 46 
Silver Peaks East (DR Horton) 60 76 5 5 
Blue Lake (Filing 2 Phases 2 & 3) 25 0 194 30 
SP PA4 (including Phase 1A) 0 13 235 71 
Total 125 157 480 152 

 

Forecast vs. Actual – The Colorado housing market slowed dramatically at the end of 2023 with houses remaining 
on the market longer as the rate of a 30-year mortgage exceeded 7%. The 3Q 2023 forecast was revised to 164 
SFD but fell slightly short. The Town continues to rely heavily on revenues associated with development. 
 

As with the MV Use tax rate, the Town collects only 2% Building Use tax on building materials, not the full 4% sales 
tax. Staff recommends a ballot question this November asking voters to raise the Building Use tax 2% to match the 
current sales tax rate of 4%.  
 

Colorado added 36,571 people in 2023 bringing its population to 5,877,610 as of July 1, 2023, up from the 29,443 
people added in the July 1, 2022, count. 

 
According to the Office of State Planning & Budgeting, Colorado’s population is expected to grow through 2026, 
peaking with a 1.3% growth rate before trending down slowly for the next two decades. The highest numbers of 
newly moved residents through 2030 are expected in El Paso, Weld, Adams and Larimer counties. See map above.  
Based on this forecast, the Town should continue to see residential growth which will hopefully spur more 
commercial growth as well. 
 

However, high home values, water shortages, traffic congestion, and air quality may dissuade people from relocating 
to our state.   
 
Due to the volatility and one-time nature of building related revenues, in 2023 the Board approved creating a Capital 
Improvement Fund to transfer a portion of these revenues out of the General Fund to be used for one-time projects.   
 

145



 

 

5 

Town of Lochbuie |2023 Unaudited Finance Report                                                                           
    

General Fund Revenue Summary  
 

Revenue 2023 Unaudited Actual 2023 FY Forecast 2023 Budget Actual B / (W) 
Forecast 

Property Tax $561,560 $561,560 $560,101 $- 
General Sales Tax $2,015,855 $1,972,500 $1,400,000 $43,355 
MV Tax $553,702 $557,000 $450,000 ($3,298) 
Building Use Tax $527,693 $532,500 $368,000 ($4,806) 
Other Tax $63,274 $63,496 $82,250 ($222) 
Franchise Fees $219,899 $214,099 $216,200 $5,800 
License & Permits $560,267 $566,276 $479,008 ($6,009) 
Intergovernmental $261,138 $262,100 $254,008 ($962) 
Grants $48,317 $276,435 $1,466,500 ($228,118) 
Fees $250,440 $254,031 $187,329 ($3,590) 
Fines & Forfeits $79,436 $80,990 $75,350 ($1,554) 
Trash Service $541,669 $541,799 $545,600 ($1,30) 
Other $1,522,828 $1,504,702 $744,463 $18,125 
Total Revenue $7,206,078 $7,387,488 $6,828,809 ($181,410) 

 
Significant actual variances vs. forecast were mainly attributable to better-than-expected December sales tax, delays 
in construction of the Greenway Trial, and higher developer reimbursements.  Unaudited results indicate revenues 
will be $181K less than FY forecast. 
 
Expenditures (General Fund Uses of Funds) 
 
Administration – Construction delays associated with the Greenway Trail accounted for $188K of the $157K actual 
vs. forecast variance.  
 

General Fund Expenditure Summary  
 

Expense 2023 Unaudited Actual 2023 FY Forecast 2023 Budget Actual B / (W) 
Forecast 

Legislative $144,740 $146,244 $158,361 $1,505 
Judicial $49,524 $49,543 $58,186 $19 
Administration $539,618 $728,054 $1,221,408 $188,436 
Police $1,866,821 $1,864,696 $1,942,580 ($2,125) 
Community Dev. $909,645 $897,098 $943,791 ($12,547) 
Street $1,104,303 $1,085,940 $3,221,780 ($18,363) 
Parks $267,136 $267,874 $287,868 $739 
Trash $501,554 $501,340 $497,500 ($214) 
Debt Service $317,000 $317,000 $317,000  $- 
Total Expenses $5,700,341 $5,857,789 $8,648,475 $157,450 

 
Unaudited results indicate expenses to be $157K lower than FY forecast mainly due to the aforementioned. 
 
The 2023 General Fund unaudited actual ending fund balance is estimated to be $24K less than FY forecast 
($9,488,298 vs. $9,512,257, respectively) mainly due to delays in the Greenway Trail project. 
 

Conservation Trust Fund 
 
Revenue: 
 
Lottery Proceeds – Conservation Trust Funds are the portion of Lottery proceeds constitutionally mandated to be 
distributed directly to local governments, based on population, for acquiring and maintaining parks, open space, and 

146



 

 

6 

Town of Lochbuie |2023 Unaudited Finance Report                                                                           
    

recreational facilities.  Lottery proceeds are allocated as follows:  50% Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund (GOCO), 
40% Conservation Trust Fund, and 10% Colorado Division of Parks & Outdoor Recreation.  CTF is distributed 
quarterly.  2023 actual revenues exceeded FY forecast by $114 ($375,682 vs. $375,568, respectively).  
 
Expense: 
 
2023 unaudited actual expenses are $182K less than FY forecast due to delays in the Greenway Trail project.  2023 
ending fund balance will be $182K less than FY forecast ($252,467 vs. $70,563, respectively).  The 2024 CTF Budget 
will need to be amended if the 2023 unexpended CTF funds ($182K) are to be spent on the Greenway Trail.   
 
Water Fund 
 
Revenue: 
 
FY 2023 unaudited actual water sales were 3.3% lower than FY 2022 ($2.4M vs. $2.48M, respectively) due to above 
average participation in the spring and early summer.  2023 actual water sales missed FY forecast by $14K.  
 
Most other water revenue accounts are associated with development.  2023 FY actual SFD permits fell just shy of 
the reduced forecast.  
 
FY 2023 unaudited actual revenue is anticipated to miss FY forecast by approximately $22K.  See table below. 
 

Revenue 2023 Unaudited Actual 2023 FY Forecast 2023 Budget Actual B / (W) 
Forecast 

Water Sales $2,399,126 $2,413,000 $2,500,000 ($13,874) 
Other Water Ops $387,404 $388,372 $126,200 ($968) 
Intergovernmental $- $- $5,000,000 $- 
Water PIF $1,407,043 $1,416,012 $1,121,125 ($8,969) 
Other Fees $1,273,749 $1,272,364 $387,325 $1,386 
Total Revenue $5,467,322 $5,489,748 $9,134,650 ($22,425) 

 
Expense: 
 
Many of the CIP included in the 2023 Operations Budget will be moved to 2024 and beyond.  
 

Expense 2023 Unaudited Actual 2023 FY Forecast 2023 Budget Actual B / (W) 
Forecast 

Operations $1,521,135 $1,586,770 $10,529,605 $65,635 
Administration $768,760 $771,861 $864,943 $3,101 
Debt Service $164,256 $164,256 $164,256 $- 
Total Expense $2,454,151 $2,522,887 $11,558,804 $68,736 

 
The 2023 Water Fund unaudited actual ending cash fund balance is estimated to be $46K more than FY forecast 
($20,010,158 vs. 19,963,848, respectively).   
   

Wastewater Fund 
 
Revenue: 
 
FY 2023 unaudited actual wastewater revenues were $37.8K above FY forecast ($5,142,045 vs. $5,104,236, 
respectively) mainly due to better than forecast City of Brighton Flow and Treatment PIF revenues. 
 
Most other wastewater revenue accounts are associated with development.  2023 FY actual SFD permits fell just 
shy of the reduced forecast.  
 

147



 

 

7 

Town of Lochbuie |2023 Unaudited Finance Report                                                                           
    

Revenue 2023 Unaudited Actual 2023 FY Forecast 2023 Budget Actual B / (W) 
Forecast 

Sewer Services $1,139,508 $1,139,100 $1,078,000 $408 
Collection PIF $609,578 $613,478 $487,500 ($3,900) 
Treatment PIF $1,732,545 $1,708,395 $1,328,250 $24,150 
Other Fees $45,684 $46,075 $37,300 ($391) 
Brighton Flows $1,083,913 $1,069,500 $1,000,000 $14,413 
Other  $530,817 $527,688 $253,000 $3,129 
Total Revenue $5,142,045 $5,104,236 $4,184,050 $37,809 

 
Expense: 
 
As with the Water Fund, many of the CIP included in the 2023 Operations / Collections Budgets, will be moved to 
2024 and beyond.  
 

Expense 2023 Unaudited Actual 2023 FY Forecast 2023 Budget Actual B / (W) 
Forecast 

Operations $978,208 $961,949 $2,991,900 ($16,259) 
Collections $161,912 $161,972 $673,685 $61 
Administration $421,758 $421,987 $465,293 $229 
Total Expense $1,561,878 $1,545,908 $4,130,878 ($15,970) 

 
The 2023 Wastewater Fund unaudited actual ending cash fund balance is estimated to be $22K more than FY 
forecast ($17,126,279 vs. $17,104,441, respectively).   
 
Oil & Exclusion Fund   
 
The Oil & Exclusion Fund was created as required by statute to be the repository for any increased amounts of 
revenue collected as a result of the exclusion of new primary oil or gas production as specified by law. Money in the fund 
shall be used exclusively for any increase in the level of services provided by the Town which occurs as a result of new 
primary oil or gas production. 
 
This fund was not utilized in 2023 because the County Certification of Valuation did not list any New Primary Oil & 
Gas production in the Town during the assessment period. 
 
Other Finance Department Items 
 
Banking / Investments – The Town has accounts at JP Morgan Chase, ColoTrust, CSIP, and CSafe.  
 
The funds in Chase are covered by the Public Deposit Protection Act or PDPA. The purpose of the PDPA is to ensure 
that public funds held on deposit in eligible public depositories are protected in the event that the eligible public 
depository holding the public deposits becomes insolvent.  
 
ColoTrust / CSIP / CSafe are local government investment pools.  Investment Pools are organized pursuant to CRS 
24-75-701, et seq. in accordance with the “Pooling Act” which states that any county, city and county, city, town, 
school district, special district, or other political subdivision of the state, or any department, agency, or 
instrumentality thereof, or any political or public corporation of the state (local government) is authorized to pool 
any moneys in the treasury of such local government which are not required to be disbursed, with the same such 
moneys in the treasury of any other local government in order to take advantage of short-term investments and 
maximize net interest earnings.  The pool trust funds may only invest in securities that all participating local 
governments may individually invest in. All three institutions offer safety and liquidity.   
 
In mid-November 2023, the Town converted three Chase accounts from regular savings / checking accounts into 
sweep accounts.  A sweep account automatically transfers amounts exceeding a certain amount into a higher 
interest-earning investment account at the close of each business day.  The three accounts are invested nightly into 

148



 

 

8 

Town of Lochbuie |2023 Unaudited Finance Report                                                                           
    

money market accounts invested in U.S. Treasuries.  The current 7-day yield is 4.92%.  The bank charges 
$100/account/month and a .25 basis points fee. In 2023, the accounts earned over $20K in interest and paid $2.6K 
in fees.  
 
Finally, the Town’s investment policy stipulates certain reporting requirements.  Per the policy, the Investment 
Officer is to prepare a quarterly report for the Town Administrator and the Board of Trustees.  In order to comply 
with this requirement, staff contacted JP Morgan Chase Securities (JPMCS) and asked them to prepare a quarterly 
report including the securities purchased through JPMCS.  Attached is sample of the report which will be prepared 
quarterly and presented with the finance report.  Staff is also working on a spreadsheet which will include funds 
invested in the three investment pools. The spreadsheet will be updated monthly and will be part of the finance staff 
report.   
 
2023 Audit – The 2023 Audit is underway. On-site field work is scheduled for early March 2024 with a draft audit 
expected by early May.   
 
SRF Loan Application – The SRF (State Revolving Fund) loan application was submitted on January 5, 2024. The 
application was reviewed, and a credit report was prepared by DOLA.  The report recommended approval for the 
total amount requested - $8M, 3.3%, 20-year loan.  The report also indicated that the Town is eligible for 
approximately $1M in Principal Forgiveness which is the maximum allowed for a BIL (Bipartisan Infrastructure Law) 
DWRF (Drinking Water Revolving Fund) loan.  The loan application will be reviewed at the March 8, 2024, CWRPDA 
(Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority) board meeting and the Town will be notified shortly 
thereafter whether the funding was approved.  
 
 
 

149



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

COMBINED CASH INVESTMENT

DECEMBER 31, 2023

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:09AM       PAGE: 1

COMBINED CASH ACCOUNTS

01-1000015 CHASE-OPERATING ACCOUNT 1,734,609.83

01-1000016 CSIP 8,203,492.05

01-1000017 CSAFE 8,220,346.58

01-1000020 CASH ON HAND 600.00

01-1000021 CASH - PETTY CASH 350.00

01-1000031 CHASE-SEWER TREATMENT PIFS 1,090,688.02

01-1000057 COLOTRUST - POOLED FUNDS 8,821,445.02

01-1000058 CHASE-CD-SEWER TREATMENT PIF 6,725,171.22

01-1000059 CHASE-CD-ARPA FUNDS 1,837,181.46

01-1000060 CHASE - SCHOOL CONTRIBUTION 416,905.77

01-1000061 CHASE - SILVERPEAKS SUPPLY 855,376.28

01-1000062 CHASE - INTERSTATE EXCHANGE 450,003.09

01-1000063 CHASE - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN 40.67

01-1000070 DEPOSITS 1,320.00

01-1000071 JPMC FEDERAL HOME LOAN-2/2025 1,505,505.23

01-1000072 JPMC FEDERAL FARM CR-7/2025 1,509,180.14

01-1000073 JPMC T BILL - 8/24 2,913,675.21

01-1000074 JPMC T BILL - 2/24 1,987,188.66

01-1000752 XBP EFT CLEARING 36,160.77

01-1000761 A/R CLEARING ACCOUNT 2,943.41

01-2000203 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (                2,943.41)

TOTAL COMBINED CASH 46,309,240.00

01-1000010 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS (       46,309,240.00)

TOTAL UNALLOCATED CASH .00

CASH ALLOCATION RECONCILIATION

10 ALLOCATION TO GENERAL FUND 9,152,319.01

20 ALLOCATION TO CONSERVATION TRUST FUND 337,717.95

50 ALLOCATION TO WATER FUND 20,125,566.91

55 ALLOCATION TO SEWER FUND 16,693,636.13

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS TO OTHER FUNDS 46,309,240.00

ALLOCATION FROM COMBINED CASH FUND - 01-1000010 (       46,309,240.00)

ZERO PROOF IF ALLOCATIONS BALANCE .00

150



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:09AM       PAGE: 2

ASSETS

10-1000010 CASH IN COMBINED FUND 9,152,319.01

10-1000057 VEHICLE ESCROW-159950.1-'24 DT 391,551.71

10-1000060 A/R - CUSTOMERS 5,143.80

10-1000069 CASH WITH COUNTY TREASURER 40,630.39

10-1000070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE 560,101.00

10-1000088 A/R DEVELOPERS (            165,707.82)

10-1000091 DUE FROM OTHER GOVTS 429,008.69

TOTAL ASSETS 10,413,046.78

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

10-2000203 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 305,939.34

10-2000204 UNCLAIMED PROPERTY 1,810.22

10-2000206 ACCRUED WAGES PAYABLE 28,114.73

10-2000234 PUBLIC SAFETY SURCHARGE 22,800.00

10-2000241 DEFERRED REVENUE- PROPERTY TAX 560,101.00

10-2000390 SILVER PEAKS DEVEL SURCHG 5,984.66

TOTAL LIABILITIES 924,749.95

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

10-2000801 CURRENT FUND BALANCE 7,982,557.96

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 1,505,738.87

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 9,488,296.83

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 9,488,296.83

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 10,413,046.78

151



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:09AM       PAGE: 3

TAX

10-320-1600 PROPERTY TAX 561,560.10 561,560.10 560,101.00 (                1,459.10) 100.3

10-320-1605 SPECIFIC OWNERSHIP TAX 24,317.52 24,317.52 45,000.00 20,682.48 54.0

10-320-1610 GENERAL SALES TAX 2,015,854.87 2,015,854.87 1,400,000.00 (            615,854.87) 144.0

10-320-1615 MOTOR VEHICLE SALES TAX 553,701.57 553,701.57 450,000.00 (            103,701.57) 123.0

10-320-1620 BUILDING USE TAX 527,693.45 527,693.45 368,000.00 (            159,693.45) 143.4

10-320-1621 OCCUPATIONAL TAX 350.00 350.00 750.00 400.00 46.7

10-320-1622 ROAD AND BRIDGE DISTRIBUTION 38,606.09 38,606.09 36,500.00 (                2,106.09) 105.8

TOTAL TAX 3,722,083.60 3,722,083.60 2,860,351.00 (            861,732.60) 130.1

FRANCHISES

10-325-1625 FRANCHISE FEE - UNITED POWER 113,449.64 113,449.64 112,000.00 (                1,449.64) 101.3

10-325-1635 FRANCHISE FEE-COMCAST 46,882.85 46,882.85 50,000.00 3,117.15 93.8

10-325-1640 FRANCHISE FEE - XCEL 58,366.80 58,366.80 53,000.00 (                5,366.80) 110.1

10-325-1925 FRANCHISE FEE - CENTURY LINK 1,200.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FRANCHISES 219,899.29 219,899.29 216,200.00 (                3,699.29) 101.7

LICENSE & PERMIT

10-330-1700 BUSINESS LICENSES 9,923.75 9,923.75 16,000.00 6,076.25 62.0

10-330-1701 LIQUOR LICENSES 401.25 401.25 1,508.00 1,106.75 26.6

10-330-1702 PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY PERMIT 46,380.34 46,380.34 75,000.00 28,619.66 61.8

10-330-1705 BUILDING PERMITS 502,166.92 502,166.92 385,500.00 (            116,666.92) 130.3

10-330-1714 OTHER PERMITS 865.00 865.00 500.00 (                   365.00) 173.0

10-330-1715 ANIMAL PERMITS 530.00 530.00 500.00 (                     30.00) 106.0

TOTAL LICENSE & PERMIT 560,267.26 560,267.26 479,008.00 (              81,259.26) 117.0

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

10-335-1725 HUTF 230,685.52 230,685.52 222,508.00 (                8,177.52) 103.7

10-335-1730 CIGARETTE TAX 3,742.68 3,742.68 2,500.00 (                1,242.68) 149.7

10-335-1740 MOTOR VEHICLE 26,709.79 26,709.79 29,000.00 2,290.21 92.1

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 261,137.99 261,137.99 254,008.00 (                7,129.99) 102.8

152



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:09AM       PAGE: 4

GRANTS

10-340-1250 POST TRAINING REIMBURSEMENTS 1,169.00 1,169.00 4,000.00 2,831.00 29.2

10-340-1301 DOLA - COMP PLAN GRANT 29,824.38 29,824.38 100,000.00 70,175.62 29.8

10-340-1302 DOLA - CR 4 BRIDGE REPAIR .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

10-340-1729 CDOT - GREENWAY TRAILS 17,323.79 17,323.79 350,000.00 332,676.21 5.0

10-340-1730 CDOT - 1-76 SIGNALIZATION .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

10-340-1731 PARK IMPROVEMENT GRANT .00 .00 12,500.00 12,500.00 .0

TOTAL GRANTS 48,317.17 48,317.17 1,466,500.00 1,418,182.83 3.3

FEES

10-350-1804 ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 72,633.53 72,633.53 53,800.00 (              18,833.53) 135.0

10-350-1806 PLAN REVIEW FEE 44,802.52 44,802.52 24,500.00 (              20,302.52) 182.9

10-350-1808 COURT BOND FEE 375.00 375.00 150.00 (                   225.00) 250.0

10-350-1809 LAND USE APPLICATION 4,589.72 4,589.72 .00 (                4,589.72) .0

10-350-1810 COPY FEES 592.50 592.50 600.00 7.50 98.8

10-350-1812 BAG FEE 2,771.94 2,771.94 .00 (                2,771.94) .0

10-350-1817 INFRASTRUCTURE FEE 63,594.06 63,594.06 51,104.00 (              12,490.06) 124.4

10-350-1818 INTERSTATE EXCHANGE 50,876.13 50,876.13 49,050.00 (                1,826.13) 103.7

10-350-1819 PUBLIC SAFETY FEE 10,205.00 10,205.00 8,125.00 (                2,080.00) 125.6

TOTAL FEES 250,440.40 250,440.40 187,329.00 (              63,111.40) 133.7

FINES & FORFEITS

10-360-1825 FINES - GENERAL 57,620.66 57,620.66 55,800.00 (                1,820.66) 103.3

10-360-1831 VIN INSPECTION FEES 725.00 725.00 1,250.00 525.00 58.0

10-360-1832 COURT FEES 15,820.00 15,820.00 12,000.00 (                3,820.00) 131.8

10-360-1885 CASH BOND 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,800.00 800.00 55.6

10-360-1886 SEX OFFENDER REGISTRY FEE 1,350.00 1,350.00 2,000.00 650.00 67.5

10-360-1994 VEHICLE IMPOUNDS 2,920.00 2,920.00 2,500.00 (                   420.00) 116.8

TOTAL FINES & FORFEITS 79,435.66 79,435.66 75,350.00 (                4,085.66) 105.4

TRASH SERVICE REVENUE

10-365-1510 DELINQUENT NOTICE 8,994.60 8,994.60 8,500.00 (                   494.60) 105.8

10-365-1812 ACCOUNT SETUP/TRANSFER FEE 846.00 846.00 800.00 (                     46.00) 105.8

10-365-1990 OTHER REVENUE 354.00 354.00 300.00 (                     54.00) 118.0

10-365-2000 TRASH SERVICE 531,474.53 531,474.53 536,000.00 4,525.47 99.2

TOTAL TRASH SERVICE REVENUE 541,669.13 541,669.13 545,600.00 3,930.87 99.3

153



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:09AM       PAGE: 5

OTHER

10-370-1850 INTEREST EARNED 301,631.63 301,631.63 156,000.00 (            145,631.63) 193.4

10-370-1852 DEVELOPER REIMBURSEMENTS 364,880.63 364,880.63 300,000.00 (              64,880.63) 121.6

10-370-1854 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS ON INVEST 24,312.59 24,312.59 .00 (              24,312.59) .0

10-370-1855 T MOBILE RENTAL 27,083.04 27,083.04 29,578.00 2,494.96 91.6

10-370-1856 VERIZON WIRELESS LEASE 11,885.08 11,885.08 11,885.00 (                         .08) 100.0

10-370-1870 PROCEEDS ON SALE OF ASSETS 17,760.00 17,760.00 .00 (              17,760.00) .0

10-370-1930 INSURANCE PROCEEDS 14,352.27 14,352.27 .00 (              14,352.27) .0

10-370-1955 OIL & GAS ROYALTIES 20,002.39 20,002.39 25,000.00 4,997.61 80.0

10-370-1956 MINERAL LEASE 60,045.39 60,045.39 40,000.00 (              20,045.39) 150.1

10-370-1957 SEVERANCE TAX 250,742.58 250,742.58 150,000.00 (            100,742.58) 167.2

10-370-1962 EVENTS & FESTIVALS 27,269.00 27,269.00 7,000.00 (              20,269.00) 389.6

10-370-1990 OTHER REVENUE 20,964.04 20,964.04 22,000.00 1,035.96 95.3

10-370-1991 UNITED POWER CAPITAL CREDITS 2,854.00 2,854.00 3,000.00 146.00 95.1

10-370-1998 LEASE PROCEEDS 379,045.00 379,045.00 .00 (            379,045.00) .0

TOTAL OTHER 1,522,827.64 1,522,827.64 744,463.00 (            778,364.64) 204.6

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 7,206,078.14 7,206,078.14 6,828,809.00 (            377,269.14) 105.5

154



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:09AM       PAGE: 6

LEGISLATIVE

10-421-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 58,411.13 58,411.13 53,541.00 (                4,870.13) 109.1

10-421-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 927.72 927.72 847.00 (                     80.72) 109.5

10-421-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 8,665.08 8,665.08 7,994.00 (                   671.08) 108.4

10-421-3080 WORKERS COMP 55.75 55.75 61.00 5.25 91.4

10-421-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 3,691.21 3,691.21 3,505.00 (                   186.21) 105.3

10-421-3083 457 PLAN MATCH 337.50 337.50 468.00 130.50 72.1

10-421-3090 TRAINING 2,499.24 2,499.24 11,000.00 8,500.76 22.7

10-421-4020 OTHER FEES & PROF SERVICES 1,496.88 1,496.88 8,500.00 7,003.12 17.6

10-421-5700 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 286.89 286.89 270.00 (                     16.89) 106.3

10-421-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 164.81 164.81 207.00 42.19 79.6

10-421-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 139.72 139.72 500.00 360.28 27.9

10-421-6200 SPECIAL EVENTS 43,420.22 43,420.22 41,000.00 (                2,420.22) 105.9

10-421-7100 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 15,768.00 15,768.00 15,968.00 200.00 98.8

10-421-7150 ELECTIONS 6,441.50 6,441.50 10,000.00 3,558.50 64.4

10-421-7250 RECORDING / PUBLISHING FEES 406.76 406.76 1,000.00 593.24 40.7

10-421-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 2,027.15 2,027.15 3,500.00 1,472.85 57.9

TOTAL LEGISLATIVE 144,739.56 144,739.56 158,361.00 13,621.44 91.4

JUDICIAL

10-422-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 21,783.54 21,783.54 26,943.00 5,159.46 80.9

10-422-3011 OVERTIME PAY 1.76 1.76 275.00 273.24 .6

10-422-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 357.47 357.47 449.00 91.53 79.6

10-422-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 4,250.08 4,250.08 5,057.00 806.92 84.0

10-422-3080 WORKERS COMP 44.73 44.73 49.00 4.27 91.3

10-422-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 5,292.80 5,292.80 6,214.00 921.20 85.2

10-422-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 511.50 511.50 .00 (                   511.50) .0

10-422-3090 TRAINING 510.00 510.00 2,000.00 1,490.00 25.5

10-422-4000 JUDGE FEES 7,200.00 7,200.00 7,200.00 .00 100.0

10-422-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES 7,200.00 7,200.00 8,200.00 1,000.00 87.8

10-422-4340 INTERPRETER SERVICE 1,675.99 1,675.99 1,200.00 (                   475.99) 139.7

10-422-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 429.14 429.14 500.00 70.86 85.8

10-422-7100 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 267.00 267.00 100.00 (                   167.00) 267.0

TOTAL JUDICIAL 49,524.01 49,524.01 58,187.00 8,662.99 85.1

155



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:09AM       PAGE: 7

ADMINISTRATION

10-423-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 208,712.07 208,712.07 195,785.00 (              12,927.07) 106.6

10-423-3011 OVERTIME PAY 92.33 92.33 375.00 282.67 24.6

10-423-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 3,447.92 3,447.92 3,237.00 (                   210.92) 106.5

10-423-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 30,896.47 30,896.47 29,112.00 (                1,784.47) 106.1

10-423-3080 WORKERS COMP 191.84 191.84 210.00 18.16 91.4

10-423-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 25,369.03 25,369.03 24,849.00 (                   520.03) 102.1

10-423-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 2,250.00 2,250.00 2,412.00 162.00 93.3

10-423-3090 TRAINING 3,533.20 3,533.20 5,000.00 1,466.80 70.7

10-423-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 63,346.01 63,346.01 103,420.00 40,073.99 61.3

10-423-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 15,383.58 15,383.58 20,927.00 5,543.42 73.5

10-423-4100 AUDITING FEES 7,666.66 7,666.66 8,000.00 333.34 95.8

10-423-4120 ENGINEERING FEES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-423-4140 LEGAL FEES 68,608.22 68,608.22 75,000.00 6,391.78 91.5

10-423-4380 CUSTODIAN FEES 4,479.98 4,479.98 5,000.00 520.02 89.6

10-423-4400 ANIMAL CONTROL 2,345.10 2,345.10 3,009.00 663.90 77.9

10-423-4460 R&M SVC'S BUILDINGS 15,500.00 15,500.00 11,750.00 (                3,750.00) 131.9

10-423-4470 LEASE-COPIER/OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,515.16 1,515.16 1,600.00 84.84 94.7

10-423-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 13,875.53 13,875.53 15,000.00 1,124.47 92.5

10-423-5300 POSTAGE 514.60 514.60 2,750.00 2,235.40 18.7

10-423-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 5,281.57 5,281.57 6,750.00 1,468.43 78.3

10-423-5420 TRASH FEES 194.31 194.31 800.00 605.69 24.3

10-423-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 4,584.61 4,584.61 5,530.00 945.39 82.9

10-423-5500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 2,083.73 2,083.73 2,000.00 (                     83.73) 104.2

10-423-5700 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 669.36 669.36 630.00 (                     39.36) 106.3

10-423-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 720.56 720.56 963.00 242.44 74.8

10-423-5800 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 72.41 72.41 500.00 427.59 14.5

10-423-5850 PEST CONTROL 1,892.89 1,892.89 1,800.00 (                     92.89) 105.2

10-423-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 2,930.47 2,930.47 3,500.00 569.53 83.7

10-423-6115 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-423-7100 DUES 3,093.57 3,093.57 6,000.00 2,906.43 51.6

10-423-7200 TREASURER'S COLLECT FEES 5,620.68 5,620.68 5,601.00 (                     19.68) 100.4

10-423-7220 BANK FEES 591.65 591.65 500.00 (                     91.65) 118.3

10-423-7221 CREDIT CARD FEES 11,614.30 11,614.30 11,400.00 (                   214.30) 101.9

10-423-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 2,499.33 2,499.33 3,000.00 500.67 83.3

10-423-9400 CAPITAL OUTLAY / CONTINGENCY 30,040.76 30,040.76 200,000.00 169,959.24 15.0

10-423-9401 GREENWAY TRAIL .00 .00 450,000.00 450,000.00 .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 539,617.90 539,617.90 1,221,410.00 681,792.10 44.2

156



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:09AM       PAGE: 8

POLICE

10-431-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 1,025,803.08 1,025,803.08 1,092,898.00 67,094.92 93.9

10-431-3011 OVERTIME PAY 51,977.47 51,977.47 24,175.00 (              27,802.47) 215.0

10-431-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 17,585.71 17,585.71 18,432.00 846.29 95.4

10-431-3060 FPPA RETIREMENT COST 111,535.05 111,535.05 122,686.00 11,150.95 90.9

10-431-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 22,292.32 22,292.32 20,936.00 (                1,356.32) 106.5

10-431-3080 WORKERS COMP 16,795.72 16,795.72 18,383.00 1,587.28 91.4

10-431-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 138,763.19 138,763.19 151,508.00 12,744.81 91.6

10-431-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 5,009.50 5,009.50 4,914.00 (                     95.50) 101.9

10-431-3090 TRAINING 8,861.59 8,861.59 10,000.00 1,138.41 88.6

10-431-3091 PRE-HIRE EVALS 8,123.06 8,123.06 8,900.00 776.94 91.3

10-431-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 21,204.00 21,204.00 21,404.00 200.00 99.1

10-431-4021 WELD COUNTY DISPATCH 65,891.77 65,891.77 68,333.00 2,441.23 96.4

10-431-4022 VICTIMS ADVOCATE 34,142.77 34,142.77 40,000.00 5,857.23 85.4

10-431-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 35,049.64 35,049.64 45,633.00 10,583.36 76.8

10-431-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES 6,950.00 6,950.00 4,500.00 (                2,450.00) 154.4

10-431-4260 LABORATORY FEES 1,565.85 1,565.85 2,400.00 834.15 65.2

10-431-4460 R&M SVC'S BUILDINGS 11,283.97 11,283.97 7,250.00 (                4,033.97) 155.6

10-431-4475 PD LEASES 47,079.26 47,079.26 47,079.00 (                         .26) 100.0

10-431-4476 COPIER LEASE 2,913.15 2,913.15 3,000.00 86.85 97.1

10-431-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 38,559.68 38,559.68 40,000.00 1,440.32 96.4

10-431-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 4,882.80 4,882.80 6,000.00 1,117.20 81.4

10-431-5420 TRASH FEES 130.66 130.66 850.00 719.34 15.4

10-431-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 13,370.34 13,370.34 13,200.00 (                   170.34) 101.3

10-431-5500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 2,751.62 2,751.62 1,500.00 (                1,251.62) 183.4

10-431-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 72.00 72.00 .00 (                     72.00) .0

10-431-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 8,747.25 8,747.25 5,000.00 (                3,747.25) 175.0

10-431-6115 EQUIPMENT 7,506.90 7,506.90 15,000.00 7,493.10 50.1

10-431-6116 AMMUNITION 4,961.36 4,961.36 6,000.00 1,038.64 82.7

10-431-6120 UNIFORMS 19,802.08 19,802.08 17,500.00 (                2,302.08) 113.2

10-431-6200 FUEL & OIL 19,476.02 19,476.02 31,200.00 11,723.98 62.4

10-431-6500 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 2,105.47 2,105.47 2,000.00 (                   105.47) 105.3

10-431-6501 R&M FLEET 40,860.95 40,860.95 26,400.00 (              14,460.95) 154.8

10-431-7100 DUES 13,390.86 13,390.86 18,000.00 4,609.14 74.4

10-431-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 1,106.16 1,106.16 2,500.00 1,393.84 44.3

10-431-9400 CAPITAL OUTLAY / CONTINGENCY 56,269.35 56,269.35 45,000.00 (              11,269.35) 125.0

TOTAL POLICE 1,866,820.60 1,866,820.60 1,942,581.00 75,760.40 96.1

157



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:09AM       PAGE: 9

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

10-432-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 100,231.76 100,231.76 120,044.00 19,812.24 83.5

10-432-3011 OVERTIME PAY 41.12 41.12 250.00 208.88 16.5

10-432-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 1,551.99 1,551.99 1,985.00 433.01 78.2

10-432-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 14,724.58 14,724.58 17,718.00 2,993.42 83.1

10-432-3080 WORKERS COMP 87.74 87.74 96.00 8.26 91.4

10-432-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 12,354.38 12,354.38 17,839.00 5,484.62 69.3

10-432-3083 457 PLAN MATCH 1,243.00 1,243.00 1,963.00 720.00 63.3

10-432-3090 TRAINING 1,480.52 1,480.52 5,000.00 3,519.48 29.6

10-432-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 11,051.00 11,051.00 10,463.00 (                   588.00) 105.6

10-432-4055 CONTRACT PLANNING .00 .00 35,533.00 35,533.00 .0

10-432-4070 CONTRACT BLDG INSPECTION SVCS 355,481.40 355,481.40 241,500.00 (            113,981.40) 147.2

10-432-4120 ENGINEERING FEES 15,542.00 15,542.00 20,000.00 4,458.00 77.7

10-432-4140 LEGAL FEES 10,555.50 10,555.50 10,000.00 (                   555.50) 105.6

10-432-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 487.32 487.32 500.00 12.68 97.5

10-432-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 24.00 24.00 .00 (                     24.00) .0

10-432-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 756.19 756.19 500.00 (                   256.19) 151.2

10-432-7100 DUES 1,434.88 1,434.88 1,400.00 (                     34.88) 102.5

10-432-7291 DEVELOPER EXP-REIMBURSABLE 342,562.73 342,562.73 300,000.00 (              42,562.73) 114.2

10-432-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 1,658.41 1,658.41 1,000.00 (                   658.41) 165.8

10-432-9400 CAP OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT 6,719.00 6,719.00 8,000.00 1,281.00 84.0

10-432-9401 COMP PLAN GRANT 31,657.40 31,657.40 150,000.00 118,342.60 21.1

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 909,644.92 909,644.92 943,791.00 34,146.08 96.4

158



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 10

PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS

10-441-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 73,152.40 73,152.40 75,482.00 2,329.60 96.9

10-441-3011 OVERTIME PAY 2,726.43 2,726.43 1,800.00 (                   926.43) 151.5

10-441-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 1,251.76 1,251.76 1,275.00 23.24 98.2

10-441-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 11,137.55 11,137.55 11,407.00 269.45 97.6

10-441-3080 WORKERS COMP 994.97 994.97 1,089.00 94.03 91.4

10-441-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 13,518.60 13,518.60 14,184.00 665.40 95.3

10-441-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 905.80 905.80 1,014.00 108.20 89.3

10-441-3090 TRAINING 2,853.33 2,853.33 5,500.00 2,646.67 51.9

10-441-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 5,518.67 5,518.67 6,713.00 1,194.33 82.2

10-441-4120 ENGINEERING FEES 37,958.47 37,958.47 36,000.00 (                1,958.47) 105.4

10-441-4420 REP & MAINT - BUILDINGS 5,524.18 5,524.18 5,000.00 (                   524.18) 110.5

10-441-4476 LEASE - PW EQUIPMENT 18,966.23 18,966.23 28,566.00 9,599.77 66.4

10-441-4480 R&M SVC'S STREETS 453,199.94 453,199.94 900,000.00 446,800.06 50.4

10-441-4485 SNOW REMOVAL 31,730.18 31,730.18 30,000.00 (                1,730.18) 105.8

10-441-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 10,575.07 10,575.07 11,000.00 424.93 96.1

10-441-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 5,416.50 5,416.50 7,200.00 1,783.50 75.2

10-441-5420 TRASH FEES 528.16 528.16 1,000.00 471.84 52.8

10-441-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 1,596.87 1,596.87 1,300.00 (                   296.87) 122.8

10-441-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 24.00 24.00 .00 (                     24.00) .0

10-441-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 1,897.88 1,897.88 2,500.00 602.12 75.9

10-441-6115 EQUIPMENT 6,397.01 6,397.01 11,450.00 5,052.99 55.9

10-441-6120 UNIFORMS 1,375.73 1,375.73 1,200.00 (                   175.73) 114.6

10-441-6200 FUEL & OIL 13,623.50 13,623.50 12,000.00 (                1,623.50) 113.5

10-441-6501 R&M - FLEET 13,890.45 13,890.45 24,600.00 10,709.55 56.5

10-441-6570 RENTAL EQUIPMENT 14,354.39 14,354.39 13,000.00 (                1,354.39) 110.4

10-441-6586 STREET SIGNS 13,935.11 13,935.11 15,000.00 1,064.89 92.9

10-441-7100 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 382.00 382.00 1,000.00 618.00 38.2

10-441-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 1,307.96 1,307.96 2,500.00 1,192.04 52.3

10-441-9400 CAP OUTLAY - STREETS GENERAL 189,338.00 189,338.00 100,000.00 (              89,338.00) 189.3

10-441-9403 DOLA GRANT - CR4 BRIDGE REPAIR 170,221.38 170,221.38 1,000,000.00 829,778.62 17.0

10-441-9404 CDOT GRANT-I-76 SIGNAL .00 .00 900,000.00 900,000.00 .0

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS 1,104,302.52 1,104,302.52 3,221,780.00 2,117,477.48 34.3

159



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 11

PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS

10-442-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 73,152.40 73,152.40 75,482.00 2,329.60 96.9

10-442-3011 OVERTIME PAY 2,726.43 2,726.43 1,800.00 (                   926.43) 151.5

10-442-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 1,251.76 1,251.76 1,275.00 23.24 98.2

10-442-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 11,137.55 11,137.55 11,407.00 269.45 97.6

10-442-3080 WORKERS COMP 994.97 994.97 1,089.00 94.03 91.4

10-442-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 13,519.32 13,519.32 14,184.00 664.68 95.3

10-442-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 905.80 905.80 1,014.00 108.20 89.3

10-442-3090 TRAINING 2,778.18 2,778.18 3,000.00 221.82 92.6

10-442-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 5,369.16 5,369.16 6,713.00 1,343.84 80.0

10-442-4420 R&M BUILDING 4,236.35 4,236.35 5,000.00 763.65 84.7

10-442-4440 R&M SVC'S VEHICLE 5,336.04 5,336.04 6,850.00 1,513.96 77.9

10-442-4476 LEASES - EQUIPMENT 11,379.12 11,379.12 20,979.00 9,599.88 54.2

10-442-4520 PARK MAINTENANCE 21,968.20 21,968.20 15,000.00 (                6,968.20) 146.5

10-442-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 6,579.20 6,579.20 7,000.00 420.80 94.0

10-442-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 6,606.38 6,606.38 7,800.00 1,193.62 84.7

10-442-5420 TRASH FEES 528.16 528.16 1,000.00 471.84 52.8

10-442-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 1,596.87 1,596.87 1,300.00 (                   296.87) 122.8

10-442-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 24.00 24.00 .00 (                     24.00) .0

10-442-5850 PEST CONTROL 22,146.50 22,146.50 21,825.00 (                   321.50) 101.5

10-442-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 2,512.35 2,512.35 2,000.00 (                   512.35) 125.6

10-442-6115 EQUIPMENT 6,276.87 6,276.87 2,700.00 (                3,576.87) 232.5

10-442-6120 UNIFORMS 1,361.65 1,361.65 1,200.00 (                   161.65) 113.5

10-442-6200 FUEL & OIL 2,103.44 2,103.44 2,000.00 (                   103.44) 105.2

10-442-6575 WEED CONTROL 1,763.33 1,763.33 1,000.00 (                   763.33) 176.3

10-442-6576 LANDSCAPING 654.08 654.08 20,000.00 19,345.92 3.3

10-442-6577 TREE MAINTENANCE 4,950.27 4,950.27 10,000.00 5,049.73 49.5

10-442-7100 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 750.00 750.00 .0

10-442-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 1,211.55 1,211.55 2,500.00 1,288.45 48.5

10-442-9410 GRANT - PARK IMPROVEMENTS .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

10-442-9420 CAPITAL OUTLAY / CONTINGENCY 54,066.00 54,066.00 18,000.00 (              36,066.00) 300.4

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS 267,135.93 267,135.93 287,868.00 20,732.07 92.8

TRASH SERVICE EXPENSES

10-445-0050 CONTRACT SERVICES FOR TRASH 501,553.83 501,553.83 497,500.00 (                4,053.83) 100.8

TOTAL TRASH SERVICE EXPENSES 501,553.83 501,553.83 497,500.00 (                4,053.83) 100.8

DEBT SERVICE

10-446-8877 STREET BOND INTEREST PAYMENT 127,000.00 127,000.00 127,000.00 .00 100.0

10-446-8878 STREET PAVING BOND PRINCIPAL 190,000.00 190,000.00 190,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 317,000.00 317,000.00 317,000.00 .00 100.0

160



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 12

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 5,700,339.27 5,700,339.27 8,648,478.00 2,948,138.73 65.9

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 1,505,738.87 1,505,738.87 (         1,819,669.00) (         3,325,407.87) 82.8

161



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 13

ASSETS

20-1000010 CASH IN COMBINED FUND 337,717.95

TOTAL ASSETS 337,717.95

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

20-2000203 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 85,251.25

TOTAL LIABILITIES 85,251.25

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

20-2000801 CURRENT FUND BALANCE 254,749.97

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (                2,283.27)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 252,466.70

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 252,466.70

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 337,717.95

162



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 14

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

20-335-1735 LOTTERY PROCEEDS 110,723.61 110,723.61 95,000.00 (              15,723.61) 116.6

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 110,723.61 110,723.61 95,000.00 (              15,723.61) 116.6

OTHER

20-370-1850 INTEREST EARNED 9,370.70 9,370.70 1,500.00 (                7,870.70) 624.7

20-370-1854 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS ON INVEST 837.51 837.51 .00 (                   837.51) .0

TOTAL OTHER 10,208.21 10,208.21 1,500.00 (                8,708.21) 680.6

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 120,931.82 120,931.82 96,500.00 (              24,431.82) 125.3

163



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 15

PARKS

20-451-9300 OTHER PROJECTS 123,215.09 123,215.09 305,005.00 181,789.91 40.4

TOTAL PARKS 123,215.09 123,215.09 305,005.00 181,789.91 40.4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 123,215.09 123,215.09 305,005.00 181,789.91 40.4

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (                2,283.27) (                2,283.27) (            208,505.00) (            206,221.73) (    1.1)

164



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

WATER FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 16

ASSETS

50-1000010 CASH IN COMBINED FUND 20,125,566.91

50-1000060 A/R - CUSTOMERS 204,118.25

50-1000063 A/R DELINQUENT 17,963.01

50-1000105 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 399,403.83

50-1000115 WATER RIGHTS 509,687.64

50-1000120 LAND 70,876.26

50-1000125 PLANT 4,880,974.30

50-1000130 BUILDINGS 1,231,505.76

50-1000133 WATER LINES 4,026,781.40

50-1000135 WATER METERS 351,120.19

50-1000136 RO PLANT 3,314,373.40

50-1000137 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 54,033.50

50-1000140 SOFTWARE 47,033.31

50-1000160 ACCUM DEPR PLANT (         4,342,191.24)

50-1000998 DEF OUTFLOW - OPEB 11,525.00

50-1000999 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 80,980.00

TOTAL ASSETS 30,983,751.52

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

50-2000203 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 190,838.35

50-2000206 WAGES PAYABLE 7,896.19

50-2000209 WATER METER DEPOSITS 13,960.00

50-2000214 INTEREST PAY - 97 REV BONDS 2,482.00

50-2000239 COMPENSATED ABSENCE 18,543.05

50-2000274 2012 WATER REVENUE BOND 1,015,000.00

50-2000280 UNEARNED REVENUE 1,835,858.30

50-2000307 SILVERPEAKS DEV SURCHARGE 66,142.84

50-2000310 2012 BOND PREMIUM 15,052.80

50-2000346 NET OPEB LIABILITY 25,928.00

50-2000347 DEF INFLOW - OPEB 9,159.00

50-2000348 NET PENSION LIABILITY (              33,163.00)

50-2000349 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 287,421.00

50-2000392 BLUE LAKES WATER TRANSMISSION 83,250.00

50-2000393 BLUE LAKES WATER RESOURCE CHAR 58,000.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,596,368.53

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

50-2000801 CURRENT FUND BALANCE 20,346,899.07

50-2000810 CONTRIBUTED CAP DEVELOPERS 2,993,794.95

50-2000820 CONTRIB CAP - ST & FED GRANTS 1,156,431.68

50-2000875 RETAINED EARNINGS (            122,912.00)

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 3,013,169.29

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 27,387,382.99

165



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

WATER FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 17

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 27,387,382.99

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 30,983,751.52

166



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 18

WATER OPERATIONS

50-310-1500 WATER SALES 2,399,126.21 2,399,126.21 2,500,000.00 100,873.79 96.0

50-310-1505 SILVERPEAKS WATER SUPPLY FEE 38,893.00 38,893.00 .00 (              38,893.00) .0

50-310-1506 WATER SUPPLY FEE - LOCH STN 34,000.00 34,000.00 32,500.00 (                1,500.00) 104.6

50-310-1507 WATER SUPPLY FEE - BL 200,000.00 200,000.00 .00 (            200,000.00) .0

50-310-1510 DELINQUENT NOTICE FEE 44,958.00 44,958.00 42,000.00 (                2,958.00) 107.0

50-310-1651 NEW WATER METERS 39,250.00 39,250.00 31,250.00 (                8,000.00) 125.6

50-310-1652 CONSTRUCTION WATER PERMIT FEES 26,718.02 26,718.02 18,950.00 (                7,768.02) 141.0

50-310-1653 METER RENTAL 3,585.00 3,585.00 1,500.00 (                2,085.00) 239.0

TOTAL WATER OPERATIONS 2,786,530.23 2,786,530.23 2,626,200.00 (            160,330.23) 106.1

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

50-335-0084 BOND / LOAN PROCEEDS .00 .00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 .0

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL .00 .00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 .0

FEES

50-350-1511 WATER RESOURCE FEE - BL 443,762.87 443,762.87 .00 (            443,762.87) .0

50-350-1520 WATER PIFS 1,407,043.00 1,407,043.00 1,121,125.00 (            285,918.00) 125.5

50-350-1652 CONST. WATER HYD. METER FEES 126,477.96 126,477.96 20,000.00 (            106,477.96) 632.4

50-350-1804 ADMINSTRATIVE SERVICES FEE 5,484.50 5,484.50 2,500.00 (                2,984.50) 219.4

50-350-1812 ACCOUNT SETUP/TRANSFER FEE 4,223.00 4,223.00 4,000.00 (                   223.00) 105.6

50-350-1820 DISCONNECT/RECONNECT FEES 18,560.00 18,560.00 30,000.00 11,440.00 61.9

50-350-1921 WATER TAP FEES 7,065.00 7,065.00 5,625.00 (                1,440.00) 125.6

TOTAL FEES 2,012,616.33 2,012,616.33 1,183,250.00 (            829,366.33) 170.1

OTHER

50-370-1850 INTEREST EARNED 610,199.54 610,199.54 324,000.00 (            286,199.54) 188.3

50-370-1854 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS ON INVEST 52,768.22 52,768.22 .00 (              52,768.22) .0

50-370-1990 OTHER REVENUE 5,208.01 5,208.01 1,200.00 (                4,008.01) 434.0

TOTAL OTHER 668,175.77 668,175.77 325,200.00 (            342,975.77) 205.5

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 5,467,322.33 5,467,322.33 9,134,650.00 3,667,327.67 59.9

167



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 19

OPERATIONS

50-410-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 120,998.07 120,998.07 125,103.00 4,104.93 96.7

50-410-3011 OVERTIME PAY 4,771.25 4,771.25 3,150.00 (                1,621.25) 151.5

50-410-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 2,073.75 2,073.75 2,116.00 42.25 98.0

50-410-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 18,453.22 18,453.22 18,930.00 476.78 97.5

50-410-3080 WORKERS COMP 1,735.93 1,735.93 1,900.00 164.07 91.4

50-410-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 22,646.89 22,646.89 23,819.00 1,172.11 95.1

50-410-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 1,448.64 1,448.64 1,638.00 189.36 88.4

50-410-3090 TRAINING 2,371.32 2,371.32 1,500.00 (                   871.32) 158.1

50-410-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 209,391.39 209,391.39 385,160.00 175,768.61 54.4

50-410-4120 ENGINEERING FEES .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

50-410-4140 LEGAL FEES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

50-410-4260 LABORATORY FEES 16,583.55 16,583.55 24,000.00 7,416.45 69.1

50-410-4291 OPERATOR IN CHARGE 156,510.17 156,510.17 200,700.00 44,189.83 78.0

50-410-4476 LEASES - EQUIPMENT 7,587.00 7,587.00 7,587.00 .00 100.0

50-410-4500 R&M SVC'S LINES 32,662.94 32,662.94 100,000.00 67,337.06 32.7

50-410-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 132,127.16 132,127.16 160,000.00 27,872.84 82.6

50-410-5411 ELECTRIC CHRGS-WELLS-IREA AGMT 18,245.81 18,245.81 30,000.00 11,754.19 60.8

50-410-5420 TRASH FEES 63.15 63.15 1,000.00 936.85 6.3

50-410-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 1,850.72 1,850.72 2,000.00 149.28 92.5

50-410-5500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING 390.83 390.83 1,000.00 609.17 39.1

50-410-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 73,478.39 73,478.39 90,000.00 16,521.61 81.6

50-410-6105 LAB SUPPLIES 2,355.09 2,355.09 7,000.00 4,644.91 33.6

50-410-6115 EQUIPMENT 74,972.85 74,972.85 140,000.00 65,027.15 53.6

50-410-6200 FUEL & OIL 1,413.00 1,413.00 1,500.00 87.00 94.2

50-410-6300 CHEMICALS 85,900.76 85,900.76 130,000.00 44,099.24 66.1

50-410-6500 REPAIRS AND MAINT - PLANT 125,257.47 125,257.47 95,000.00 (              30,257.47) 131.9

50-410-6501 R&M - FLEET 5,627.26 5,627.26 7,000.00 1,372.74 80.4

50-410-6570 RENTAL EQUIPMENT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

50-410-7300 WATER RIGHTS LEASE 120,960.84 120,960.84 175,000.00 54,039.16 69.1

50-410-7400 WATER RIGHTS PURCHASES 4,507.94 4,507.94 300,000.00 295,492.06 1.5

50-410-7410 CONTINGENCY RESERVE .00 .00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .0

50-410-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 659.36 659.36 2,000.00 1,340.64 33.0

50-410-9500 CAPITAL OUTLAY PLANT EXPANSION .00 .00 2,095,000.00 2,095,000.00 .0

50-410-9560 CAPITAL MACH & EQUIPMENT 70,353.50 70,353.50 153,000.00 82,646.50 46.0

50-410-9595 CIP WATER STORAGE 189,453.63 189,453.63 3,922,500.00 3,733,046.37 4.8

50-410-9596 CIP-WELLS 16,283.15 16,283.15 882,000.00 865,716.85 1.9

50-410-9597 CIP-WATER LINES .00 .00 1,100,000.00 1,100,000.00 .0

TOTAL OPERATIONS 1,521,135.03 1,521,135.03 10,529,603.00 9,008,467.97 14.5

168



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 20

ADMINISTRATION

50-423-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 235,119.42 235,119.42 236,258.00 1,138.58 99.5

50-423-3011 OVERTIME PAY 113.47 113.47 525.00 411.53 21.6

50-423-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 3,819.96 3,819.96 3,907.00 87.04 97.8

50-423-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 34,734.55 34,734.55 35,055.00 320.45 99.1

50-423-3080 WORKERS COMP 172.68 172.68 189.00 16.32 91.4

50-423-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 29,934.62 29,934.62 32,820.00 2,885.38 91.2

50-423-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 2,537.50 2,537.50 3,231.00 693.50 78.5

50-423-3090 TRAINING 3,633.13 3,633.13 5,000.00 1,366.87 72.7

50-423-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 51,012.35 51,012.35 70,833.00 19,820.65 72.0

50-423-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 54,365.80 54,365.80 54,633.00 267.20 99.5

50-423-4100 AUDITING FEES 7,666.67 7,666.67 15,000.00 7,333.33 51.1

50-423-4120 ENGINEERING FEES 162,667.17 162,667.17 150,000.00 (              12,667.17) 108.4

50-423-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES 85,078.53 85,078.53 110,000.00 24,921.47 77.3

50-423-4380 CUSTODIAN FEES 4,479.96 4,479.96 5,000.00 520.04 89.6

50-423-4460 R&M SVC'S BUILDINGS 7,594.05 7,594.05 10,000.00 2,405.95 75.9

50-423-4470 LEASE-COPIER/OFFICE EQUIP 1,515.10 1,515.10 1,600.00 84.90 94.7

50-423-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 40,976.82 40,976.82 45,000.00 4,023.18 91.1

50-423-5300 POSTAGE 500.00 500.00 1,500.00 1,000.00 33.3

50-423-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 4,882.79 4,882.79 6,500.00 1,617.21 75.1

50-423-5420 TRASH FEES 114.16 114.16 500.00 385.84 22.8

50-423-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 4,410.93 4,410.93 4,800.00 389.07 91.9

50-423-5700 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 573.75 573.75 540.00 (                     33.75) 106.3

50-423-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 617.63 617.63 702.00 84.37 88.0

50-423-5800 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 68.90 68.90 250.00 181.10 27.6

50-423-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 1,836.24 1,836.24 2,500.00 663.76 73.5

50-423-7100 DUES 3,368.37 3,368.37 6,650.00 3,281.63 50.7

50-423-7220 BANK FEES 250.00 250.00 250.00 .00 100.0

50-423-7221 CREDIT CARD FEES 17,090.66 17,090.66 19,200.00 2,109.34 89.0

50-423-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 2,116.36 2,116.36 2,500.00 383.64 84.7

50-423-9400 CAP OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT 7,510.18 7,510.18 40,000.00 32,489.82 18.8

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 768,761.75 768,761.75 864,943.00 96,181.25 88.9

DEBT SERVICE

50-430-8970 97 BONDS - PRINCIPAL 135,000.00 135,000.00 135,000.00 .00 100.0

50-430-8977 07 BOND - INTEREST 29,256.26 29,256.26 29,256.00 (                         .26) 100.0

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 164,256.26 164,256.26 164,256.00 (                         .26) 100.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 2,454,153.04 2,454,153.04 11,558,802.00 9,104,648.96 21.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 3,013,169.29 3,013,169.29 (         2,424,152.00) (         5,437,321.29) 124.3

169



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

SEWER FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 21

ASSETS

55-1000010 CASH IN COMBINED FUND 16,693,636.13

55-1000060 A/R - CUSTOMERS 105,787.36

55-1000080 DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 460,109.54

55-1000105 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 283,384.35

55-1000110 VEHICLES 21,370.67

55-1000120 LAND 263,687.53

55-1000125 PLANT 15,683,664.34

55-1000130 BUILDINGS 1,057,729.49

55-1000140 SOFTWARE 56,438.66

55-1000145 MECHANICAL WASTE WATER PLANT 1,174,408.43

55-1000147 STORM DRAINAGE 786,291.80

55-1000160 ACCUM DEPR PLANT (         7,081,301.70)

55-1000998 DEF OUTFLOW - OPEB 8,458.00

55-1000999 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 59,429.00

TOTAL ASSETS 29,573,093.60

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

55-2000203 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 76,408.93

55-2000206 WAGES PAYABLE 5,788.27

55-2000239 COMPENSATED ABSENCE 13,458.27

55-2000346 NET OPEB LIABILITY 19,028.00

55-2000347 DEF INFLOWS - OPEB 6,722.00

55-2000348 NET PENSION LIABILITY (              24,337.00)

55-2000349 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 210,929.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 307,997.47

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

55-2000801 CURRENT FUND BALANCE 21,549,760.43

55-2000810 CONTRIBUTED CAP DEVELOPERS 1,783,328.00

55-2000820 CONTRIB CAP - ST & FED GRANTS 839,321.55

55-2000875 RETAINED EARNINGS (            226,704.00)

55-2000881 CONTRIBUTED TAP FEES 1,739,223.00

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 3,580,167.15

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 29,265,096.13

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 29,265,096.13

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 29,573,093.60

170



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 22

SEWER OPERATIONS

55-310-1500 LOCHBUIE SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 1,139,508.09 1,139,508.09 1,078,000.00 (              61,508.09) 105.7

TOTAL SEWER OPERATIONS 1,139,508.09 1,139,508.09 1,078,000.00 (              61,508.09) 105.7

FEES

55-350-1510 DELINQUENT NOTICE 20,987.40 20,987.40 18,500.00 (                2,487.40) 113.5

55-350-1522 SEWER COLLECTION PIF 609,578.00 609,578.00 487,500.00 (            122,078.00) 125.0

55-350-1524 SEWER TREATMENT PIF 1,732,545.00 1,732,545.00 1,328,250.00 (            404,295.00) 130.4

55-350-1525 SEWER FACILITIES SURCHARGE 8,900.00 8,900.00 6,000.00 (                2,900.00) 148.3

55-350-1812 ACCOUNT SETUP/TRANSFER FEE 1,981.00 1,981.00 1,800.00 (                   181.00) 110.1

55-350-1901 CITY OF BRIGHTON FLOWS 1,083,912.86 1,083,912.86 1,000,000.00 (              83,912.86) 108.4

55-350-1920 LOCHBUIE SEWER TAP FEES 13,816.00 13,816.00 11,000.00 (                2,816.00) 125.6

TOTAL FEES 3,471,720.26 3,471,720.26 2,853,050.00 (            618,670.26) 121.7

OTHER REVENUES

55-370-1850 INTEREST EARNED 486,037.27 486,037.27 252,000.00 (            234,037.27) 192.9

55-370-1854 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS ON INVEST 43,166.73 43,166.73 .00 (              43,166.73) .0

55-370-1990 OTHER REVENUE 1,612.75 1,612.75 1,000.00 (                   612.75) 161.3

TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 530,816.75 530,816.75 253,000.00 (            277,816.75) 209.8

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 5,142,045.10 5,142,045.10 4,184,050.00 (            957,995.10) 122.9

171



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 23

OPERATIONS

55-410-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 12,343.86 12,343.86 22,300.00 9,956.14 55.4

55-410-4100 AUDITING/RATE STUDY FEES 3,372.50 3,372.50 .00 (                3,372.50) .0

55-410-4120 ENGINEERING FEES .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

55-410-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

55-410-4260 LABORATORY FEES 15,699.08 15,699.08 30,000.00 14,300.92 52.3

55-410-4291 OPERATOR IN CHARGE 155,207.37 155,207.37 200,700.00 45,492.63 77.3

55-410-4476 LEASES - EQUIPMENT .00 .00 4,800.00 4,800.00 .0

55-410-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 193,107.83 193,107.83 180,000.00 (              13,107.83) 107.3

55-410-5420 TRASH FEES 1,241.50 1,241.50 1,600.00 358.50 77.6

55-410-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 3,017.08 3,017.08 3,000.00 (                     17.08) 100.6

55-410-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 5,291.20 5,291.20 10,000.00 4,708.80 52.9

55-410-6105 LAB SUPPLIES 5,567.85 5,567.85 8,000.00 2,432.15 69.6

55-410-6115 EQUIPMENT 7,714.59 7,714.59 35,000.00 27,285.41 22.0

55-410-6200 FUEL & OIL 1,417.25 1,417.25 1,500.00 82.75 94.5

55-410-6300 CHEMICALS 66,896.03 66,896.03 175,000.00 108,103.97 38.2

55-410-6420 SLUDGE HAULING 177,093.64 177,093.64 175,000.00 (                2,093.64) 101.2

55-410-6430 GREASE HAULING 10,562.50 10,562.50 25,000.00 14,437.50 42.3

55-410-6440 UV SYSTEM .00 .00 23,000.00 23,000.00 .0

55-410-6500 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 122,780.54 122,780.54 127,000.00 4,219.46 96.7

55-410-6501 R&M - FLEET 232.30 232.30 1,000.00 767.70 23.2

55-410-7410 CONTINGENCY RESERVE .00 .00 350,000.00 350,000.00 .0

55-410-9400 CAPITAL OUTLAY / CONTINGENCY 131,740.31 131,740.31 84,000.00 (              47,740.31) 156.8

55-410-9520 CIP-CONSTRUCTION-PLANT EXPANSI 64,922.50 64,922.50 1,500,000.00 1,435,077.50 4.3

TOTAL OPERATIONS 978,207.93 978,207.93 2,991,900.00 2,013,692.07 32.7

COLLECTIONS

55-420-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 86,428.97 86,428.97 89,360.00 2,931.03 96.7

55-420-3011 OVERTIME PAY 3,408.07 3,408.07 2,250.00 (                1,158.07) 151.5

55-420-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 1,481.51 1,481.51 1,512.00 30.49 98.0

55-420-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 13,181.51 13,181.51 13,522.00 340.49 97.5

55-420-3080 WORKERS COMP 1,239.84 1,239.84 1,357.00 117.16 91.4

55-420-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 16,177.01 16,177.01 17,014.00 836.99 95.1

55-420-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 1,034.76 1,034.76 1,170.00 135.24 88.4

55-420-3090 TRAINING 349.93 349.93 1,500.00 1,150.07 23.3

55-420-4500 R&M SVC'S LINES 38,610.14 38,610.14 546,000.00 507,389.86 7.1

TOTAL COLLECTIONS 161,911.74 161,911.74 673,685.00 511,773.26 24.0

172



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/12/2024     08:10AM       PAGE: 24

ADMINISTRATION

55-423-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 161,132.32 161,132.32 161,874.00 741.68 99.5

55-423-3011 OVERTIME PAY 92.57 92.57 400.00 307.43 23.1

55-423-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 2,618.59 2,618.59 2,678.00 59.41 97.8

55-423-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 23,801.34 23,801.34 24,015.00 213.66 99.1

55-423-3080 WORKERS COMP 117.83 117.83 129.00 11.17 91.3

55-423-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 21,085.42 21,085.42 23,007.00 1,921.58 91.7

55-423-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 1,735.00 1,735.00 2,197.00 462.00 79.0

55-423-3090 TRAINING 3,533.22 3,533.22 5,000.00 1,466.78 70.7

55-423-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 50,547.21 50,547.21 70,833.00 20,285.79 71.4

55-423-4050 PROF. SVCS/CONTRACT IT FEES 54,127.44 54,127.44 54,633.00 505.56 99.1

55-423-4100 AUDITING FEES 7,666.67 7,666.67 8,000.00 333.33 95.8

55-423-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES 8,332.00 8,332.00 10,000.00 1,668.00 83.3

55-423-4380 CUSTODIAN FEES 4,480.06 4,480.06 5,000.00 519.94 89.6

55-423-4460 R&M SVC'S BUILDINGS 7,593.96 7,593.96 10,000.00 2,406.04 75.9

55-423-4470 LEASE-COPIER/OFFICE EQUIP 1,515.15 1,515.15 1,600.00 84.85 94.7

55-423-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 40,940.37 40,940.37 45,000.00 4,059.63 91.0

55-423-5300 POSTAGE 500.00 500.00 1,500.00 1,000.00 33.3

55-423-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 4,882.76 4,882.76 6,500.00 1,617.24 75.1

55-423-5420 TRASH FEES 114.18 114.18 500.00 385.82 22.8

55-423-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 4,410.84 4,410.84 4,800.00 389.16 91.9

55-423-5700 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 382.50 382.50 360.00 (                     22.50) 106.3

55-423-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 411.75 411.75 468.00 56.25 88.0

55-423-5800 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 17.16 17.16 250.00 232.84 6.9

55-423-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 1,836.14 1,836.14 2,000.00 163.86 91.8

55-423-7100 DUES 6,068.40 6,068.40 9,750.00 3,681.60 62.2

55-423-7221 CREDIT CARD FEES 11,869.05 11,869.05 12,300.00 430.95 96.5

55-423-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 1,946.35 1,946.35 2,500.00 553.65 77.9

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 421,758.28 421,758.28 465,294.00 43,535.72 90.6

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,561,877.95 1,561,877.95 4,130,879.00 2,569,001.05 37.8

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 3,580,167.15 3,580,167.15 53,171.00 (         3,526,996.15) 6733.3

173



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

COMBINED CASH INVESTMENT

JANUARY 31, 2024

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:25AM       PAGE: 1

COMBINED CASH ACCOUNTS

01-1000015 CHASE-OPERATING ACCOUNT 1,425,614.84

01-1000016 CSIP 8,241,843.14

01-1000017 CSAFE 8,259,308.00

01-1000020 CASH ON HAND 600.00

01-1000021 CASH - PETTY CASH 350.00

01-1000031 CHASE-SEWER TREATMENT PIFS 1,272,833.40

01-1000057 COLOTRUST - POOLED FUNDS 8,863,049.68

01-1000058 CHASE-CD-SEWER TREATMENT PIF 6,882,256.27

01-1000059 CHASE-CD-ARPA FUNDS 1,880,093.94

01-1000060 CHASE - SCHOOL CONTRIBUTION 416,924.48

01-1000061 CHASE - SILVERPEAKS SUPPLY 855,414.67

01-1000062 CHASE - INTERSTATE EXCHANGE 451,728.74

01-1000063 CHASE - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN 40.67

01-1000070 DEPOSITS 1,320.00

01-1000071 JPMC FEDERAL HOME LOAN-2/2025 1,504,697.00

01-1000072 JPMC FEDERAL FARM CR-7/2025 1,509,655.00

01-1000073 JPMC T BILL - 8/24 2,923,053.00

01-1000074 JPMC T BILL - 2/24 1,995,919.00

01-1000075 JPMC CASH ACCT 36,562.50

01-1000752 XBP EFT CLEARING 39,169.56

TOTAL COMBINED CASH 46,560,433.89

01-1000010 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS (       46,560,433.89)

TOTAL UNALLOCATED CASH .00

CASH ALLOCATION RECONCILIATION

10 ALLOCATION TO GENERAL FUND 8,893,736.68

20 ALLOCATION TO CONSERVATION TRUST FUND 254,576.01

50 ALLOCATION TO WATER FUND 20,184,306.78

55 ALLOCATION TO SEWER FUND 17,227,814.42

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS TO OTHER FUNDS 46,560,433.89

ALLOCATION FROM COMBINED CASH FUND - 01-1000010 (       46,560,433.89)

ZERO PROOF IF ALLOCATIONS BALANCE .00

174



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:25AM       PAGE: 2

ASSETS

10-1000010 CASH IN COMBINED FUND 8,893,736.68

10-1000057 VEHICLE ESCROW-159950.1-'24 DT 391,551.71

10-1000060 A/R - CUSTOMERS 7,350.81

10-1000069 CASH WITH COUNTY TREASURER 49,627.57

10-1000070 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE 576,917.00

10-1000088 A/R DEVELOPERS (            126,266.59)

10-1000091 DUE FROM OTHER GOVTS 277,488.07

TOTAL ASSETS 10,070,405.25

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

10-2000203 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 88,774.04

10-2000204 UNCLAIMED PROPERTY 1,810.22

10-2000206 ACCRUED WAGES PAYABLE 42,326.53

10-2000209 SUTA/WC PAYABLE 417.36

10-2000234 PUBLIC SAFETY SURCHARGE 23,220.00

10-2000241 DEFERRED REVENUE- PROPERTY TAX 576,917.00

10-2000285 LANDSCAPING ESCROW 19,550.00

10-2000390 SILVER PEAKS DEVEL SURCHG 5,984.66

TOTAL LIABILITIES 758,999.81

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

10-2000801 CURRENT FUND BALANCE 9,518,368.80

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (            206,963.36)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 9,311,405.44

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 9,311,405.44

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 10,070,405.25

175



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:25AM       PAGE: 3

TAX

10-320-1600 PROPERTY TAX 496.43 496.43 576,917.00 576,420.57 .1

10-320-1605 SPECIFIC OWNERSHIP TAX 1,742.95 1,742.95 23,000.00 21,257.05 7.6

10-320-1610 GENERAL SALES TAX .00 .00 1,900,000.00 1,900,000.00 .0

10-320-1615 MOTOR VEHICLE SALES TAX 45,360.74 45,360.74 550,000.00 504,639.26 8.3

10-320-1620 BUILDING USE TAX 2,656.83 2,656.83 556,000.00 553,343.17 .5

10-320-1621 OCCUPATIONAL TAX .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

10-320-1622 ROAD AND BRIDGE DISTRIBUTION .00 .00 36,500.00 36,500.00 .0

TOTAL TAX 50,256.95 50,256.95 3,643,217.00 3,592,960.05 1.4

FRANCHISES

10-325-1625 FRANCHISE FEE - UNITED POWER .00 .00 113,000.00 113,000.00 .0

10-325-1635 FRANCHISE FEE-COMCAST .00 .00 48,000.00 48,000.00 .0

10-325-1640 FRANCHISE FEE - XCEL .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

10-325-1925 FRANCHISE FEE - CENTURY LINK .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

TOTAL FRANCHISES .00 .00 212,200.00 212,200.00 .0

LICENSE & PERMIT

10-330-1700 BUSINESS LICENSES 4,425.00 4,425.00 10,000.00 5,575.00 44.3

10-330-1701 LIQUOR LICENSES .00 .00 1,405.00 1,405.00 .0

10-330-1702 PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY PERMIT 8,865.50 8,865.50 20,000.00 11,134.50 44.3

10-330-1705 BUILDING PERMITS 10,828.36 10,828.36 525,600.00 514,771.64 2.1

10-330-1714 OTHER PERMITS 100.00 100.00 715.00 615.00 14.0

10-330-1715 ANIMAL PERMITS 125.00 125.00 600.00 475.00 20.8

TOTAL LICENSE & PERMIT 24,343.86 24,343.86 558,320.00 533,976.14 4.4

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

10-335-1725 HUTF 18,403.10 18,403.10 229,252.00 210,848.90 8.0

10-335-1730 CIGARETTE TAX .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-335-1740 MOTOR VEHICLE 2,027.45 2,027.45 26,000.00 23,972.55 7.8

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 20,430.55 20,430.55 257,752.00 237,321.45 7.9

GRANTS

10-340-1250 POST TRAINING REIMBURSEMENTS .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

10-340-1301 DOLA - COMP PLAN GRANT .00 .00 73,000.00 73,000.00 .0

10-340-1302 DOLA - CR 4 BRIDGE REPAIR .00 .00 880,000.00 880,000.00 .0

10-340-1729 CDOT - GREENWAY TRAILS .00 .00 131,962.00 131,962.00 .0

TOTAL GRANTS .00 .00 1,087,962.00 1,087,962.00 .0

176



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:25AM       PAGE: 4

FEES

10-350-1804 ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 5,918.96 5,918.96 78,400.00 72,481.04 7.6

10-350-1806 PLAN REVIEW FEE 6,502.81 6,502.81 39,200.00 32,697.19 16.6

10-350-1808 COURT BOND FEE 250.00 250.00 .00 (                   250.00) .0

10-350-1809 LAND USE APPLICATION .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-350-1810 COPY FEES 45.00 45.00 600.00 555.00 7.5

10-350-1812 BAG FEE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-350-1817 INFRASTRUCTURE FEE .00 .00 64,336.00 64,336.00 .0

10-350-1818 INTERSTATE EXCHANGE .00 .00 61,627.00 61,627.00 .0

10-350-1819 PUBLIC SAFETY FEE .00 .00 9,880.00 9,880.00 .0

TOTAL FEES 12,716.77 12,716.77 261,543.00 248,826.23 4.9

FINES & FORFEITS

10-360-1825 FINES - GENERAL 6,542.50 6,542.50 66,000.00 59,457.50 9.9

10-360-1831 VIN INSPECTION FEES .00 .00 900.00 900.00 .0

10-360-1832 COURT FEES 1,255.00 1,255.00 18,000.00 16,745.00 7.0

10-360-1886 SEX OFFENDER REGISTRY FEE 125.00 125.00 1,500.00 1,375.00 8.3

10-360-1994 VEHICLE IMPOUNDS 405.00 405.00 2,500.00 2,095.00 16.2

TOTAL FINES & FORFEITS 8,327.50 8,327.50 88,900.00 80,572.50 9.4

TRASH SERVICE REVENUE

10-365-1510 DELINQUENT NOTICE 1,033.20 1,033.20 8,700.00 7,666.80 11.9

10-365-1812 ACCOUNT SETUP/TRANSFER FEE 156.00 156.00 850.00 694.00 18.4

10-365-1990 OTHER REVENUE 69.00 69.00 350.00 281.00 19.7

10-365-2000 TRASH SERVICE 46,204.10 46,204.10 567,000.00 520,795.90 8.2

TOTAL TRASH SERVICE REVENUE 47,462.30 47,462.30 576,900.00 529,437.70 8.2

OTHER

10-370-1850 INTEREST EARNED 70,294.38 70,294.38 280,000.00 209,705.62 25.1

10-370-1852 DEVELOPER REIMBURSEMENTS 32,386.00 32,386.00 300,000.00 267,614.00 10.8

10-370-1854 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS ON INVEST 3,395.24 3,395.24 .00 (                3,395.24) .0

10-370-1855 T MOBILE RENTAL 2,256.92 2,256.92 27,083.00 24,826.08 8.3

10-370-1856 VERIZON WIRELESS LEASE 1,987.34 1,987.34 12,123.00 10,135.66 16.4

10-370-1955 OIL & GAS ROYALTIES 1,646.02 1,646.02 21,500.00 19,853.98 7.7

10-370-1956 MINERAL LEASE .00 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .0

10-370-1957 SEVERANCE TAX .00 .00 230,000.00 230,000.00 .0

10-370-1962 EVENTS & FESTIVALS .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

10-370-1990 OTHER REVENUE 25.53 25.53 22,000.00 21,974.47 .1

10-370-1991 UNITED POWER CAPITAL CREDITS .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

10-370-1998 LEASE PROCEEDS .00 .00 173,000.00 173,000.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER 111,991.43 111,991.43 1,153,706.00 1,041,714.57 9.7

177



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:25AM       PAGE: 5

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 275,529.36 275,529.36 7,840,500.00 7,564,970.64 3.5

178



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:25AM       PAGE: 6

LEGISLATIVE

10-421-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 4,507.04 4,507.04 84,081.00 79,573.96 5.4

10-421-3011 OVERTIME PAY .00 .00 400.00 400.00 .0

10-421-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 69.59 69.59 1,369.00 1,299.41 5.1

10-421-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 672.01 672.01 12,585.00 11,912.99 5.3

10-421-3080 WORKERS COMP 9.96 9.96 105.00 95.04 9.5

10-421-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 276.98 276.98 8,132.00 7,855.02 3.4

10-421-3083 457 PLAN MATCH 36.00 36.00 1,092.00 1,056.00 3.3

10-421-3090 TRAINING .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-421-4020 OTHER FEES & PROF SERVICES 1,021.42 1,021.42 8,500.00 7,478.58 12.0

10-421-5700 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 22.50 22.50 270.00 247.50 8.3

10-421-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 17.25 17.25 399.00 381.75 4.3

10-421-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-421-6200 SPECIAL EVENTS 500.00 500.00 59,500.00 59,000.00 .8

10-421-7100 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 2,801.00 2,801.00 11,501.00 8,700.00 24.4

10-421-7150 ELECTIONS .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-421-7250 RECORDING / PUBLISHING FEES 18,807.72 18,807.72 500.00 (              18,307.72) 3761.5

10-421-8880 OTHER EXPENSE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

TOTAL LEGISLATIVE 28,741.47 28,741.47 211,434.00 182,692.53 13.6

JUDICIAL

10-422-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 4,743.08 4,743.08 65,131.00 60,387.92 7.3

10-422-3011 OVERTIME PAY .00 .00 275.00 275.00 .0

10-422-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 77.24 77.24 1,079.00 1,001.76 7.2

10-422-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 789.72 789.72 10,747.00 9,957.28 7.4

10-422-3080 WORKERS COMP 9.68 9.68 102.00 92.32 9.5

10-422-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 1,032.48 1,032.48 11,974.00 10,941.52 8.6

10-422-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 105.50 105.50 1,638.00 1,532.50 6.4

10-422-3090 TRAINING .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

10-422-4000 JUDGE FEES 600.00 600.00 7,200.00 6,600.00 8.3

10-422-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES 600.00 600.00 8,200.00 7,600.00 7.3

10-422-4340 INTERPRETER SERVICE 155.00 155.00 2,280.00 2,125.00 6.8

10-422-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-422-7100 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 120.00 120.00 .0

TOTAL JUDICIAL 8,112.70 8,112.70 112,746.00 104,633.30 7.2

179



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:25AM       PAGE: 7

ADMINISTRATION

10-423-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 18,062.17 18,062.17 225,456.00 207,393.83 8.0

10-423-3011 OVERTIME PAY .00 .00 475.00 475.00 .0

10-423-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 293.70 293.70 3,753.00 3,459.30 7.8

10-423-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 2,687.42 2,687.42 33,614.00 30,926.58 8.0

10-423-3080 WORKERS COMP 28.57 28.57 301.00 272.43 9.5

10-423-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 1,630.91 1,630.91 26,169.00 24,538.09 6.2

10-423-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 196.50 196.50 2,724.00 2,527.50 7.2

10-423-3090 TRAINING .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-423-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 3,542.87 3,542.87 36,120.00 32,577.13 9.8

10-423-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 749.33 749.33 22,000.00 21,250.67 3.4

10-423-4100 AUDITING FEES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-423-4120 ENGINEERING FEES .00 .00 36,200.00 36,200.00 .0

10-423-4140 LEGAL FEES 18,112.49 18,112.49 100,000.00 81,887.51 18.1

10-423-4380 CUSTODIAN FEES 373.33 373.33 6,000.00 5,626.67 6.2

10-423-4400 ANIMAL CONTROL .00 .00 3,009.00 3,009.00 .0

10-423-4460 R&M SVC'S BUILDINGS 828.96 828.96 16,500.00 15,671.04 5.0

10-423-4470 LEASE-COPIER/OFFICE EQUIPMENT 78.53 78.53 2,600.00 2,521.47 3.0

10-423-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 3,498.52 3,498.52 14,000.00 10,501.48 25.0

10-423-5300 POSTAGE .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-423-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 637.98 637.98 7,000.00 6,362.02 9.1

10-423-5420 TRASH FEES 7.50 7.50 120.00 112.50 6.3

10-423-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 370.25 370.25 6,100.00 5,729.75 6.1

10-423-5500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING .00 .00 5,300.00 5,300.00 .0

10-423-5700 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 52.50 52.50 630.00 577.50 8.3

10-423-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 68.25 68.25 867.00 798.75 7.9

10-423-5800 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

10-423-5850 PEST CONTROL 815.18 815.18 1,900.00 1,084.82 42.9

10-423-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 257.65 257.65 4,000.00 3,742.35 6.4

10-423-6115 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-423-7100 DUES 2,317.56 2,317.56 6,000.00 3,682.44 38.6

10-423-7200 TREASURER'S COLLECT FEES 4.97 4.97 5,770.00 5,765.03 .1

10-423-7220 BANK FEES 143.70 143.70 650.00 506.30 22.1

10-423-7221 CREDIT CARD FEES .00 .00 14,800.00 14,800.00 .0

10-423-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 38.45 38.45 3,600.00 3,561.55 1.1

10-423-9400 CAPITAL OUTLAY / CONTINGENCY .00 .00 105,000.00 105,000.00 .0

10-423-9401 GREENWAY TRAIL .00 .00 428,615.00 428,615.00 .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 54,797.29 54,797.29 1,141,273.00 1,086,475.71 4.8

180



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:25AM       PAGE: 8

POLICE

10-431-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 101,015.21 101,015.21 1,360,709.00 1,259,693.79 7.4

10-431-3011 OVERTIME PAY 2,202.83 2,202.83 40,925.00 38,722.17 5.4

10-431-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 1,688.71 1,688.71 23,130.00 21,441.29 7.3

10-431-3060 FPPA RETIREMENT COST 12,388.28 12,388.28 164,481.00 152,092.72 7.5

10-431-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 1,340.26 1,340.26 21,244.00 19,903.74 6.3

10-431-3080 WORKERS COMP 2,679.92 2,679.92 28,238.00 25,558.08 9.5

10-431-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 12,505.76 12,505.76 160,996.00 148,490.24 7.8

10-431-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 451.50 451.50 8,190.00 7,738.50 5.5

10-431-3090 TRAINING 4,116.00 4,116.00 15,000.00 10,884.00 27.4

10-431-3091 PRE-HIRE EVALS .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

10-431-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 21,104.12 21,104.12 59,404.00 38,299.88 35.5

10-431-4021 WELD COUNTY DISPATCH 64,761.27 64,761.27 76,987.00 12,225.73 84.1

10-431-4022 VICTIMS ADVOCATE .00 .00 35,258.00 35,258.00 .0

10-431-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 1,711.90 1,711.90 56,250.00 54,538.10 3.0

10-431-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES 487.50 487.50 5,000.00 4,512.50 9.8

10-431-4260 LABORATORY FEES .00 .00 2,400.00 2,400.00 .0

10-431-4460 R&M SVC'S BUILDINGS 454.50 454.50 10,750.00 10,295.50 4.2

10-431-4475 PD LEASES .00 .00 47,079.00 47,079.00 .0

10-431-4476 COPIER LEASE 231.30 231.30 3,100.00 2,868.70 7.5

10-431-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 19,982.96 19,982.96 85,000.00 65,017.04 23.5

10-431-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 603.72 603.72 5,700.00 5,096.28 10.6

10-431-5420 TRASH FEES 7.50 7.50 120.00 112.50 6.3

10-431-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 1,169.91 1,169.91 15,000.00 13,830.09 7.8

10-431-5500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-431-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 6.00 6.00 192.00 186.00 3.1

10-431-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 1,289.87 1,289.87 6,700.00 5,410.13 19.3

10-431-6115 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-431-6116 AMMUNITION .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

10-431-6120 UNIFORMS 1,711.33 1,711.33 23,000.00 21,288.67 7.4

10-431-6200 FUEL & OIL 1,419.15 1,419.15 21,600.00 20,180.85 6.6

10-431-6500 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-431-6501 R&M FLEET 169.88 169.88 26,000.00 25,830.12 .7

10-431-7100 DUES 2,315.00 2,315.00 19,750.00 17,435.00 11.7

10-431-8880 OTHER EXPENSE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-431-9400 CAPITAL OUTLAY / CONTINGENCY .00 .00 82,500.00 82,500.00 .0

TOTAL POLICE 255,814.38 255,814.38 2,436,703.00 2,180,888.62 10.5

181



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 9

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

10-432-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 10,403.12 10,403.12 225,013.00 214,609.88 4.6

10-432-3011 OVERTIME PAY .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

10-432-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 162.61 162.61 3,717.00 3,554.39 4.4

10-432-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 1,537.87 1,537.87 33,297.00 31,759.13 4.6

10-432-3080 WORKERS COMP 87.50 87.50 922.00 834.50 9.5

10-432-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 1,910.38 1,910.38 28,423.00 26,512.62 6.7

10-432-3083 457 PLAN MATCH 151.00 151.00 3,367.00 3,216.00 4.5

10-432-3090 TRAINING .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-432-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 398.27 398.27 8,550.00 8,151.73 4.7

10-432-4055 CONTRACT PLANNING .00 .00 24,833.00 24,833.00 .0

10-432-4070 CONTRACT BLDG INSPECTION SVCS 11,266.76 11,266.76 358,000.00 346,733.24 3.2

10-432-4120 ENGINEERING FEES .00 .00 26,200.00 26,200.00 .0

10-432-4140 LEGAL FEES 9,125.35 9,125.35 10,000.00 874.65 91.3

10-432-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 40.68 40.68 500.00 459.32 8.1

10-432-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 2.00 2.00 24.00 22.00 8.3

10-432-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 50.64 50.64 1,000.00 949.36 5.1

10-432-7100 DUES .00 .00 4,200.00 4,200.00 .0

10-432-7291 DEVELOPER EXP-REIMBURSABLE 6,899.75 6,899.75 300,000.00 293,100.25 2.3

10-432-8880 OTHER EXPENSE .00 .00 1,250.00 1,250.00 .0

10-432-9401 COMP PLAN GRANT 2,463.48 2,463.48 121,000.00 118,536.52 2.0

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 44,499.41 44,499.41 1,155,546.00 1,111,046.59 3.9

182



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 10

PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS

10-441-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 9,987.60 9,987.60 148,113.00 138,125.40 6.7

10-441-3011 OVERTIME PAY 313.96 313.96 3,200.00 2,886.04 9.8

10-441-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 169.06 169.06 2,497.00 2,327.94 6.8

10-441-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 1,522.85 1,522.85 22,368.00 20,845.15 6.8

10-441-3080 WORKERS COMP 257.95 257.95 2,718.00 2,460.05 9.5

10-441-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 1,697.43 1,697.43 24,611.00 22,913.57 6.9

10-441-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 118.80 118.80 2,324.00 2,205.20 5.1

10-441-3090 TRAINING 1,187.25 1,187.25 10,250.00 9,062.75 11.6

10-441-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 242.38 242.38 8,550.00 8,307.62 2.8

10-441-4120 ENGINEERING FEES .00 .00 87,200.00 87,200.00 .0

10-441-4420 REP & MAINT - BUILDINGS .00 .00 19,000.00 19,000.00 .0

10-441-4476 LEASE - PW EQUIPMENT .00 .00 63,778.00 63,778.00 .0

10-441-4480 R&M SVC'S STREETS .00 .00 470,000.00 470,000.00 .0

10-441-4485 SNOW REMOVAL 3,436.01 3,436.01 30,000.00 26,563.99 11.5

10-441-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 1,961.58 1,961.58 10,500.00 8,538.42 18.7

10-441-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 939.56 939.56 7,500.00 6,560.44 12.5

10-441-5420 TRASH FEES 18.83 18.83 1,000.00 981.17 1.9

10-441-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 142.38 142.38 1,800.00 1,657.62 7.9

10-441-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 2.00 2.00 24.00 22.00 8.3

10-441-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 40.42 40.42 3,850.00 3,809.58 1.1

10-441-6115 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 24,270.00 24,270.00 .0

10-441-6120 UNIFORMS .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

10-441-6200 FUEL & OIL 1,060.49 1,060.49 15,000.00 13,939.51 7.1

10-441-6501 R&M - FLEET 1,797.22 1,797.22 24,600.00 22,802.78 7.3

10-441-6570 RENTAL EQUIPMENT 5,980.68 5,980.68 13,000.00 7,019.32 46.0

10-441-6586 STREET SIGNS 237.12 237.12 15,000.00 14,762.88 1.6

10-441-7100 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 4,500.00 4,500.00 .0

10-441-8880 OTHER EXPENSE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-441-9400 CAP OUTLAY - STREETS GENERAL .00 .00 797,745.00 797,745.00 .0

10-441-9403 DOLA GRANT - CR4 BRIDGE REPAIR .00 .00 1,100,000.00 1,100,000.00 .0

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS 31,113.57 31,113.57 2,917,098.00 2,885,984.43 1.1

183



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 11

PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS

10-442-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 9,987.60 9,987.60 130,113.00 120,125.40 7.7

10-442-3011 OVERTIME PAY 313.96 313.96 3,200.00 2,886.04 9.8

10-442-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 169.06 169.06 2,200.00 2,030.94 7.7

10-442-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 1,522.85 1,522.85 19,707.00 18,184.15 7.7

10-442-3080 WORKERS COMP 222.93 222.93 2,349.00 2,126.07 9.5

10-442-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 1,697.43 1,697.43 22,278.00 20,580.57 7.6

10-442-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 118.80 118.80 2,012.00 1,893.20 5.9

10-442-3090 TRAINING 125.00 125.00 3,750.00 3,625.00 3.3

10-442-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 242.37 242.37 8,550.00 8,307.63 2.8

10-442-4420 R&M BUILDING .00 .00 17,000.00 17,000.00 .0

10-442-4440 R&M SVC'S VEHICLE 296.80 296.80 6,850.00 6,553.20 4.3

10-442-4476 LEASES - EQUIPMENT .00 .00 37,066.00 37,066.00 .0

10-442-4520 PARK MAINTENANCE 62.28 62.28 15,000.00 14,937.72 .4

10-442-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 792.11 792.11 5,700.00 4,907.89 13.9

10-442-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 926.29 926.29 8,100.00 7,173.71 11.4

10-442-5420 TRASH FEES 18.83 18.83 1,000.00 981.17 1.9

10-442-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 142.38 142.38 1,800.00 1,657.62 7.9

10-442-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 2.00 2.00 24.00 22.00 8.3

10-442-5850 PEST CONTROL .00 .00 27,200.00 27,200.00 .0

10-442-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 102.93 102.93 3,350.00 3,247.07 3.1

10-442-6115 EQUIPMENT 270.98 270.98 10,360.00 10,089.02 2.6

10-442-6120 UNIFORMS .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

10-442-6200 FUEL & OIL .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-442-6575 WEED CONTROL .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

10-442-6576 LANDSCAPING .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

10-442-6577 TREE MAINTENANCE .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-442-7100 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS .00 .00 1,400.00 1,400.00 .0

10-442-8880 OTHER EXPENSE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-442-9420 CAPITAL OUTLAY / CONTINGENCY .00 .00 40,700.00 40,700.00 .0

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS 17,014.60 17,014.60 407,409.00 390,394.40 4.2

TRASH SERVICE EXPENSES

10-445-0050 CONTRACT SERVICES FOR TRASH 42,399.30 42,399.30 538,200.00 495,800.70 7.9

TOTAL TRASH SERVICE EXPENSES 42,399.30 42,399.30 538,200.00 495,800.70 7.9

DEBT SERVICE

10-446-8877 STREET BOND INTEREST PAYMENT .00 .00 121,300.00 121,300.00 .0

10-446-8878 STREET PAVING BOND PRINCIPAL .00 .00 195,000.00 195,000.00 .0

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE .00 .00 316,300.00 316,300.00 .0

184



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 12

TRANSFERS OUT

10-447-1900 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS OUT .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 482,492.72 482,492.72 9,736,709.00 9,254,216.28 5.0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (            206,963.36) (            206,963.36) (         1,896,209.00) (         1,689,245.64) (  10.9)

185



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

JANUARY 31, 2024

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 13

ASSETS

20-1000010 CASH IN COMBINED FUND 254,576.01

TOTAL ASSETS 254,576.01

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

20-2000237 RETAINAGE PAYABLE 3,956.25

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,956.25

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

20-2000801 CURRENT FUND BALANCE 248,510.45

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 2,109.31

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 250,619.76

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 250,619.76

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 254,576.01

186



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 14

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

20-335-1735 LOTTERY PROCEEDS .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

OTHER

20-370-1850 INTEREST EARNED 2,012.12 2,012.12 3,000.00 987.88 67.1

20-370-1854 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS ON INVEST 97.19 97.19 .00 (                     97.19) .0

TOTAL OTHER 2,109.31 2,109.31 3,000.00 890.69 70.3

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 2,109.31 2,109.31 103,000.00 100,890.69 2.1

187



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 15

PARKS

20-451-9300 OTHER PROJECTS .00 .00 130,563.00 130,563.00 .0

20-451-9400 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 43,000.00 43,000.00 .0

TOTAL PARKS .00 .00 173,563.00 173,563.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 173,563.00 173,563.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 2,109.31 2,109.31 (              70,563.00) (              72,672.31) 3.0

188



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 16

TRANSFERS IN

25-380-1999 TRANSFER IN .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS IN .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

189



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 17

ADMINISTRATION

25-423-9500 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .0

190



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

JANUARY 31, 2024

WATER FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 18

ASSETS

50-1000010 CASH IN COMBINED FUND 20,184,306.78

50-1000060 A/R - CUSTOMERS 218,974.16

50-1000063 A/R DELINQUENT 12,252.42

50-1000105 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 478,630.44

50-1000115 WATER RIGHTS 509,687.64

50-1000120 LAND 70,876.26

50-1000125 PLANT 4,880,974.30

50-1000130 BUILDINGS 1,231,505.76

50-1000133 WATER LINES 4,026,781.40

50-1000135 WATER METERS 351,120.19

50-1000136 RO PLANT 3,406,226.64

50-1000137 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 250,997.31

50-1000140 SOFTWARE 47,033.31

50-1000160 ACCUM DEPR PLANT (         4,764,301.24)

50-1000998 DEF OUTFLOW - OPEB 11,525.00

50-1000999 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 80,980.00

TOTAL ASSETS 30,997,570.37

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

50-2000203 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 45,646.91

50-2000206 WAGES PAYABLE 9,609.84

50-2000209 WATER METER DEPOSITS 13,960.00

50-2000214 INTEREST PAY - 97 REV BONDS 2,482.00

50-2000239 COMPENSATED ABSENCE 20,262.42

50-2000274 2012 WATER REVENUE BOND 880,000.00

50-2000280 UNEARNED REVENUE 1,835,858.30

50-2000307 SILVERPEAKS DEV SURCHARGE 66,142.84

50-2000310 2012 BOND PREMIUM 12,901.80

50-2000346 NET OPEB LIABILITY 25,928.00

50-2000347 DEF INFLOW - OPEB 9,159.00

50-2000348 NET PENSION LIABILITY (              33,163.00)

50-2000349 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 287,421.00

50-2000392 BLUE LAKES WATER TRANSMISSION 83,250.00

50-2000393 BLUE LAKES WATER RESOURCE CHAR 58,000.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,317,459.11

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

50-2000801 CURRENT FUND BALANCE 23,439,720.00

50-2000810 CONTRIBUTED CAP DEVELOPERS 2,993,794.95

50-2000820 CONTRIB CAP - ST & FED GRANTS 1,156,431.68

50-2000875 RETAINED EARNINGS (            122,912.00)

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 213,076.63

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 27,680,111.26

191



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

JANUARY 31, 2024

WATER FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 19

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 27,680,111.26

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 30,997,570.37

192



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 20

WATER OPERATIONS

50-310-1500 WATER SALES 162,649.45 162,649.45 2,500,000.00 2,337,350.55 6.5

50-310-1505 SILVERPEAKS WATER SUPPLY FEE .00 .00 70,000.00 70,000.00 .0

50-310-1506 WATER SUPPLY FEE - LOCH STN .00 .00 23,000.00 23,000.00 .0

50-310-1510 DELINQUENT NOTICE FEE 5,166.00 5,166.00 43,200.00 38,034.00 12.0

50-310-1651 NEW WATER METERS .00 .00 38,000.00 38,000.00 .0

50-310-1652 CONSTRUCTION WATER PERMIT FEES .00 .00 27,307.00 27,307.00 .0

50-310-1653 METER RENTAL 15.00 15.00 3,200.00 3,185.00 .5

TOTAL WATER OPERATIONS 167,830.45 167,830.45 2,704,707.00 2,536,876.55 6.2

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

50-335-0084 BOND / LOAN PROCEEDS .00 .00 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 .0

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL .00 .00 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 .0

FEES

50-350-1520 WATER PIFS .00 .00 1,363,288.00 1,363,288.00 .0

50-350-1652 CONST. WATER HYD. METER FEES 614.78 614.78 10,000.00 9,385.22 6.2

50-350-1804 ADMINSTRATIVE SERVICES FEE 92.22 92.22 3,000.00 2,907.78 3.1

50-350-1812 ACCOUNT SETUP/TRANSFER FEE 780.00 780.00 4,500.00 3,720.00 17.3

50-350-1820 DISCONNECT/RECONNECT FEES 120.00 120.00 18,000.00 17,880.00 .7

50-350-1921 WATER TAP FEES .00 .00 6,840.00 6,840.00 .0

TOTAL FEES 1,607.00 1,607.00 1,405,628.00 1,404,021.00 .1

OTHER

50-370-1850 INTEREST EARNED 159,532.89 159,532.89 600,000.00 440,467.11 26.6

50-370-1854 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS ON INVEST 7,705.50 7,705.50 .00 (                7,705.50) .0

50-370-1990 OTHER REVENUE 345.00 345.00 1,800.00 1,455.00 19.2

TOTAL OTHER 167,583.39 167,583.39 601,800.00 434,216.61 27.9

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 337,020.84 337,020.84 12,712,135.00 12,375,114.16 2.7

193



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 21

OPERATIONS

50-410-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 9,634.12 9,634.12 163,989.00 154,354.88 5.9

50-410-3011 OVERTIME PAY 313.96 313.96 4,400.00 4,086.04 7.1

50-410-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 163.21 163.21 2,778.00 2,614.79 5.9

50-410-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 1,470.33 1,470.33 24,888.00 23,417.67 5.9

50-410-3080 WORKERS COMP 298.29 298.29 3,143.00 2,844.71 9.5

50-410-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 1,650.39 1,650.39 28,608.00 26,957.61 5.8

50-410-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 112.80 112.80 2,870.00 2,757.20 3.9

50-410-3090 TRAINING .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

50-410-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 6,815.22 6,815.22 165,650.00 158,834.78 4.1

50-410-4120 ENGINEERING FEES .00 .00 41,200.00 41,200.00 .0

50-410-4140 LEGAL FEES .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

50-410-4260 LABORATORY FEES 902.80 902.80 32,000.00 31,097.20 2.8

50-410-4291 OPERATOR IN CHARGE 13,754.34 13,754.34 212,000.00 198,245.66 6.5

50-410-4460 R&M SVC'S BUILDINGS .00 .00 19,000.00 19,000.00 .0

50-410-4476 LEASES - EQUIPMENT .00 .00 29,712.00 29,712.00 .0

50-410-4500 R&M SVC'S LINES .00 .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .0

50-410-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 10,260.30 10,260.30 145,000.00 134,739.70 7.1

50-410-5411 ELECTRIC CHRGS-WELLS-IREA AGMT .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

50-410-5420 TRASH FEES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

50-410-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 169.74 169.74 2,550.00 2,380.26 6.7

50-410-5500 PRINTING & PUBLISHING .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

50-410-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 98.78 98.78 91,350.00 91,251.22 .1

50-410-6105 LAB SUPPLIES 1,261.24 1,261.24 7,000.00 5,738.76 18.0

50-410-6115 EQUIPMENT 79.97 79.97 40,660.00 40,580.03 .2

50-410-6200 FUEL & OIL .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

50-410-6300 CHEMICALS 4,279.04 4,279.04 100,000.00 95,720.96 4.3

50-410-6500 REPAIRS AND MAINT - PLANT 816.68 816.68 95,000.00 94,183.32 .9

50-410-6501 R&M - FLEET 674.34 674.34 7,000.00 6,325.66 9.6

50-410-6570 RENTAL EQUIPMENT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

50-410-7300 WATER RIGHTS LEASE .00 .00 175,000.00 175,000.00 .0

50-410-7400 WATER RIGHTS PURCHASES .00 .00 305,000.00 305,000.00 .0

50-410-7410 CONTINGENCY RESERVE .00 .00 300,000.00 300,000.00 .0

50-410-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 53.83 53.83 3,000.00 2,946.17 1.8

50-410-9400 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

50-410-9500 CAPITAL OUTLAY PLANT EXPANSION .00 .00 5,050,000.00 5,050,000.00 .0

50-410-9560 CAPITAL MACH & EQUIPMENT .00 .00 318,700.00 318,700.00 .0

50-410-9595 CIP WATER STORAGE .00 .00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 .0

50-410-9596 CIP-WELLS .00 .00 1,132,000.00 1,132,000.00 .0

50-410-9597 CIP-WATER LINES .00 .00 3,750,000.00 3,750,000.00 .0

TOTAL OPERATIONS 52,809.38 52,809.38 18,482,998.00 18,430,188.62 .3

194



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 22

ADMINISTRATION

50-423-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 21,017.84 21,017.84 327,609.00 306,591.16 6.4

50-423-3011 OVERTIME PAY .00 .00 675.00 675.00 .0

50-423-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 337.32 337.32 5,438.00 5,100.68 6.2

50-423-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 3,121.74 3,121.74 48,715.00 45,593.26 6.4

50-423-3080 WORKERS COMP 63.87 63.87 673.00 609.13 9.5

50-423-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 2,734.50 2,734.50 40,614.00 37,879.50 6.7

50-423-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 248.50 248.50 4,245.00 3,996.50 5.9

50-423-3090 TRAINING .00 .00 7,000.00 7,000.00 .0

50-423-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 5,761.04 5,761.04 53,519.00 47,757.96 10.8

50-423-4050 CONTRACT IT FEES 2,688.37 2,688.37 85,500.00 82,811.63 3.1

50-423-4100 AUDITING FEES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

50-423-4120 ENGINEERING FEES 3,863.75 3,863.75 181,200.00 177,336.25 2.1

50-423-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES 19,282.59 19,282.59 90,000.00 70,717.41 21.4

50-423-4380 CUSTODIAN FEES 373.33 373.33 6,000.00 5,626.67 6.2

50-423-4460 R&M SVC'S BUILDINGS 574.50 574.50 10,000.00 9,425.50 5.8

50-423-4470 LEASE-COPIER/OFFICE EQUIP 78.53 78.53 2,600.00 2,521.47 3.0

50-423-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 6,754.42 6,754.42 32,000.00 25,245.58 21.1

50-423-5300 POSTAGE .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

50-423-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 603.70 603.70 5,800.00 5,196.30 10.4

50-423-5420 TRASH FEES 7.50 7.50 250.00 242.50 3.0

50-423-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 370.26 370.26 6,100.00 5,729.74 6.1

50-423-5700 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 45.00 45.00 540.00 495.00 8.3

50-423-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 58.50 58.50 774.00 715.50 7.6

50-423-5800 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

50-423-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 250.38 250.38 2,000.00 1,749.62 12.5

50-423-7100 DUES 2,316.57 2,316.57 7,525.00 5,208.43 30.8

50-423-7220 BANK FEES 566.13 566.13 1,000.00 433.87 56.6

50-423-7221 CREDIT CARD FEES .00 .00 19,200.00 19,200.00 .0

50-423-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 16.49 16.49 2,500.00 2,483.51 .7

50-423-9400 CAP OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 71,134.83 71,134.83 978,227.00 907,092.17 7.3

DEBT SERVICE

50-430-8968 SRF-ELEVATED TOWER-PRINCIPAL .00 .00 285,000.00 285,000.00 .0

50-430-8969 SRF-ELEVATED TOWER-INTEREST .00 .00 280,000.00 280,000.00 .0

50-430-8970 97 BONDS - PRINCIPAL .00 .00 135,000.00 135,000.00 .0

50-430-8977 07 BOND - INTEREST .00 .00 25,713.00 25,713.00 .0

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE .00 .00 725,713.00 725,713.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 123,944.21 123,944.21 20,186,938.00 20,062,993.79 .6

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 213,076.63 213,076.63 (         7,474,803.00) (         7,687,879.63) 2.9

195



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

BALANCE SHEET

JANUARY 31, 2024

SEWER FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 23

ASSETS

55-1000010 CASH IN COMBINED FUND 17,227,814.42

55-1000060 A/R - CUSTOMERS 113,014.47

55-1000105 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 322,126.75

55-1000110 VEHICLES 21,370.67

55-1000120 LAND 263,687.53

55-1000125 PLANT 15,788,006.23

55-1000130 BUILDINGS 1,057,729.49

55-1000140 SOFTWARE 56,438.66

55-1000145 MECHANICAL WASTE WATER PLANT 1,174,408.43

55-1000147 STORM DRAINAGE 786,291.80

55-1000160 ACCUM DEPR PLANT (         7,676,584.70)

55-1000168 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 64,922.50

55-1000998 DEF OUTFLOW - OPEB 8,458.00

55-1000999 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 59,429.00

TOTAL ASSETS 29,267,113.25

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

55-2000203 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 35,799.52

55-2000206 WAGES PAYABLE 6,665.26

55-2000239 COMPENSATED ABSENCE 14,189.49

55-2000346 NET OPEB LIABILITY 19,028.00

55-2000347 DEF INFLOWS - OPEB 6,722.00

55-2000348 NET PENSION LIABILITY (              24,337.00)

55-2000349 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 210,929.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 268,996.27

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

55-2000801 CURRENT FUND BALANCE 24,741,043.16

55-2000810 CONTRIBUTED CAP DEVELOPERS 1,783,328.00

55-2000820 CONTRIB CAP - ST & FED GRANTS 839,321.55

55-2000875 RETAINED EARNINGS (            226,704.00)

55-2000881 CONTRIBUTED TAP FEES 1,739,223.00

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 121,905.27

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 28,998,116.98

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 28,998,116.98

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 29,267,113.25

196



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 24

SEWER OPERATIONS

55-310-1500 LOCHBUIE SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 100,927.08 100,927.08 1,200,000.00 1,099,072.92 8.4

TOTAL SEWER OPERATIONS 100,927.08 100,927.08 1,200,000.00 1,099,072.92 8.4

FEES

55-350-1510 DELINQUENT NOTICE 2,410.80 2,410.80 20,400.00 17,989.20 11.8

55-350-1522 SEWER COLLECTION PIF .00 .00 610,584.00 610,584.00 .0

55-350-1524 SEWER TREATMENT PIF .00 .00 1,751,200.00 1,751,200.00 .0

55-350-1525 SEWER FACILITIES SURCHARGE .00 .00 7,600.00 7,600.00 .0

55-350-1812 ACCOUNT SETUP/TRANSFER FEE 364.00 364.00 2,100.00 1,736.00 17.3

55-350-1901 CITY OF BRIGHTON FLOWS .00 .00 1,060,000.00 1,060,000.00 .0

55-350-1920 LOCHBUIE SEWER TAP FEES .00 .00 13,376.00 13,376.00 .0

TOTAL FEES 2,774.80 2,774.80 3,465,260.00 3,462,485.20 .1

OTHER REVENUES

55-370-1850 INTEREST EARNED 136,165.34 136,165.34 480,000.00 343,834.66 28.4

55-370-1854 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS ON INVEST 6,576.83 6,576.83 .00 (                6,576.83) .0

55-370-1990 OTHER REVENUE 161.00 161.00 1,600.00 1,439.00 10.1

TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 142,903.17 142,903.17 481,600.00 338,696.83 29.7

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 246,605.05 246,605.05 5,146,860.00 4,900,254.95 4.8

197



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:26AM       PAGE: 25

OPERATIONS

55-410-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 875.73 875.73 16,800.00 15,924.27 5.2

55-410-4120 ENGINEERING FEES .00 .00 41,200.00 41,200.00 .0

55-410-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

55-410-4260 LABORATORY FEES 1,952.11 1,952.11 30,000.00 28,047.89 6.5

55-410-4291 OPERATOR IN CHARGE 13,290.78 13,290.78 212,000.00 198,709.22 6.3

55-410-4476 LEASES - EQUIPMENT .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

55-410-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 14,614.88 14,614.88 220,000.00 205,385.12 6.6

55-410-5420 TRASH FEES 65.00 65.00 1,600.00 1,535.00 4.1

55-410-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 255.43 255.43 3,150.00 2,894.57 8.1

55-410-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 621.99 621.99 10,000.00 9,378.01 6.2

55-410-6105 LAB SUPPLIES .00 .00 8,000.00 8,000.00 .0

55-410-6115 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 35,000.00 35,000.00 .0

55-410-6200 FUEL & OIL .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

55-410-6300 CHEMICALS 18,242.28 18,242.28 150,000.00 131,757.72 12.2

55-410-6420 SLUDGE HAULING 14,896.53 14,896.53 200,000.00 185,103.47 7.5

55-410-6430 GREASE HAULING .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

55-410-6440 UV SYSTEM .00 .00 23,000.00 23,000.00 .0

55-410-6500 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 52.46 52.46 162,000.00 161,947.54 .0

55-410-6501 R&M - FLEET .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

55-410-7410 CONTINGENCY RESERVE .00 .00 350,000.00 350,000.00 .0

55-410-9400 CAPITAL OUTLAY / CONTINGENCY .00 .00 32,300.00 32,300.00 .0

55-410-9520 CIP-CONSTRUCTION-PLANT EXPANSI .00 .00 1,600,000.00 1,600,000.00 .0

TOTAL OPERATIONS 64,867.19 64,867.19 3,130,550.00 3,065,682.81 2.1

COLLECTIONS

55-420-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 3,211.38 3,211.38 45,996.00 42,784.62 7.0

55-420-3011 OVERTIME PAY 104.65 104.65 1,200.00 1,095.35 8.7

55-420-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 54.32 54.32 779.00 724.68 7.0

55-420-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 490.12 490.12 6,976.00 6,485.88 7.0

55-420-3080 WORKERS COMP 82.57 82.57 870.00 787.43 9.5

55-420-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 550.09 550.09 8,000.00 7,449.91 6.9

55-420-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 37.60 37.60 749.00 711.40 5.0

55-420-3090 TRAINING .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

55-420-4500 R&M SVC'S LINES .00 .00 565,000.00 565,000.00 .0

TOTAL COLLECTIONS 4,530.73 4,530.73 631,070.00 626,539.27 .7

198



TOWN OF LOCHBUIE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 1 MONTHS ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 8 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/14/2024     11:27AM       PAGE: 26

ADMINISTRATION

55-423-3010 REGULAR SALARIES 14,361.83 14,361.83 229,275.00 214,913.17 6.3

55-423-3011 OVERTIME PAY .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

55-423-3013 PAYROLL TAXES 230.60 230.60 3,806.00 3,575.40 6.1

55-423-3065 PERA CONTRIBUTION 2,132.92 2,132.92 34,090.00 31,957.08 6.3

55-423-3080 WORKERS COMP 54.76 54.76 577.00 522.24 9.5

55-423-3081 INSURANCE / 457 CONTRIBUTIONS 1,923.14 1,923.14 28,989.00 27,065.86 6.6

55-423-3083 PLAN 457 MATCH 169.00 169.00 2,977.00 2,808.00 5.7

55-423-3090 TRAINING .00 .00 6,500.00 6,500.00 .0

55-423-4020 OTHER FEES - PROF & TECH SRVCS 5,761.05 5,761.05 69,719.00 63,957.95 8.3

55-423-4050 PROF. SVCS/CONTRACT IT FEES 2,688.37 2,688.37 85,500.00 82,811.63 3.1

55-423-4100 AUDITING FEES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

55-423-4140 LEGAL & PROSECUTING ATTY FEES 9,645.60 9,645.60 10,000.00 354.40 96.5

55-423-4380 CUSTODIAN FEES 373.34 373.34 6,000.00 5,626.66 6.2

55-423-4460 R&M SVC'S BUILDINGS 574.50 574.50 10,000.00 9,425.50 5.8

55-423-4470 LEASE-COPIER/OFFICE EQUIP 78.53 78.53 2,600.00 2,521.47 3.0

55-423-5010 INSURANCE/BONDS 10,113.55 10,113.55 45,000.00 34,886.45 22.5

55-423-5300 POSTAGE .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

55-423-5410 ELECTRIC/GAS UTILITIES 603.70 603.70 5,800.00 5,196.30 10.4

55-423-5420 TRASH FEES 7.50 7.50 250.00 242.50 3.0

55-423-5450 TELEPHONE SERVICE 370.25 370.25 6,100.00 5,729.75 6.1

55-423-5700 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 30.00 30.00 360.00 330.00 8.3

55-423-5710 PHONE ALLOWANCE 39.00 39.00 516.00 477.00 7.6

55-423-5800 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0

55-423-6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 250.38 250.38 2,000.00 1,749.62 12.5

55-423-7100 DUES 5,624.06 5,624.06 10,625.00 5,000.94 52.9

55-423-7220 BANK FEES 258.66 258.66 .00 (                   258.66) .0

55-423-7221 CREDIT CARD FEES .00 .00 13,800.00 13,800.00 .0

55-423-8880 OTHER EXPENSE 11.12 11.12 2,500.00 2,488.88 .4

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 55,301.86 55,301.86 589,234.00 533,932.14 9.4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 124,699.78 124,699.78 4,350,854.00 4,226,154.22 2.9

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 121,905.27 121,905.27 796,006.00 674,100.73 15.3

199



2021 Assmt Rate 
(payable in 2022)

2022 Assmt Rate 
(payable in 2023) 

Created under SB21-
293

2023 Assmt Rate 
and exemptions
(payable in 2024) 

created under SB22-238

2023 Assmt Rate  
and exemptions
(payable in 2024)

Spec Sess SB23B-001

2024 Assmt Rate  
and exemptions
(payable in 2025)

Renewable Energy 
Production Real & PP 29.0% 26.4% 26.4% 26.4% 26.4%

Agricultural Real & PP 29.0% 26.4% 26.4% 26.4% 26.4%

Commercial 29.0% 29.0%
27.9%

(exempt first $30,000 actual
floored at $1,000 assd)

27.9%
(exempt first $30,000 actual

floored at $1,000 assd)
29.0%

Industrial 29.0% 29.0% 27.9% 27.9% 29.0%

Vacant Land 29.0% 29.0% 27.9% 27.9% 29.0%

Personal Property 29%
<= $50,000 exempt

29%
 <= $50,000 exempt

27.9%
 <= $52,000 exempt

27.9%
 <= $52,000 exempt

29.0%
 <= $52,000 exempt

Oil & Gas 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5% 87.5%

Residential
Multi-family housing

(i.e. apartments) 7.15% 6.80%
6.765%

(exempt first $15,000 actual
floored at $1,000 assd)

6.7%
(exempt first $55,000 actual

floored at $1,000 assd)
6.80%

All other residential 
property 7.15% 6.95%

6.765%
(exempt first $15,000 actual 

floored at $1,000 assd)

6.7%
(exempt first $55,000 actual

floored at $1,000 assd)

TBD (set at a level to hit a 
total revenue reduction of 

$700M - by 3/2024)

Titled Manufactured 
Homes

(i.e. M accounts)
7.15%

6.95%
(<= $28,000 is exempt

HB22-1223)

6.765%
(exempt first $15,000 actual

floored at $1,000 assd)
(<= $28,000 is exempt

HB22-1223)

6.7%
(exempt first $55,000 actual

floored at $1,000 assd)
(<= $28,000 is exempt

HB22-1223)

TBD
(<= $28,000 is exempt

HB22-1223)

Certification and abstract will reflect adjusted actual and adjusted assessed.   DPT recommends Seniors will be applied based on the adjusted actual.

BACKFILL AMOUNTS - for 2023 payable in April 2024.  Value change calculations should not include titled manufactured home exemption amounts and PP

SB22-238 Backfill SB23b-001 Backfill

COUNTIES - If > 300,000 population COUNTIES - If > 300,000 population

IF DISTRICT TYPE: Muni, Fire, Health, Library, Sani, Water IF DISTRICT TYPE: Muni, Library, Sani, Water IF DISTRICT TYPE: Amb, Health, Fire = 100%

     100% if <10% value change @ district level      100% if <10% value change @ district level All other DISTRICTS = 65% if <15% value change else 0%

     90% if >=10% value change @ district level      90% if >=10%  and <15% value change @ district level

All other DISTRICTS = 65%      0% if >15% value change @ district level

Type of Property

Non-
residential

200



Page 1 of 13

3125804391
Michael Kearney

report as of 02/02/2024

Town of Lochbuie

Portfolio Review

Prepared for

Presented by

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and its affiliates (collectively “JPMCB”) offer investment products, which may include bank managed
accounts and custody, as part of its trust and fiduciary services. Other investment products and services, such as brokerage and
advisory accounts, are offered through J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (JPMS), a member of FINRA and SIPC. Insurance products
are made available through Chase Insurance Agency, Inc. (CIA), a licensed insurance agency, doing business as Chase
Insurance Agency Services, Inc. in Florida. JPMCB, JPMS and CIA are affiliated companies under the common control of
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Products not available in all states.
 
 

INVESTMENT PRODUCTS ARE: NOT FDIC INSURED • NOT A DEPOSIT OR OTHER OBLIGATION OF, OR GUARANTEED BY, JPMORGAN CHASE
BANK, N.A. OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES • SUBJECT TO INVESTMENT RISKS, INCLUDING POSSIBLE LOSS OF THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT

INVESTED

 

201



Table of Contents

For Information Purposes Only-Not intended as a recommendation. Information has been obtained from sources believed reliable, JPMorgan and its affiliates do not guarantee its accuracy or completeness. Cash flows,

past performance & forward looking assumptions are not indicative of future results. Please read the IMPORTANT INFORMATION.
Page 2 of 13

Town of Lochbuie

Cover Page   1

Table of Contents   2

Executive Summary   3

Totals & Averages @ Current Market   4

Totals & Averages @ Acquisition   5

Position Details   6

Coupon Cash Flow - Year 1   7

Coupon Cash Flow - Year 2   8

Glossary   9

Disclaimer   11

202



For Information Purposes Only-Not intended as a recommendation. Information has been obtained from sources believed reliable, JPMorgan and its affiliates do not guarantee its accuracy or completeness. Cash flows,

past performance & forward looking assumptions are not indicative of future results. Please read the IMPORTANT INFORMATION.
Page 3 of 13

Yield to Maturity

Duration

Coupon*
Weighted Averages

Summary Totals

Total Portfolio Value

Current Face (Par)

Asset Class

Coupon Cash Flow

Maturity

Duration

Totals & Averages @ Market

Market Principal

Cash & Cash Alternatives

Maturity**

Yield to Worst

Market Price*

$8,000,000

$0

1.852%
0.68 yrs

0.65
5.244%
5.353%
99.196

*Par-Wtd, all else Mkt-Wtd.
**Avg life used for principal paydowns, and perpetual securities
are assigned a 40 year maturity.

Moody's

Tax Lots Holdings Included 4 of 4

Accrued Interest $34,130

Next 12mo Cpn Cash Flow $148,125
$7,969,840

$7,935,710

Original Face $8,000,000

Includes all tax lot holdings with recognized CUSIP, quantity, market price and full analytical calculations on reporting date. Includes coupon cash flows for the next 12 months, from 02/02/2024 to 02/01/2025. Projected Principal Paydowns for
CMOs are produced by applying current pool speeds which are updated weekly. Assuming similar market conditions going forward, Projected Principal Paydowns for Pass-Thru securities are produced by calculating and applying concurrent
historical speeds to future paydown schedules.

Includes coupon cash flows for the next 12 months, from 02/02/2024 to 02/01/2025.

$0
$0  Equity Balance

  Fixed Income Funds

Ratings - Both
S&P

Generic Annual Cpn Cash Flow $148,125

Town of LochbuieExecutive Summary
report as of 02/02/2024

203



For Information Purposes Only-Not intended as a recommendation. Information has been obtained from sources believed reliable, JPMorgan and its affiliates do not guarantee its accuracy or completeness. Cash flows,

past performance & forward looking assumptions are not indicative of future results. Please read the IMPORTANT INFORMATION.
Page 4 of 13

Next 12mo Cpn Cash Flow

Tax Lot Holdings w/ Market Price & Full CalculationsTotal Tax Lot Holdings

Original Face Value $8,000,000

$8,000,000Current Face Value

Valid Tax Lot Holdings 4

Unrecognized Tax Lot Holdings 0

Total Tax Lot Holdings 4

'Valid Tax Lot Holdings' includes all tax lot holdings with recognized CUSIP and quantity.

Tax Lot Holdings w/ Market Price

Priced Original Face Value

$7,935,710

1.852%

$8,000,000

Tax Lot Holdings Included 4 of 4

$8,000,000

Average Coupon

Priced Current Face Value

Priced Market Principal

Includes all tax lot holdings with recognized CUSIP, quantity and market price on reporting
date. Average coupon and market price weighted by market principal.

Portfolio Totals Portfolio Averages

Original Face Value $8,000,000

$8,000,000Current Face Value

Market Principal Value $7,935,710

$34,130Accrued Interest

Total Market Value

$0Cash & Cash Alternatives

Total Portfolio Value

Coupon 1.852%

Maturity 0.68 yrs

Duration 0.65

Convexity 0.010

Yield to Maturity 5.353%

Yield to Worst 5.244%

99.196Average Market Price

$148,125

Taxable Equivalent YTW 5.244%

After Tax YTW 3.304%

$7,969,840

$7,969,840

$0

Tax Lot Holdings Included 4 of 4

Includes all tax lot holdings with recognized CUSIP, quantity, market price and full analytical calculations on reporting date.
Portfolio average values are market-weighted, unless otherwise noted.
Coupon and market price are par-weighted.
All prices have been normalized to par.
Average life used for principal paydowns, and perpetual securities are assigned a 40 year maturity.
Includes coupon cash flows for the next 12 months, from 02/02/2024 to 02/01/2025.
ATY/TEY calculations use a Fed Tax rate of 37.00%, a Cap Gains Tax rate of 20.00%, a State of N/A, and a State Tax rate of N/A.
Generic Annual Cpn Cash Flow is simply coupon rate times current face value, and does not consider acquisition date, redemption dates, long/short
first coupons, ex-dividend dates, payment delays, etc.
Duration and convexity figures represent modified duration to worst.

$0

Fixed Income Funds

Equity Balance

Generic Annual Cpn Cash Flow $148,125

After Tax YTM 3.372%

5.353%Taxable Equivalent YTM

Current Yield 1.867%

Market Price 99.196

Town of LochbuieTotals & Averages @ Current Market
report as of 02/02/2024

204



For Information Purposes Only-Not intended as a recommendation. Information has been obtained from sources believed reliable, JPMorgan and its affiliates do not guarantee its accuracy or completeness. Cash flows,

past performance & forward looking assumptions are not indicative of future results. Please read the IMPORTANT INFORMATION.
Page 5 of 13

Tax Lot Holdings w/ Complete Acquisition Data & Full CalculationsTotal Tax Lot Holdings

Original Face Value $8,000,000

$8,000,000Current Face Value

Valid Tax Lot Holdings 4

Unrecognized Tax Lot Holdings 0

Total Tax Lot Holdings 4

'Valid Tax Lot Holdings' includes all tax lot holdings with recognized CUSIP and quantity.

Tax Lot Holdings w/ Complete Acquisition Data

Original Face Value

$7,794,465

97.431

$8,000,000

Tax Lot Holdings Included 4 of 4

$8,000,000

Average Acquisition Price

Face Value at Acquisition

Original Principal Cost

Includes all tax lot holdings with recognized CUSIP, quantity, and acquisition date/price.
Average acquisition price is weighted by original principal cost.

Portfolio Totals Portfolio Averages

Original Face Value $8,000,000

$8,000,000Face Value at Acquisition

Original Principal Cost $7,794,465

$7,795,214Adjusted Principal Cost

Current Market Principal $7,935,710

$140,496Estimated Gain/(Loss)

4 of 4Tax Lot Holdings Included

Yield to Worst (cost) 5.054%

Yield to Worst (mkt) 5.244%

Yield to Maturity (cost) 5.212%

Yield to Maturity (mkt) 5.353%

Original Acquisition Price 97.431

Adjusted Cost Price 97.440

Current Market Price 99.196

Includes all tax lot holdings with recognized CUSIP, quantity, acquisition date/price, full analytical calculations at acquisition, market price, and full
analytical calculations on reporting date.
Average values @ cost are weighted by respective original total acquisition costs.
All prices have been normalized to par.
Average life used for principal paydowns, and perpetual securities are assigned a 40 year maturity.

Town of LochbuieTotals & Averages @ Acquisition
report as of 02/02/2024

205



For Information Purposes Only-Not intended as a recommendation. Information has been obtained from sources believed reliable, JPMorgan and its affiliates do not guarantee its accuracy or completeness. Cash flows,

past performance & forward looking assumptions are not indicative of future results. Please read the IMPORTANT INFORMATION.
Page 6 of 13

CUSIP
Asset

Curr Face
% Port

Account #
Held   Issue Description

Coupon
Maturity

Mkt Px
Duration Px To Date ATY

Acq Date
Acq Px / Yld

Mkt Principal
Accr Int

Position Details

Tot Adj Cost
 Adj Cost PxYield

Mdy / S&P
(Underlying) TEY

Unreal G/L
% Adj Cost

912797GN1
Treas

2,000
25.00% Held-Away

-/- UNITED STATES TREAS BILLS

Interest at Maturity

0.000% Discount
Maturity

Curr Yield

6.804%
6.930% 97.404 / 5.163%

$1,996,220
$0 2.5%

08/18/2023 $1,948,080
97.40402/15/2024

99.811
0.03

02/15/2024
02/15/2024

-

6.804%
6.930%

-

 
 (w)
 

$48,1404.287%
4.366%

912797GK7
Treas

3,000
37.50% Held-Away

-/- UNITED STATES TREAS BILLS 0.000% Discount
Maturity

Curr Yield

4.915%
5.125% 95.083 / 4.972%

$2,924,220
$0 2.5%

08/18/2023 $2,852,490
95.08308/08/2024

97.474
0.49

08/08/2024
08/08/2024

-

4.915%
5.125%

-

 
 (w)
 

$71,7303.096%
3.229%

3130AV7L0
Agy

1,500
18.75% Held-Away

Aaa/AA+ FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS

Moody's Outlook Negative | S&P Outlook Stable | Short First Coupon | FHLB | Semi-Annual Pay

5.000% Maturity
Curr Yield

4.661%
99.805 / 5.133%

$1,505,175
$32,708 0.5%

08/18/2023 $1,497,075
99.80502/28/2025

100.345
1.00

02/28/2025
-

4.661%
4.983%

 (w)
 

$8,1002.936%

3133EPRS6
Agy

1,500
18.75% Held-Away

Aaa/AA+ FEDERAL FARM CR BKS

Moody's Outlook Negative | S&P Outlook Stable | FFCB | Semi-Annual Pay

4.875% Maturity
Curr Yield

4.400%
99.788 / 4.989%

$1,510,095
$1,422 0.8%

08/18/2023 $1,497,569
99.83807/28/2025

100.673
1.41

07/28/2025
-

4.400%
4.842%

 (w)
 

$12,5262.772%

Includes all tax lot holdings with recognized CUSIP. For preferred securities, # of shares is displayed instead of current face value, which is represented in thousands (000).
The (w) in the Yield column indicates which yield value is the Yield to Worst (YTW).
Duration figure represents modified duration to worst.
ATY/TEY calculations use a Fed Tax rate of 37.00%, a Cap Gains Tax rate of 20.00%, a State of N/A, and a State Tax rate of N/A.

Town of LochbuiePosition Details
report as of 02/02/2024

206



For Information Purposes Only-Not intended as a recommendation. Information has been obtained from sources believed reliable, JPMorgan and its affiliates do not guarantee its accuracy or completeness. Cash flows,

past performance & forward looking assumptions are not indicative of future results. Please read the IMPORTANT INFORMATION.
Page 7 of 13

Feb‘24 Mar‘24 Apr‘24 May‘24 Jun‘24 Jul‘24 Aug‘24 Sep‘24 Oct‘24 Nov‘24 Dec‘24 Jan‘25 Feb‘25 Total %Tot

Agency $37,500 - - - - $36,562 $37,500 - - - - $36,562 - $148,125 100.0%

Agency Pass-Thru - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Asset-Backed - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

CD - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

CMO - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Corporate - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Muni: Fed Tax - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Muni: Tax-Exempt - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Muni: Subj AMT - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Pfd: Fed Tax - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Pfd: Tax-Exempt - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Pfd: Cap Gains - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Treasury - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Total $37,500 - - - - $36,562 $37,500 - - - - $36,562 - $148,125 100.0%

Coupon Cash Flow by Asset Class / Type

Fed Tax-Exempt - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Fed Taxable $37,500 - - - - $36,562 $37,500 - - - - $36,562 - $148,125 100.0%

Subj to Cap Gains - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Subj to AMT - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Coupon Cash Flow

Includes all tax holdings with recognized CUSIP, quantity, market price and full analytical calculations on reporting date. Includes coupon cash flows for the next 12 months, from 02/02/2024 to 02/01/2025. Totals are the sum of rounded displayed
values. The cash flows displayed are only estimates. Your actual interest and principal payments may be higher or lower than these estimates. Projected Principal Paydowns for CMOs are produced by applying current pool speeds which are updated
weekly. Assuming similar market conditions going forward, Projected Principal Paydowns for Pass-Thru securities are produced by calculating and applying concurrent historical speeds to future paydown schedules.

Time Period:  02/02/2024 - 02/01/2025

Town of LochbuieCoupon Cash Flow - Year 1
report as of 02/02/2024

207



For Information Purposes Only-Not intended as a recommendation. Information has been obtained from sources believed reliable, JPMorgan and its affiliates do not guarantee its accuracy or completeness. Cash flows,

past performance & forward looking assumptions are not indicative of future results. Please read the IMPORTANT INFORMATION.
Page 8 of 13

Feb‘25 Mar‘25 Apr‘25 May‘25 Jun‘25 Jul‘25 Aug‘25 Sep‘25 Oct‘25 Nov‘25 Dec‘25 Jan‘26 Feb‘26 Total %Tot

Agency $37,500 - - - - $36,562 - - - - - - - $74,062 100.0%

Agency Pass-Thru - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Asset-Backed - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

CD - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

CMO - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Corporate - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Muni: Fed Tax - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Muni: Tax-Exempt - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Muni: Subj AMT - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Pfd: Fed Tax - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Pfd: Tax-Exempt - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Pfd: Cap Gains - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Treasury - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Total $37,500 - - - - $36,562 - - - - - - - $74,062 100.0%

Coupon Cash Flow by Asset Class / Type

Fed Tax-Exempt - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Fed Taxable $37,500 - - - - $36,562 - - - - - - - $74,062 100.0%

Subj to Cap Gains - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Subj to AMT - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Coupon Cash Flow

Includes all tax holdings with recognized CUSIP, quantity, market price and full analytical calculations on reporting date. Includes coupon cash flows for the next 12-24 months, from 02/02/2025 to 02/01/2026. Totals are the sum of rounded displayed
values. The cash flows displayed are only estimates. Your actual interest and principal payments may be higher or lower than these estimates. Projected Principal Paydowns for CMOs are produced by applying current pool speeds which are updated
weekly. Assuming similar market conditions going forward, Projected Principal Paydowns for Pass-Thru securities are produced by calculating and applying concurrent historical speeds to future paydown schedules.

Time Period:  02/02/2025 - 02/01/2026

Town of LochbuieCoupon Cash Flow - Year 2
report as of 02/02/2024

208



Page 9 of 13

Term Definition
% Fixed Income Account Percentage that the Tax Lot represents of either the Total Par or Market Value of the Account.

% Principal (G/L) Percentage that Gain/(Loss) is of Current Market Principal Value.

Accrued Interest Total Accrued Interest of Tax Lots with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations assuming regular way Settlement for each asset class from the as-of report Date.

Acquisition Cost - Total The sum of each Tax Lot's Principal Cost, for all Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price.

Acquisition Price The Price at which each Tax Lot was Purchased on the Original Trade Date.

Acquisition Price - Average Original Principal Cost-weighted Acquisition Price, for all Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price available.

Acquisition Settlement Date The Settlement Date when each Tax Lot was Purchased. Used for Acquisition calculations.

Acquisition Trade Date The Date when each Tax Lot was Purchased. Used for Long/Short-term Gain/(Loss) determination and calculation of Settlement Date if not provided (greater of regular way or Dated Date).

Acquisition Yield To Worst Purchase Yield to Worst on Acquisition Settlement Date, for each Tax Lot with an Acquisition Price and Acquisition Date. Used for daily calculation of Adjusted Cost (book) Price values.

Actual Coupon Cash Flow Total Coupon payments over the next 12 months, for all recognized Tax Lots where Cash Flow data is available.

Adjusted Cost Adjusted Cost (book) Price at current Market Settlement Date, for each Tax Lot. Uses the Constant Yield Methodology, determined by the IRS.

Adjusted Cost - Total The sum of each Tax Lot's Adjusted Principal Cost on current Market Settlement Date, for all Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price.

Adjusted Price Current Face Value-weighted average Adjusted (book) Price, for Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Adjusted Principal Cost Total Adjusted Principal (book) Cost on report Date, for Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

After-Tax Yield After-Tax Yield (to Worst, to Call, to Maturity) for each Tax Lot with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations. Assumes Fed Inc/Cap Gain rates of 37% / 20.0% or Account-specific rates and residency settings.

After-Tax Yield - Average Average Market Principal-weighted After-Tax Yield (to Worst, to Call, to Maturity) for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations. Cognizant of the Account-specific State of Residence and Tax Rates.

Asset Held Indicates if the Tax Lot is Held-Internally, or Held-Away (Externally) to the Account.

Benchmark Descriptor for the Benchmark Scale name and data point used in the spread calculation.

Call The next Date and Price where the Issuer has the option to return Principal prior to Maturity.

Cash & Equivalents Balance Aggregated $ value of Cash and Assets which are deemed to be Cash equivalents.

Convexity
The rate at which Duration changes in response to interest rate changes. A positive value indicates Prices will rise more rapidly in a Bull Market (Yields down) and fall more slowly in a Bear Market (Yields up). The opposite is true for
negatively Convexed bonds. Non-Callable bonds have positive Convexity. Typically bonds with shorter Calls have negative Convexity.

Convexity - Average Market Principal-weighted Average Convexity, for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations.

Corporate Debt Ranking The Ranking of the security in the company's Debt/Capital Structure. Examples: Senior Unsecured, Subordinated, Junior, etc.

Corporate Sector Industrial classification of Corporate Bond Issuers by line of business.

Coupon The rate at which when applied to the Par Value will determine the annualized Cash Flow paid to the investor.

Coupon - Average Average Coupon Rate-weighted by Current Face Value (Market Value-weighted optional), for all Tax Lots with current Market Prices and full analytical calculations.

CUSIP An industry-standard, unique, nine character alpha-numeric identifier for registered securities.

Current Face Value The Original Face Value multiplied by the Factor on the as-of report Date, for each Tax Lot with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations.

Current Face Value - Total The sum of each Tax Lot's Original Face Value multiplied by the Factor on the as-of report Date, for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations.

Current Market Price Current Face Value-weighted average Current Market Price, for Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Current Market Principal Total Principal Value at current Market Prices on report Date, for Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Current Yield Annual Income divided by the Current Price. Represents the return the bondholder would receive if purchasing the bond today and holding it for one year.

De Minimis Delta Price The difference between the current Market Price and the De Minimis Threshold Price, reflecting the Price change necessary for a new owner to be subject to a different tax treatment.

De Minimis Delta Yield The difference between the current Market Yield To Worst and the De Minimis threshold Yield To Worst, reflecting the Yield To Worst change necessary for a new owner to be subject to a different tax treatment.

De Minimis Price The De Minimis threshold Price. Purchasing a bond at a Price above the Threshold will result in favorable tax treatment if held to maturity.

De Minimis Rule

The De Minimis rule states that Capital Gains Tax must be paid on a bond Purchased at a discount of the Face Value in excess of a quarter point per year between the time of Acquisition and Maturity. If the Acquisition Price is
above the De Minimis Threshold, then the bondholder will be entitled to preferential Tax treatment on the Appreciation to Par ( ^ De Minimis Threshold). If the Acquisition Price is below/equal to the De Minimis Threshold, then all
Appreciation to Par is subject to ordinary tax rates ( v De Minimis Threshold). The tax treatment to existing client holdings is determined by the Acquisition Price and will not change during the life of the bond if held to Maturity.
However, as Market Prices change, the different tax treatment to a new owner may materially impact the Market Price and/or Marketability of the bond if a sale is anticipated. De Minimis Status Indicator if each bond is above or
below/equal to the De Minimis Threshold at the current Market Price. Purchasing a bond above the threshold results in favorable tax treatment if held to maturity.

De Minimis Status Indicator if each bond is above or below/equal to the De Minimis Threshold at the current Market Price. Purchasing a bond above the threshold results in favorable tax treatment if held to maturity.

De Minimis Yield The De Minimis threshold Yield. Purchasing a bond at a Yield below the Threshold will result in favorable tax treatment if held to maturity.

Equity Value - Total Aggregated $ value for all Equity holdings.

Estimated Gain/(Loss) Difference between Current Market Principal and Adjusted Principal (book) Cost, for Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Face Value at Acquisition Current Face Value (applying factors as-of Acquisition Date), for Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Face Value at Acquisition - Total The sum of each Tax Lot's Current Face Value (applying factors as-of each Tax Lot Acquisition Date), for all Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Fixed Income Fund Balance Aggregated $ value for all Fixed Income Mutual and ETF fund balances.

Gain/(Loss) Unrealized Gain/(Loss), of each Tax Lot with: 1) current Market Prices and full analytical calculations, and 2) Acquisition Date and Price with full analytical and Adjusted Cost (book) Price calculations.

Gain/(Loss) - Total The sum of each Tax Lot's unrealized Gain/(Loss), for all Tax Lots with: 1) current Market Prices and full analytical calculations, and 2) Acquisition Date and Price with full analytical and Adjusted Cost (book) Price calculations.

Town of LochbuieGlossary
report as of 02/02/2024

209



Page 10 of 13

Generic Annual Cpn Cash Flow Represents a generic year of coupon income not considering long/short First Coupons, Acquisition Date, Maturity Date, Payment Delay, nor Ex-Dividend Dates. This figure is simply Par Value multiplied by the Coupon Rate.

Issue Description A brief description of the Issuing entity.

Market Price The current day's Evaluated Price of a security provided by third party data sources.

Market Price - Average Average current Market Price, weighted by Par Value (Market Value-weighted optional), for all Tax Lots with current Market Prices and full analytical calculations.

Market Principal Value Total Market Principal Value, for each Tax Lot with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations.

Market Value Principal Value of each Tax Lot at current Market Price on current Market Settlement Date.

Market Value - Total The sum of each Tax Lot's Principal Value and Accrued Interest, at current Market Price on current Market Settlement Date, for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price.

Maturity The original Date when Principal is scheduled to be returned. May be Adjusted for Pre-refunded and Mandatory Put bonds. Certain securities may reflect Average Life based upon Principal Pay-Down assumptions.

Maturity - Average Average Maturity Date, weighted by Market Value (Par Value-weighted optional), for all Tax Lots with current Market Prices and full analytical calculations.

Modified Duration An indicator of the bond's sensitivity to interest rate changes at the current Market Price. Represents the percentage change in Price or a one percent (100bp) change in Yield.

Modified Duration - Average Average Modified Duration, weighted by Market Value (Par Value-weighted optional), for all Tax Lots with current Market Prices and full analytical calculations.

Moody Rating - Average
Market Principal-weighted average official Moody Rating, for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations. US Treasury, Agency, CD, and Municipal Pre-Refunded/Escrowed-To-Maturity are assumed to
have a rating of AAA. NR/UR not included in average rating.

Moody's/S&P Official credit rating of the issuer provided by Moody's (Mdy) and/or Standard & Poor's (S&P) rating services.

Muni Enhancement Any further credit enhancement for a Municipal Bond Issuer. May include participation in state programs, collateral pledged, LOC, etc.

Muni Insurance Indicator if the timely payment of Principal and Interest are Insured by a third party Insurer.

Muni Purpose General project industry type indicating Use of Proceeds of debt sale. Examples include education, healthcare, housing, etc.

Muni Refund Indicator if the bond is Pre-Refunded or Escrowed-to-Maturity. Applies to Municipal bonds.

Muni Type High level source of payment by Issuer. General Obligation, Revenue or Tobacco.

OA Effective Duration Option Adjusted Effective Duration.

OA Effective Duration - Average Average Option Adjusted Effective Duration, weighted by Market value (Par Value-weighted optional), for all Tax Lots with current Market Prices and full analytical calculations.

Original Acquisition Price Original Principal cost-weighted Acquisition Price, for each Tax Lot with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Original Face Value Original Face Value of each Tax Lot position with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Original Face Value - Total The sum of each Tax Lot's Original Face Value, for all Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Original Principal Cost Original Principal Cost, for each Tax Lot with an Acquisition Price, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Original Principal Cost - Total The sum of each Tax Lot's Original Principal Cost, for all Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Portfolio Value - Total The sum of Total Market Value, Cash, Equity, and Fund balances.

Price to The "worst" Date to which the bond is Priced at the current Market Price. Examples include Maturity, next Call Date/Price, Avg Life, Pre-Refunded Date, Mandatory Put Date, etc.

Priced Current Face Value Total Current Face Value (applying factors as-of report Date), for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price.

Priced Market Principal Total Market Principal Value, for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price.

Priced Orig Face Value Total Original Face Value, for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price.

Priced Positions Number of Tax Lots with a current Market Price vs Total Tax Lots.

S&P Rating - Average
Market Principal-weighted average official Standard & Poor's Rating, for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations. US Treasury, Agency, CD, and Municipal Pre-Refunded/Escrowed-To-Maturity are
assumed to have a rating of AAA. NR/UR not included in average rating.

Spread TM The difference between YTM and the appropriate benchmark scale Yield, calculated daily and expressed in basis points.

Spread TW The difference between YTW and the appropriate benchmark scale Yield, calculated daily and expressed in basis points.

State The State of Issuance from which the Municipal Bond Issuer is located.

Tax-Equivalent Yield Tax-Equivalent Yield (to Worst, to Call, to Maturity) for each Tax Lot with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations. Assumes Fed Inc/Cap Gain rates of 37% / 20.0% or Account-specific rates and residency settings.

Tax-Equivalent Yield - Average Average Market Principal-weighted Tax-Equivalent Yield (to Worst, to Call, to Maturity) for all Tax Lots with a current Market Price and full analytical calculations. Cognizant of the Account-specific State of Residence and Tax Rates.

Tax Lots Included Number of Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical vs Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price available.

Underlying Credit rating of the underlying Municipal Bond Issuer without consideration for Insurance, Credit Enhancements, or other sources of debt service payments.

Yield to Maturity The Yield based upon the current Market Price, not considering Call Dates.

Yield to Maturity - Average Average Yield to Maturity, weighted by Market value (Par Value-weighted optional), for all Tax Lots with current Market Prices and full analytical calculations.

Yield to Maturity - Average (Cost) Face Value at Acquisition-weighted average Yield to Maturity, for each Tax Lot with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Yield to Maturity - Average (Market) Market Principal-weighted average Yield to Maturity, for each Tax Lot with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Yield to Worst The lowest possible Yield based upon the current Market Price, considering Call Dates, Maturity Dates, and principal Pay-Downs.

Yield to Worst - Average Average Yield to Worst weighted by Market Value (Par Value-weighted optional), for all Tax Lots with current Market Prices and full analytical calculations.

Yield to Worst - Average (Cost) Face Value at Acquisition-weighted Average Acquisition (book) Yield to Worst, for all Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Yield to Worst - Average (Market) Market Principal-weighted average Yield to Worst, for all Tax Lots with an Acquisition Price, Acquisition Date, current Market Price, and full analytical calculations.

Town of LochbuieGlossary (continued...)
report as of 02/02/2024

210



Page 11 of 13

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

IMPORTANT INFORMATION
 
 
 
KEY RISKS
 
 
 

Investing in fixed income products is subject to certain risks, including interest rate, credit, inflation, call, prepayment and
reinvestment risk. Any fixed income security sold or redeemed prior to maturity may be subject to substantial gain or loss.
Municipal Bonds: Investors should understand the potential tax liabilities surrounding a municipal bond purchase. Certain
municipal bonds are federally taxed if the holder is subject to alternative minimum tax. Capital gains, if any, are federally
taxable. The investor should note that the income from tax-free municipal bond funds may be subject to state and local
taxation and the Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT).
High Yield bonds are speculative non-investment grade bonds that have higher risk of default
or other adverse credit events which are appropriate for high-risk investors only.
Preferred investments share characteristics of both stocks and bonds. Preferred securities are typically long dated securities
with call protection that fall in between debt and equity in the capital structure. Preferred securities carry various risks and
considerations which include: concentration risk; interest rate risk; lower credit ratings than individual bonds; a lower claim
to assets than a firm's individual bonds; higher yields due to these risk characteristics; and "callable" implications meaning
the issuing company may redeem the stock at a certain price after a certain date.
Moody's and S&P ratings are the current opinions of the creditworthiness of an obligor that assess the likelihood of default.
Obligations rated Aaa/AAA are judged to be of the highest quality, where the obligor's capacity to meet its financial
commitment is extremely strong. Obligations rated Baa/BBB exhibit adequate financial security where the obligor's capacity
to meet its financial commitment is susceptible to adverse economic conditions.
The views and strategies discussed in this document may not be suitable to all investors. This information is provided for
informational purposes and is not intended as an offer or solicitation for the purchase or sale of any financial instrument.
Past performance is not indicative of future returns.
 

This material is for information purposes only, and may inform you of certain products and services offered by private banking businesses,
part of JPMorgan Chase & Co. ("JPM"). Products and services described, as well as associated fees, charges and interest rates, are
subject to change in accordance with the applicable account agreements and may differ among geographic locations. Not all products and
services are offered at all locations. If you are a person with a disability and need additional support accessing this material, please contact

Town of LochbuieDisclaimer
report as of 02/02/2024

211



Page 12 of 13

your J.P. Morgan team or email us at accessibility.support@jpmorgan.com for assistance. Please read all Important Information.
 
GENERAL RISKS & CONSIDERATIONS
 
Any views, strategies or products discussed in this material may not be appropriate for all individuals and are subject to risks. Investors
may get back less than they invested, and past performance is not a reliable indicator of future results. Asset
allocation/diversification does not guarantee a profit or protect against loss. Nothing in this material should be relied upon in isolation for the
purpose of making an investment decision. You are urged to consider carefully whether the services, products, asset classes (e.g. equities,
fixed income, alternative investments, commodities, etc.) or strategies discussed are suitable to your needs. You must also consider the
objectives, risks, charges, and expenses associated with an investment service, product or strategy prior to making an investment decision.
For this and more complete information, including discussion of your goals/situation, contact your J.P. Morgan team.
 
 
 
NON-RELIANCE
 
Certain information contained in this material is believed to be reliable; however, JPM does not represent or warrant its accuracy, reliability
or completeness, or accept any liability for any loss or damage (whether direct or indirect) arising out of the use of all or any part of this
material. No representation or warranty should be made with regard to any computations, graphs, tables, diagrams or commentary in this
material, which are provided for illustration/ reference purposes only. The views, opinions, estimates and strategies expressed in this
material constitute our judgment based on current market conditions and are subject to change without notice. JPM assumes no duty to
update any information in this material in the event that such information changes. Views, opinions, estimates and strategies expressed
herein may differ from those expressed by other areas of JPM, views expressed for other purposes or in other contexts, and this material
should not be regarded as a research report. Any projected results and risks are based solely on hypothetical examples cited, and actual
results and risks will vary depending on specific circumstances. Forward-looking statements should not be considered as guarantees or
predictions of future events.
 
Nothing in this document shall be construed as giving rise to any duty of care owed to, or advisory relationship with, you or any third party.
Nothing in this document shall be regarded as an offer, solicitation, recommendation or advice (whether financial, accounting, legal, tax or
other) given by J.P. Morgan and/or its officers or employees, irrespective of whether or not such communication was given at your request.
J.P. Morgan and its affiliates and employees do not provide tax, legal or accounting advice. You should consult your own tax, legal and
accounting advisors before engaging in any financial transactions.
 
 
 
LEGAL ENTITY, BRAND & REGULATORY INFORMATION

Town of LochbuieDisclaimer (continued...)
report as of 02/02/2024

212

mailto:accessibility.support@jpmorgan.com


Page 13 of 13

 
 
In the United States, bank deposit accounts and related services, such as checking, savings and bank lending, are offered by JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. Member FDIC.
 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and its affiliates (collectively "JPMCB") offer investment products, which may include bank managed
investment accounts and custody, as part of its trust and fiduciary services. Other investment products and services, such as brokerage and
advisory accounts, are offered through J.P. Morgan Securities LLC ("JPMS"), a member of FINRA and SIPC. Insurance products are
made available through Chase Insurance Agency, Inc. (CIA), a licensed insurance agency, doing business as Chase Insurance Agency
Services, Inc. in Florida. JPMCB, JPMS and CIA are affiliated companies under the common control of JPM. Products not available in all
states.
 
With respect to countries in Latin America, the distribution of this material may be restricted in certain jurisdictions. We may offer and/or
sell to you securities or other financial instruments which may not be registered under, and are not the subject of a public offering under, the
securities or other financial regulatory laws of your home country. Such securities or instruments are offered and/or sold to you on a private
basis only. Any communication by us to you regarding such securities or instruments, including without limitation the delivery of a
prospectus, term sheet or other offering document, is not intended by us as an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities
or instruments in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or a solicitation is unlawful. Furthermore, such securities or instruments may be
subject to certain regulatory and/or contractual restrictions on subsequent transfer by you, and you are solely responsible for ascertaining
and complying with such restrictions. To the extent this content makes reference to a fund, the Fund may not be publicly offered in any Latin
American country, without previous registration of such fund´s securities in compliance with the laws of the corresponding jurisdiction.
 
References to "J.P. Morgan" are to JPM, its subsidiaries and affiliates worldwide. "J.P. Morgan Private Bank" is the brand name for the
private banking business conducted by JPM. This material is intended for your personal use and should not be circulated to or used by any
other person, or duplicated for non-personal use, without our permission. If you have any questions or no longer wish to receive these
communications, please contact your J.P. Morgan team.
 
©2023 JPMorgan Chase & Co. All rights reserved.
 

Town of LochbuieDisclaimer (continued...)
report as of 02/02/2024

213

http://www.finra.org/
http://www.sipc.org/


Town of Lochbuie Aging Report - A/R Aging Report Page:     1

Live 4.23.19 Report date: 1/31/2024 Feb 06, 2024  05:04PM

Report Criteria:

Aging by Date

Aged using Payment Date

Customer

Number Name Balance Future Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120 Over 150

103 Blumenthal/Silver Peaks 2,943.00  -  -  -  -  -  - 2,943.00

106 Flywheel Holding/Eppinger 5,634.74- 1,244.88  -  -  -  -  - 6,879.62-

107 Lochbuie Land 1 LLC - Mark B 29,083.52 1,811.25 3,866.88 1,768.13  - 603.75 241.50 20,792.01

108 Walton Silver Peaks 24,022.85 5,175.00 12,826.13  - 6,021.72  -  -  -

111 Silver Peaks Area 4 Block 20 63,843.51 13,768.38 15,884.04  - 20,171.48 13,851.75 167.86  -

112 UNITED WATER - AUGMENTA 70,470.25-  -  -  -  -  -  - 70,470.25-

118 VIEW HOMES 7,072.46-  -  -  -  -  -  - 7,072.46-

120 LOB - Lease Deposit 118,614.00-  -  -  -  -  -  - 118,614.00-

121 LOB - Water Right Deposit 89,118.00-  -  -  -  -  -  - 89,118.00-

122 LOB - Adjudication Deposit 56,342.61 659.75 13,434.60 4,810.90 324.50 4,354.05 14,299.80 18,459.01

124 Forestar Real Estate Group Inc 1,046.50 529.00 517.50  -  -  -  -  -

125 QuikTrip 16,287.95-  -  - 16,287.95-  -  -  -  -

127 SPL COMMERCIAL LLC 540.50  -  -  -  - 540.50  -  -

130 JP Custom Homes Inc. 471.50  -  -  -  -  -  - 471.50

132 Melody Homes 3,732.88-  -  -  -  -  -  - 3,732.88-

138 Kings Co, LLC 9,409.21 3,106.15 671.03 335.80 1,138.50 2,315.24 560.63 1,281.86

139 Drake Real Estate Services 2,583.48 2,583.48  -  -  -  -  -  -

140 SP PA 4 Block 20 - Replat 1,754.62  - 1,754.62  -  -  -  -  -

141 Silver Peaks Filing #3 Replat 3,220.74-  -  -  - 3,220.74-  -  -  -

142 Technology Associates EC Inc. 4,844.75-  -  - 4,844.75-  -  -  -  -

143 ARES LLC 687.88 687.88  -  -  -  -  -  -

          Grand Totals:  126,266.59- 29,565.77 48,954.80 14,217.87- 24,435.46 21,665.29 15,269.79 251,939.83-

214



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

703 WCR 37, Lochbuie, CO 80603 
Phone (303) 659-1395    Fax: (303) 655-1755 

 
MONTHLY BOARD REPORT 

 
 
To: Lochbuie Town Board 
From: Tracey McCoy, Chief of Police 
Date: February 13, 2024 
Subject: Monthly Department Update for January 2024 
 
MONTHLY REPORT 
 
Activity increased as we started the year with a total of 614 incidents reported in January which is up about a 
hundred incidents from the previous month.  
 
Officer Almiron has completed his Field Training and is working night shift independently. Officers Tyler Greco 
and Jordan Odneal are progressing through the Field Training Officer (FTO) program. Both officers should be 
completing the FTO training program by the end of February as they have excelled in their training and will be 
finishing the FTO program earlier than usual. CSO Molly Aguilar continues to be very active with code enforcement 
and animal control calls. She has been active with a specific resident that has recently moved into town and brought 
several junk vehicles with them. Her goal is compliance and is working with the owner to rectify the violations.  
 
We will be having a discussion on Fireworks at this board meeting. I will provide you with the current Town 
Ordinance and State Law as it relates to fireworks so that we discuss if changes are appropriate. 
 
As always, do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or concerns, and please let your neighbors know that I 
have an open-door policy and encourage them to contact me with any problems that the police may be able to assist 
with. Also, please advise your neighbors to always call the police if they see something suspicious or need anything 
that we can help with! I encourage them to call me if they have a complaint or want to compliment an officer they 
were in contact with.  
 
I would also encourage any board members, their families, neighbors, or any other citizens to come in and do 
a ride-along with our officers. It is a simple process to complete the ride-along request, which is available on 
the Lochbuie Police webpage. Submit the completed form and we do a quick background check (anyone 
convicted of a felony will be disqualified) and schedule a date and time. A person can ride for a couple hours 
or an entire shift. It is a very educational, and sometimes exciting, experience.  
 
Thank You 
 
Tracey 

215



Incidents by Method Received Over Previous 4 Months

0

100

200

300

400

Oct 2023 Nov 2023 Dec 2023 Jan 2024

78 68

51

62

149
125

108
128

268

398

318

284

40
2423

40

911

Non-Emergency

Officer Initiated

Other/Unk

Overall Incidents Over Previous 4 Months

500

600

Oct 2023 Nov 2023 Dec 2023 Jan 2024

534

614

503 511

Incidents by Primary Agency

602 (98.05%)

12 (1.95%)

Lochbuie PD Other Agency

Incidents by Location Jurisdiction

592 (96.42%)

22 (3.58%)

Lochbuie PD Other Jurisdiction/Unknown

Incident Stats Natures

Officer Initiated vs Recieved Calls

Officer Initiated

Received

398

216

Monthly Comparison Top Locations

Lochbuie PD
Jan - 2024

CAD Incidents / Calls For Service

Overall Incidents Last Month

614
(Blank) ▼

216



 

Town of Lochbuie 

Monthly Activity Log 

January 2023 
 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Daily operations include plant equipment checks and preventative maintenance, process control sampling 

and in-house lab analysis, permit compliance sampling and delivery to the laboratory, clarifier blanket 

level check, headworks auger cleaning, SCADA checks, totalizer readings and data entry. Solids 

dewatering equipment is operated on an as-needed basis to maintain digester levels. Generator test run 

and inspection completed weekly. 

 

Sampling and lab analysis includes influent and effluent pH, settling test, solids analysis (A-Basins, 

digesters, and RAS), and process control nutrient sampling. Process control sampling and analysis of 

biosolids dewatering process.  

 

January 2024 2023 

Average Influent Flow 1.456 MGD 1.371 MGD 

Maximum Influent flow 1.585 MGD 1.521 MGD 

Average Brighton Flow 0.835 MGD 0.763 MGD 

Maximum Brighton Flow 0.899 MGD 0.816 MGD 

% Brighton Flow of Influent Avg. 57 % 50 % 

Average Influent TSS 303 mg/L 291 mg/L 

Average Influent BOD 274 mg/L 290 mg/L 

Average Influent BOD Loading lbs./day 3,252 lbs/day 3,297 lbs./day 

Plant Capacity Flow 73% 68% 

Plant Capacity Loading 84% 86% 

Plant Capacity Flow 2 MGD 2.0 MGD 2.0 MGD 

Plan Capacity BOD Loading 3,840 lbs./day 3,840 lbs./day 

Average Effluent Flow 1.497 MGD 1.474 MGD 

Maximum Effluent Flow 1.738 MGD 1.722 MGD 

Average Effluent BOD 8 mg/L 4 mg/L 

Average Effluent TSS 10 mg/L 5 mg/L 

BOD % Removal 97% 99% 

TSS % Removal 97% 98% 

Minimum Effluent Dissolved Oxygen 3.83 mg/L 5.64 mg/L 

 

Dewatering Information 

January 2024 2023 

Gallons Pressed 399,536 151,964 

Wet Tons of Solids 

Pressed 
251 76 

Dry Tons Solids Pressed 45 13 

 

217



 

January 1, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

Completed weekly generator test and checks.  

January 2, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Operated the Fournier Fan Press, removing solids from 

Digester #1. The screening auger was backed up with rags due to the trash service not emptying the 

containers. The West Tech grit classifier motor faulted due to the motor being over temperature, the 

parameters were changed to allow the motor to operate less time per cycle. Denali Water Solutions onsite 

to exchange the biosolids container. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Completed the monthly 

alarm call out verifications. 

January 3, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Denali Water Solutions onsite to exchange the 

biosolids container. Completed Poplar Lift Station checks. The monthly composite compliance sampler 

was started for the monthly compliance sampling. Collected the monthly E. coli sample and sent it to 

Colorado Analytical. REC Collections onsite to clean out the RAS wet well and RAS lines to clarifiers. 

January 4, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Operated the Fournier fan press, removing solids from 

Digester #1. Denali Water Solutions onsite to exchange the biosolids container. The air was shut off to 

Digester #2 for a decant. Collected and sent out the monthly compliance samples to Colorado Analytical 

Laboratory. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

January 5, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Denali 

Water Solution onsite to exchange the biosolids container. Turned air supply back on to Digester #2 after 

decanting was completed. Transferred sludge from Digester #2 to Digester #1, balancing the workload 

between the digesters. 

January 6, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Operated the Fournier fan press, removing solids from 

Digester #1. 

January 7, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

January 8, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

Completed the weekly generator checks and operational tests. Denali Water Solutions was onsite 

to exchange the biosolids container. Operated the Fournier Fan Press to remove solids from 

Digester #1. REC ESD onsite to repair the West Clarifier arm. 

January 9, 2024: Completed the daily operation. Operated the Fournier Fan Press to remove 

solids from Digester #1. Denali Water Solution onsite to exchange the biosolids container. Shut 

off the air to Digester #2 for a decant. REC ESD onsite to continue troubleshooting the West 

Clarifier RAS line leak. Completed the work orders for the blowers. 

January 10, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Finished the monthly work orders for the 

Raptor screening auger. Started decanting Digester #2. Operated the Fournier fan press to 

remove solids from Digester #1. Denali Water Solution onsite to exchange the biosolids 

container. Tightened the packing on Polymer Pump #2 due to minor leak. Conducted checks at 

the Poplar Lift Station. 

 

 

218



January 11, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Continued decanting out of Digester #2 and 

reactivated the air at the end of the day. Denali Water Solutions onsite to exchange the biosolids 

container. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station.  

January 12, 2024: Completed the daily operations. ChemTrade onsite delivering 40,000 lbs. of 

Aluminum Sulfate from DPC. Completed general plant cleaning and groundskeeping. Conducted checks 

at the Poplar Lift Station. 

January 13, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

January 14, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

January 15, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Shut off the air to Digester #2 for decanting. 

Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Sala Logistics onsite delivering four barrels of polymer from 

Aries Chemical. Completed general cleaning around the facility. 

January 16, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Initiated decanting from Digester #2. Conducted 

checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Denali Water Solution onsite to exchange the biosolids container. 

Started the composite compliance sampler for weekly BOD/TSS samples.  

January 17, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Denali 

Water Solution onsite to exchange the biosolids container. 

January 18, 2024: Completed the daily operations. McDonalds Farm onsite to pump out the wet well and 

grit chamber at Poplar Lift Station. Operated the Fournier Fan Press to remove solids from Digester #1. 

Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Denali Water Solution onsite to exchange the biosolids 

container. 

January 19, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Denali Water Solutions onsite to exchange the 

biosolids container. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Operated the Fournier Fan Press to 

remove solids from Digester #1. 

January 20, 2024: Completed the daily operations. 

January 21, 2024: Completed the daily operations. 

January 22, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted weekly generator checks and operational 

tests. Operated the Fournier Fan Press to remove solids from Digester #1. Denali Water Solutions onsite 

to exchange the biosolids container. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Shut off the air to 

Digester #2 for decanting. Reliable Home Services onsite to troubleshoot the camera system after a power 

outage. 

January 23, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Initiated decanting from Digester #2. Started the 

influent composite sampler for weekly TSS/BOD samples. REC ESD onsite to repair the West Clarifier. 

Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

January 24, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Agfinity onsite to fill the propane tanks. Denali 

Water Solutions onsite to exchange the biosolids container. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

Confirmed the West Clarifier is operating properly. 

January 25, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Denali Water Solutions onsite to exchange the 

biosolids container. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Operated the Fournier Fan Press, 

removing solids from Digester #1. 

219



January 26, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Finished the work orders for the UV system. 

Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Denali Water Solution onsite to exchange the biosolids 

container. Completed general cleaning and organizing of the facility. 

January 27, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Operated the Fournier Fan Press to remove solids 

from Digester #1. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

January 28, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

January 29, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Shut off the air to Digester #2 for decanting. 

Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. Denali Water Solution onsite to exchange the biosolids 

container. Operated the Fournier Fan Press to remove solids from Digester #1. Conducted weekly 

generator checks and operational tests. Initiated draining of the East Clarifier for PMs by REC ESD. 

January 30, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Continued draining the East Clarifier for PMs. 

Started decanting from Digester #2. Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift Station. 

January 31, 2024: Completed the daily operations. REC ESD performed PM on the East Clarifier. 

Finished decanting Digester #2 and reactivated the air at day's end Conducted checks at the Poplar Lift 

Station. Denali Water Solutions onsite to exchange the biosolids container. Operated the Fournier Fan 

Press to remove solids from Digester #1. Transferred sludge from Digester #2 to Digester #1. 

Water Treatment Plant 

Daily operations include plant equipment checks and preventative maintenance, process control sampling 

and in-house lab analysis, compliance sampling and delivery to laboratory, SCADA checks 

checking/maintaining chlorine residuals, measuring well depths, chemical feed system adjustment and 

maintenance, chemical inventory, and data entry. Generator test run and inspection completed weekly. 

Silver Peak’s Booster Station pump checks and readings are completed every Monday, Wednesday, and 

Friday.  

January 2024 2023 

Water Production Gallons 15,811,643 16,855,899 

Average Daily Production (gal/day) 510,053 543,738 

 

January 1, 2024: Completed the daily operations. 

January 2, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Verified that the Verbatim alarm dialer work orders 

were completed, ensuring it calls out to the on-call phone. 

January 3, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks on the Silver Peaks Booster Station 

and generator. Completed checks and operational tests on the Main Facility generator. Conducted water 

line pressure tests at the Silver Peaks community. 

January 4, 2024: Completed the daily operations. 

January 5, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted the Silver Peaks Booster Station and 

generator checks. 

January 6, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Completed the weekly generator checks and 

operational tests for the Main facility.  

January 7, 2024: Completed the daily operations. 

220



January 8, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted the Silver Peaks Booster Station and 

generator checks. Upon arrival, RO #1 and #2 were in service and supplied by Wells #1 and #2. 

January 9, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Upon arrival, RO #3 was in service and supplied by 

Well #1. 

January 10, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Collected and sent monthly compliance samples and 

the first four total coliform samples to Colorado Analytical. Conducted the Silver Peaks Booster Station 

and generator checks. 

January 11, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Upon arrival, RO #1 was in service and supplied by 

Well #1. Completed the weekly generator checks and operational tests for the Main facility.  

January 12, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Upon arrival, RO #1 was in service and supplied by 

Well #1. 

January 13, 2024: Completed the daily operations. 

January 14, 2024: Completed the daily operations.  

January 15, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted the Silver Peaks Booster Station and 

generator checks. Upon arrival RO #2 was in service and being supplied by Well #1.  

January 16, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Upon arrival RO #2 was in service and being 

supplied by Well #1.  

January 17, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Collected and sent the last four total coliform samples 

to Colorado Analytical. Responded to an after-hours alarm for low chlorine in the storage tank. Repaired 

a leak in the chemical feed line and primed the pumps. Upon arrival, RO#1 was in service and supplied 

by Well #1. 

January 18, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted weekly checks and operational tests on 

the Main Facility generator. Upon arrival, RO #2 was in service and supplied by Well #1. DPC onsite 

delivering six hundred gallons of Sodium Hydroxide. 

January 19, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Generator Source onsite at Silver Peaks Booster 

Station to replace the battery charger on the unit. 

January 20, 2024: Completed the daily operations.  

January 21, 2024: Completed the daily operations.  

January 22, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks on the Silver Peaks Booster 

Station and generator. Upon arrival, RO #2 was in service and supplied by Well #1. Collected and sent 

the last four total coliform samples to Colorado Analytical. 

January 23, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Received a delivery of antiscalant from Worth 

Hydrochem. Upon arrival, RO #1 was in service and supplied by Well #1. Conducted checks on the Silver 

Peaks Booster Station and generator. Completed high chlorine sampling for the new water line at the 

Silver Peaks community. 

January 24, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Upon arrival, RO #2 & #3 were in service and 

supplied by Well #1 & #6. 

221



January 25, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted weekly checks and operational tests on 

the Main Facility generator. Upon arrival, RO #1 & #3 were in service and supplied by Well #1 & Well 

#6. 

January 26, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Conducted checks on the Silver Peaks Booster 

Station and generator. Fluid Design & Build onsite to troubleshoot RO #4 startup issues. Upon arrival, 

RO #2 was in service and supplied by Well #1. 

January 27, 2024: Completed the daily operations. 

January 28, 2024: Completed the daily operations. 

January 29, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Upon arrival, RO #1, #2, #3 were in service and 

supplied by Wells #1 & #6. Conducted checks on the Silver Peaks Booster Station and generator. 

January 30, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Upon arrival, RO #2 & #3 were in service and 

supplied by Wells #1 & #6. 

January 31, 2024: Completed the daily operations. Upon arrival, RO #2 & #3 were in service and 

supplied by Wells #1 & #6. Conducted checks on the Silver Peaks Booster Station and generator. 

222



 
Public Works Staff Report 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:   Public Works Monthly Report 
 
PRESENTED BY: Chris Larmon, Public Works Director 
 
UPDATE 

 
• Fleet  

o The new tandem ordered in March 2023 will arrive in early 2024. 
o New John Deere backhoe arrived on February 14th. 

•  23 water meters were installed at Lochbuie Station Phase B and Silver Peaks East 
• Water System Work Orders – are ongoing; 68 were completed last month. 
• Utility Locates – 137 locates completed by the Public Works Department 
• Regular Park Maintenance and inspections are ongoing.  

o New trash receptacles have been installed. 
• Graffiti removal at parks and town property - ongoing  
• CIRSA recently completed our annual property survey. CIRSA has provided a recommendation 

to remove the Skate Park. The structures have been removed from the skate park. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS 

 
1. Road Maintenance Plan for 2024 

o Staff are in the process of creating a work plan for 2024. Items included. 
1. Resurfacing of E.168th Ave 
2. The Crack and Mastic sealing program started in 2023 will continue 

and will systematically move through Town East to West in the coming 
years. 

3. Striping and Pavement Markings – this year, we will focus on replacing 
crosswalk markings and improving roundabout markings. 

4. Staff are working on creating a list of sidewalk and drain pan repairs 
throughout the Town. 

5. Asphalt repairs as needed. 
 

2. Elevated Water Tank at Silver Peaks 
o State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan application was submitted on January 5th.  
o Staff anticipates a funding award in early March. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

223



 

 

3. Greenways Trail  
o Construction is underway. We have encountered some conflicts impacting this project's 

completion timeline and cost. Minor re-design was necessary to allow for adequate 
clearance of a gas line. The design changes required additional earthwork, concrete, and 
handrails to be installed. Staff anticipates a change order to be submitted soon. 
 

4. WCR 4 Bridge  
o Staff and engineers from Martin and Martin have begun work on this project. Several 

tasks have been initiated, including survey, geotechnical, environmental, and subsurface 
utility engineering (SUE) 

o A grant application for Off-System Bridge funds was submitted to the CDOT Special 
Highway Committee on October 27th. 

o Staff received notice from the Special Highway Committee that they would like 
additional structure types to be analyzed. They will make a partial award for this funding 
cycle for the design work completed to date, and the additional work they requested. 
Staff provided the cost information for the partial award to the Bridge Committee on 
1/25/2024  

o Staff will continue working with the Bridge Committee and CDOT to move this project 
forward as quickly as possible. 

 
5. Water System Master Plan  

o Staff and consultants are working on this project. We are currently working on 
identifying upgrades to the existing system.  

o This project is scheduled for completion in early 2024. 
 

6. Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Design 
o Staff and consultants are working on this project and have completed work on the 

absorption rates. Based on growth projections, the expansion of the wastewater 
treatment plant will need to be larger than originally anticipated. An expansion of 2 
million gallons per day (MGD) was originally anticipated. However, data supports an 
expansion of an additional 4 MGD of capacity. With the addition of  4 MGD, our plant 
will have a total operating capacity of 6 MGD. 
 

7. EPA Lead and Copper Rule Revisions 
o Recent EPA updates require water systems to complete a Service Line Inventory and 

replacement plan for pipes that contain suspect materials. 
o The Town has contracted 120Water to assist with these efforts, and work is underway 

on this project. 
 

8. Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the City of Brighton for Traffic Signal Maintenance 
o Staff have been working with the City of Brighton to amend our current IGA for WCR 

2 / 168th Ave. to include the operation and maintenance of Lochbuie-owned traffic 
signals on this road. Work on this agreement is ongoing. 

 
 
 
 

224



 

 

 
 
 
CONSTRUCTION 
 
Lochbuie Station: 

o Phase C –  
o All identified repairs have been completed, and staff issued construction acceptance of 

Phase C. 
 

Silver Peaks PA4: Phases 1A and 1B 
o Over lot grading and installation of public improvements are complete 
o Construction acceptance was issued on December 19, 2023 

 
Silver Peaks PA4: Phase 1C 

o Over lot grading is underway 
 

Silver Peaks East 
o A final acceptance walk was completed on October 31st to begin the final acceptance of the 

roadways. 
o The developer has been provided with a list of required repairs to be completed before final 

acceptance is issued. 
 

CR 2 North Side Widening Phase 1 (Homestead Ave to the Silver Peaks Booster Station) 
o Construction on this phase is expected to be completed near the beginning of 2024. 
o Streetlights and sidewalks have been installed. 
o Guardrail installation and median landscaping is in process. 
o Installation of signage and pavement markings will take place soon after. 

 
CR 2 North Side Widening Phase 2 (Silver Peaks Booster Station to 50th Ave) 

o Construction plans have been received and are under review. 
o Staff comments are anticipated to be issued to the developer the week of January 15th 

 
ATTACHMENTS -  
None 

225



 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary (AIS) 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2024 
SUBJECT:   Community Development Department – Monthly Report 
PRESENTED BY: Chris Kennedy, Community Development Director 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with information on current and ongoing 
development projects in various phases of approval and implementation.  The following is a 
summary of the various types of projects that staff administers on a regular basis:    
 

a. Under Construction/Site Work – These are projects that have gone through the land use 
review process and received permits (grading, right-of-way, building) to begin 
construction.  Significant infrastructure and earthwork projects are also included here.  

b. Under Review – Land developers submit proposals for annexation, zoning, subdivision 
and site-plans for review by Town engineers, attorneys, utility operators, planners and 
other relevant parties to ensure compliance with Town, state and other standards.   

c. Inactive – This category includes projects that have become inactive due to economic 
conditions or other reasons.  Projects that remain inactive for extended periods of time 
will eventually be removed from the list altogether. 

d. Administrative – Community Development staff is also responsible for various 
administrative tasks involving maintenance of the land development code and 
comprehensive plan and other ongoing departmental operations.  

 
NOTE: The attached maps depict construction projects in blue and projects under review in white. 

 
HIGHLIGHTS 
 

Staff is working with consultants and developers on projects of various types, but would like to 
highlight in this AIS the following efforts, which have seen the most activity recently:  
 
1. Quiktrip Site Plan (under review) – Aspects of the entitlement process requiring public 

hearings were completed on 2-6-24 with the Board’s approval of the conditional use permit 
(CUP) for the project.  Staff is now working with the developer to complete permitting for the 
grading and infrastructure installation that will be required prior to construction of the 
convenience store.    

 

226



 

2 
 

2. Comprehensive Plan Update (administrative) – Staff continues to work with the consultants 
from Cushing Terrell to update the Town’s comprehensive plan.  The consultants provided a 
presentation to share the results of the community outreach survey at the January 16, 2024 
BOT meeting.  The next step is an open house to share the progress on the plan that has been 
made to-date and take additional, which is scheduled at Town Hall on February 22, 2024 from 
6 – 8 p.m.  

 
3. South Weld Annexations (under review) – South Weld Holdings, LLC submitted a petition 

(Annexation No. 1) to annex 194 acres and 4200 feet of CR4 ROW into Lochbuie.  The BOT 
made the required substantial compliance findings and set a public hearing for 2-12-24.  The 
BOT heard public comments at the hearing and approved the annexation.  The next step in 
the process is to present a zoning plan and annexation agreement to the BOT for 
consideration in June.  South Weld Holdings also submitted petitions to annex portions of 
CR41, CR4 and CR45.   

 
4. Scott’s – Miracle Gro (under review) – Staff has been working with this company on a soil 

and much bagging facility adjacent to the Town’s wastewater treatment plan.  The developer 
is close to submitting an annexation and development application. 

 
5. Fruition (under review) – Staff has been working with the developer on a submittal for a 

residential subdivision east of the existing Blue Lakes neighborhood.  The developer is close 
to submitting an annexation and development application. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Community Development Report (table) 
• Map: Active Review and Construction 

227



1 
 

Development Report: 2-20-24 
Project Name and Type Project Description Homes Location Status 

Construction/Site Work     
Quiktrip C-Store Convenience store to be 

constructed – first business in 
new commercial center at 
CR2/I-76 

NA NW corner CR2/I-76 - Entitlements complete 
- Staff working with developer on permit 

applications for grading and infrastructure 
- Building plans under review 
- Construction planned for completion late 2024 

Blue Lake Filing 2 
Builder: Unknown 

Install infrastructure and 
construct homes on remaining 
lots in Filing 2. 

194  - Annexation agreement amended to delay 
widening of CR 37 in certain areas until the next 
filing of homes 

- Lots purchased by builder  
- Internal construction plans approved 
- Grading and development permit applications 

expected March/April 2024 
Silver Peaks Planning Area 4 
Builder: DR Horton 

Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement (SIA) approved and 
executed; property sold to 
builder for installation of 
infrastructure and construction 
of homes 

248 NE corner King 
St/Pinnacle 

- Grading and infrastructure installation underway 
- Home construction underway 

Lochbuie Station  
Builder: Horizon View  

Subdivision process complete; 
property sold to builder for 
installation of infrastructure and 
construction of homes 

202 SW corner CR 2/ I-76 - Phase A – infrastructure complete; home 
construction complete 

- Phase B – infrastructure complete; home 
construction nearing completion 

- Phase C – infrastructure complete; home 
construction underway 

- Nearing build-out for subdivision 
Silver Peaks East  
Builder: DR Horton 

Subdivision process complete; 
property sold to builder for 
installation of infrastructure and 
construction of homes 

160 NE corner CR 2/ King St - Infrastructure complete  
- Construction underway and nearing build-out 
 

CR2 Widening Project Phase 1 – utility work/rebuild CR 
2 bridge over Speer Canal  
Phase 2 – widen north portion 
of CR2. 

N/A P1: CR2 between N. 60th 
and King St.  
P2: CR 2 from N. 50th 
Ave to Homestead Ave 

- South side of CR2 widening complete 
- North side of CR2 widening underway 
- See Public Works report for more information 

228



2 
 

Development Report: 2-20-24 
Project Name and Type Project Description Homes Location Status 

Town Water Tank Site (in 
Silver Peaks North) 

Design and construct elevated 
water tank and relevant site 
improvements 

N/A SE corner CR 4/50th - Design and permitting underway 
- Contractor bids received December 2023; 

selection process ongoing 
- Construction anticipated 2024 
- See Public works report for more details 

 
Entitlements Under Review      
South Weld Annexations  Initial phase – 194 acres plus CR 

4 ROW 
Next phase – additional acreage 

TBD NE corner CR2/I-76 - BOT approved annexation no. 1 on 2-12-24 
- Next phase expected soon 

Kairoi MF and Mixed-use 
development in Silver Peaks 
(density transfer, replat) 
  

Transfer density and plat site to 
allow for MF development and 
retail parcels adjacent to CR2 

400 NE corner 50th/ CR 2  - Formal application submitted  
- Initial comments on submittal provided 
- Revised plans pending 
- BOT consideration anticipated spring 2024 

Starbucks Site Plan  Site plan for coffee shop and 
drive-through  

N/A Lochbuie Station 
commercial area near 7-
Eleven 

- Plans close to complete 
- Building permit application submitted  

High Plains Subdivision 
Rezone (part of Quik Trip/High 
Plains Replat application) 

Amend existing zoning from 
PUD to commercial zoning  

N/A NW corner CR 2/ I-76 - Zoning approved by BOT 2-7-23 
 

High Plains Subdivision Replat 
(part of Quik Trip/High Plains 
Replat application) 

Reconfigure existing subdivision 
to create new lots for Quik Trip 
and other retail businesses 

N/A NW corner CR 2/ I-76 - Preliminary plat approved by BOT 2-21-23 
- Final plat approved 2-6-24 

Quick Trip C-Store Site Plan 
and Conditional Use (part of 
High Plains Replat application) 

Proposed site plan for Quik Trip 
C-store and conditional use 
review to address 
transportation, other impacts 
related to high-traffic uses 

N/A NW corner CR 2/ I-76 - Conditional Use Permit approved 2-6-24 

Blue Lake Filing 2 Amend annex agreement and 
SIA to delay further widening of 
CR 37 until more is known about 
the condition of the roadway; 
potential amendment to WRCA 
may also be required 

194 SW corner of CR 37/CR 6  Amendment language approved by BOT 12-5-23 
 Potential WRCA pending 

 

229



Silver Peaks Planning 
Area 4 Residential

Quik Trip C-Store 
and Retail Center

Lochbuie 
Station 

Residential

Silver Peaks 
East Residential

Map 1: Active Review and 
Construction Projects

*Formal proposals under review or approved 
for construction

 Under 
Construction

 Under Review
Starbucks 

Coffee

Town Water 
Storage Tank

Blue Lake 
Filing 2

230



 
Agenda Item Summary 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 20, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:   Town Clerk Staff Report 
 
PRESENTED BY: Heather Bowen, Town Clerk 
 

 
• Resource Central: Garden in a Box sales begin in March!  

 
• Please let me know if you would like to attend the CML Conference this year, from June 18 to 

21, in Loveland. I can help with room bookings and conference registration.   

231



 
Agenda Item Summary 
 
MEETING DATE:  February 16, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:   Human Resources Staff Report 
 
PRESENTED BY: Jhazmin Thomas, Human Resources Manager 
 
 
 
 

Total Number of Employees Number of Vacancies Average of Employment 
Longevity 

30 4 2.83 yrs. 

 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

• Working on getting the Lochbuie Annual Report published. 
 

• Working on revising the employee handbook. 
 

• Working on recruiting a Planner II.   
 

• Preparing to start a safety committee and risk management program. 
 

• Working on creating an employee development program. 
 

• Working with the Town events committee to get all events postcards ready to be sent to 
the Town’s residents. 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 

232



1 

       Town Administrator Report  
 February 20, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

TO: Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem, and Board of Trustees 

FROM: A.J. Euckert - Town Administrator       

Our Annual Report is still in the process of being finalized, and we anticipate that it 
will be available by the end of the month. 

A projects and priorities Board Work Session is tentatively scheduled for March 5th, 
immediately following the regular meeting. 

We continue to research options for both temporary and permanent facilities for 
Town operations. This includes reconfiguring current office space, off-site office 
space, and raw land. A Board Work Session will be scheduled to present options 
and opportunities. 

233


	20240220 Agenda
	6a 022024 Payment Approval Report
	6b February 6, 2024 Minutes
	6c February 12, 2024 Minutes
	6d1 AIS- Assignment SIA Filing 2 Blue Lake 02202024
	SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 2024-15 Authorizing The Town Administrator To Execute A Consent To The Partial Assignment And Assumption Agreement (Subdivision Improvement And Water Dedication Agreement – Blue Lake Filing No. 2) (Phase 2 And 3 Improvements).

	6d2 Res 2024-15 Consenting to execution by the TA of a consent to the Partial Assignment and Assumption Agreement (Subdivision improvement and Water
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE
	COUNTIES OF WELD AND ADAMS
	STATE OF COLORADO
	RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15
	TOWN OF LOCHBUIE, COLORADO
	ATTEST:     Michael Mahoney, Mayor

	6d3 Ltr to Lochbuie Re Century Fin Responsibility 2.15.24
	6d4 Partial Assignment of SIA w exhibits Ex H 1.26.14FIN
	7c1 AIS ordinance 692 procurement ordinance
	7c2 Ordinance 2024-692 Repeal Artcle III of Chapter 4 Ordinance emergency final
	7c3 Procurement Policy_2022_011822_Final
	7d AIS- Award Elevated Water Storage Tank 02202024
	8a1 AIS Fireworks Discussion
	8a2 Lochbuie ARTICLE_XII___Fireworks
	8a3  State Law Fireworks
	8a4  Brighton Fireworks
	City of Brighton
	Sec. 8-28-20. Definitions.

	8a5  Lupton Fireworks Ordinance
	9a1 AIS - 2023 Unaudited Finance Report
	9a2 cover 2023 unaudited report
	9a3 2023 Unaudited Finance Report
	9a4 1223 Unaudited Financial Statements
	9a5 0124 Financial Statements
	9a6 Assessment Rate chart - including special session SB01
	Sheet1

	9a7 Lochbuie TW 2-2-24_JPMCS
	9a8 0124 Accounts Receivable
	9b1 Board Report 1-2024
	9b2 Law CAD Incidents - Monthly - Power BI Report Server
	9c Lochbuie Activities 1-24
	9d Public Works Staff Report 02202024
	9e1 AIS CD Report 2-20-24
	9e2 CD report BOT 2-20-24
	9e3 Development Report Maps 2-20-24
	Slide Number 1

	9f Town Clerk Staff Report
	9g HR Staff Report 2.20.2024
	9H 02-20-2024 Town Administrator Report



